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3.1 1 st Reading

_2nd Reading & Final Passage

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following orciinance:

CITY ORDINANCE 19-091

TITLE:AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZENG THE CITY OF [ERSEY CITY TO
THE GARFIELD AVENUE SOUTH BLOCK ASSOCIATION FOR
LOT 4S, MORE COMMONLY KNOWN BY THE STREET ADDRESS OF 81 GARFIELD
AVENUE, FOR USE AS A COMMUNITY GARDEN

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CIW DOES ORDAIN:

WHEREAS, the City of Jersey City ["the City") is a Municipal Corporation of the State of
New Jersey, with offices located at City Hall, 280 Grove Street in Jersey City; and

WHEREAS, the City is authorized to enter into lease agreements for nominal consideration

with non-profit corporations or associations for the use of vacant lots and open spaces for

gardening or recreation purposes pursuant to NJ.S.A. 40 A:12-14Cc] and NJ.S.A. 40 A:12-

15(j); and

WHEREAS, the City adopted Ordinance 96-123, subsequently amended by Ordinances 01-

109 and 11-019, which authorized the establishment of an "Adopt A Lot" Program; and

WHEREAS, the City owns Block 3003, Lot 45 on the official tax map of the City and which is
more commonly known as 81 Garfield Avenue; and

WHEREAS, the parcel of land are suitable for gardening and such use will improve and
enhance the area; and

WHEREAS, the Garfield Avenue South Block Association is an association which seeks to
lease Block 3003, Lot 45 pursuant to the City's "Adopt A Lot Program" in order to create a

community garden thereon; and

WHEREAS, the Garfield Avenue South Block Association ("the Lessee") understand that the

properties leased to non-profit corporations or associations participating in the City's

Adopt A Lot Program are to be used for gardening and for no other purpose whatsoever;

and in particular may not be used for any commercial, business trade, manufacture,
wholesale, retail or any other profit-making enterprises; and

WHEREAS, the Lessees also understand that they must submit a biannual report to the

officer, employee or agency designated by the governing body, setting out the use to which

the leasehold was put during each year, the activities of the lessee undertaken in

furtherance of the public purpose for which the leasehold was granted; the approximate

value or cost, if any, of such activities in furtherance of such purpose; and an affirmation of

the continued tax-exempt status of the nonprofit corporation pursuant to both State and

federal law; and

WHEREAS, the lease term for all the parcels referenced here will be for five [5) months
beginning as of July 18, 2019 and ending December 31, 2019 subject to the City's right to
terminate the lease at its convenience without cause by providing ninety [90} days prior

notice; and
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WHEREAS, the consideration for the lease shall be one dollar [$1.00) and other good and
valuable considerations; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City
that:

1. The Business Administrator is hereby authorized to execute a lease of Block

3003, Lot 45 on the official tax map of the City and which is more commonly
known as 81 Garfield Avenue with the Garfield Avenue South Block Association
for the purpose of creating a community gardens thereon through the City's
"Adopt A Lot Program".

2. The term of the Lease Agreement shall be for five {5} months beginning as of July
18, 2019 and terminating December 31, 2019 for one dollar [$1.00].

3. The form of the Lease is attached hereto and shall be subject to any such
modification as may be deemed necessary or appropriate by the Corporation
Counsel or Business Administrator.

A. All Ordinances and parts of Ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed.

B. This Ordinance shall be part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and fully set
forth therein. The City shall have this Ordinance codified and incorporated in the
official copies of the Jersey City Code.

C. This Ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner as provided by law.

D. The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel be and hereby are authorized and directed
to change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event the

codification of this Ordinance reveals that there is conflict between those numbers and

the existing code.

Note: All new material is underlined: words struck threu^h are omitted. For purposes of

advertising only, new matter is boldface and repealed by italics.

07/09/19

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED:..

APPROVED:
Corpora [ton Counsel Business Acimintstrator

Certification Required D

Not Required D



This summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any Ordinance that is submitted for Council consideration.
Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the Ordinance.

Full Title of Ordinance

Department/Division
Name/Title
Phone/email

Health & Human Services

Stacey L. Flanagan
201-547-6800

Director

sflanagan@jcnj.org
Note: Laitiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to council meeting @ 4:00 p.m.)

Pursuant to the Adopt A Lot Program, this Ordinance authorize the lease for 81 Garfield Avenue for an
additional year.

Stacey L. FIanagan



This Lease is issued by the City of Jersey City "City" to

("Lessee") with offices located

at _ _ _ _ _ _ for the operation of an Adopt-A-Lot Garden located at

(address) on Block _ and Lot(s) _ ("the Garden"). This

Lease shall be administered jointly by the Department of Health and Human Services ("HHS") and the

Department of Public Works ("DPW") through the Adopt-A-Lot Program Officer ("Officer"), with an

office located at 1 Jackson Square, Jersey City, New Jersey 07304.

This Lease is issued to Lessee for a term (the "Term") beginning July 18, 2019 and ending

December 31,2019 unless terminated earlier. The Lease may be renewed m October by the

Municipal Council upon the recommendation of the Adopt-A-Lot Program Officer provided that

the Lessee meets the obligations set forth in this Lease.

All coiTespondence, including notices of non-compliance, shall be sent to the person designated

as the "Contact Person" by the Lessee.

Lessee:

Address;

Telephone numbers:

Contact Person for Lessee:

Address:



Telephone numbers:

Evening:

Weekend:

Email address:

Lessee shall promptly notify the Adopt-A-Lot Program Officer of any change in the contact

information provided above. Notice to the listed Contact Person shall be deemed notice to the

Lessee.

3. Obligations ofLessee/Use of Premises

A. This Lease is specifically entered into for the purpose of Lessee's designing and cultivating a

plant garden and thereafter mamtainmg that garden and all plants and structures contained

therein (including, but not limited to, the City-supplied shed, all the tools contained therein,

any fence, raised plant beds, planters, tables, benches, and other ornamental items, if

applicable) in a safe and orderly condition.

a. Before entering in to a Lease, the prospective Lessee shall notify the Adopt-A-

Lot Program Officer to arrange for an inspection the premises for the purpose of

locating, and, if feasible, removing any dangerous debris, undergrowth, garbage,

or other dangerous materials. If the Adopt-A-Lot Program Officer determines

that a dangerous condition exists on the premises that cannot be remedied at a

cost deemed reasonable by the Adopt-A-Lot Program Officer, then the City shall

refuse to consummate the Lease.

B. Within two months of the issuance of this Lease, or sooner if applicable, Lessee agrees to do

the following:

a. Lessee shall post a sign provided by DPW at the Garden explaining that the Garden is

a part of the Adopt-A-Lot Program.

b. Lessee shall update City's Adopt-A-Lot Jersey City manager of hours of operation

for City of Jersey City Website.

C. Within three months of the issuance of this Lease, or sooner if applicable. Lessee agrees to

the following:

a. Lessee shall design and install a plant garden.

b. Lessee shall nurture and develop the plants in the Garden, including watermg,

fertilizmg, pruning, weeding, and harvestmg as required. Any spray or liquid

fertilizers or herbicides must be approved by DPW, and notice given to DPW prior to



application. DPW reserves the right to determine and prohibit an environmentally

harmful fertilizer or herbicide.

D. Within four months of the issuance of this Lease, or sooner if applicable, Lessee agrees to the

following:

a. Gardens are required to post signage listing open hours, a schedule of planned

activities, and mformation on how to join the garden, along with the name and

telephone number of the Lessee's contact person and/or the Officer.

b. Lessee shall open the Garden to the public, as required by Section 8.

c. Lessee shall make gardening plots available to the public on a first come first serve

basis, through the use of a waiting list to be posted at the Garden.

E. Upon execution of the Lease, the Lessee agrees to the following:

a. Lessee shall maintain the Garden in a safe condition and take care of all plants and

structures contained therein, including all fences, raised beds, tables, benches, and

ornamental items.

b. Lessee shall keep sidewalks, passageways, and curbs adjacent to and within the

Garden clean and free from snow, ice, garbage, debris, and other obstructions.

c. Lessee shall comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations of the United

States, the State of New Jersey, and the City of Jersey City, and with other such rules,

regulations, orders, terms and conditions as may be set or required by the Adopt-a-

Lot program to the extent that tliey relate to the gardening activities under this Lease

or are otherwise applicable to the Lease.

d. Lessee shall arrange for the provision of, and pay for any utilities, with the exception

of water, necessary for the performance of the activities described herein; provided

however that Lessee shall neither cause nor permit the installation of any such

utilities without the prior written approval of the Adopt-A-Lot Program Officer.

e. Provide two reports each year to the Adopt-A-Lot Program Officer, one in June and

one in October, containing the current status of the Garden including, but not limited

to, a current color photo, a list of current Garden members, and any current concerns

or problems that the Lessee believes the Adopt-A-Lot Program Officer should be

made aware of or a problem fulfilling any of the requirements specified in this lease.

f. Lessee shall notify the to the Adopt-A-Lot Program Officer of any administrative or

operational matters constituting any loss, injury, damage or violation within the

garden within three days of such occurrence by contacting the to the Adopt-A-Lot

Program Officer.

g. Lease renewal will be submitted two months before expiration date.
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A. Lessee agrees to the following restriction on the use of the Garden:

a. No permanent improvements on the Garden. TMs prohibition includes but is not

limited to paving the Garden concrete, asphalt or other materials.

b. The Lessee shall make no alterations, additions, or improvements to the Garden

without fhe prior written consent of the Adopt-A-Lot Program Officer.

c. No permanent structures or murals or other permanent works of ail may be built in

the Garden without permission from the Adopt-A-Lot Program Officer, and, where

applicable, the DPW, Jersey City Building Department and the Jersey City Division

of Cultural Affairs.

d. No automobiles, trucks, or other motorized vehicles may be stored or parked at any

time in the Garden.

e. There shall be a minimum of five (5) Active Garden members.

f. No persons shall be allowed to reside m the Garden.

B. No animals (including dogs or cats) shall reside in the Garden.

a. No drugs or alcohol may be used, consumed, stored, sold, or distributed in the

Garden.

b. Garden shall not be used for any commercial purpose (including, but not limited to,

the sale or advertisement of any goods or services); provided, however, that the City

may allow, with prior notice to the Officer, Fundraising events at the Garden solely

for the purposes of supporting the operation of the Garden. All agricultural produce

cultivated at the Garden may be sold offsite at a designated Jersey City Farmer's

Market.

c. Lessee shall not create or suffer to be created any nuisance or danger to public

safety in or around the Garden. Lessee shall not cause or permit the accumulation of

garbage or debris in the Garden. Lessee shall not commit or cause any waste of or

to the Garden.

d. Lessee shall not sub-let the demised premises for gardening or recreational purposes

pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A12-15(I). Lessee shall not use or permit the premises to be

used for any other purpose without obtainmg the written and endorsed consent of

the City.



e. Lessee may not discriminate in any way against any person on grounds of race,

creed, religion, color, sex, age, national origin, disability, marital status, or sexual

orientation.

f. Lessee may not cause or permit gambling or any activities related to gambling m the

Garden, or the use of the Garden for any illegal purpose.

g. If Lessee ceases to use the property for gardening or recreational purposes, the City

shall have the right to terminate the lease upon giving ten (10) days written notice to

Lessee prior to the effective date of termination.

h. Lessee shall not use or permit the storage of any illuminating oils, oil lamps,

turpentine, benzene, naptha, or similar flammable substances or explosives of any

kind, and any substance or item prohibited in the standard policies of insurance

companies in the State of New Jersey.

i. Lessee shall not abandon the Garden.

If Lessee violates any covenant or conditions of this Lease or of the rules established by the City,

and upon failure to discontinue such violation within ten (10) days after notice to the Lessee, this

Lease shall, at the option of the City, become void. Notwithstanding the above, the City may

terminate tills Lease without advance notice for any of the following reasons;

A. Use of the Garden for any illegal purpose, including, but not limited to use of drugs, alcohol,

gambling, or other illegal activity, or conspiracy to commit same

a. Creation of danger to the neighborhood, whether through inadequate sanitation,

includmg accumulation of garbage, existence of a fire hazard, or any other condition

which may cause harm to the Garden or other persons or property in its vicinity;

b. The City ceases to be the fee owner of the Garden.

The City shall have the right to termmate the Lease at its convenience without cause by giving

written notice sixty (60) days prior to the effective date of termination. The City shall have no

liability of any nature whatsoever by reason of such termmation.

6. Access

A. Gardens are required to keep their gates open for a minimum of twenty (20) hours per

week from the first of May through and including the thirtiefh day of November. This

can be achieved through posted open hours, community events, workdays, workshops,

and all activities that keep gardens open and accessible to the public. Gardens are

required to post signage listing open hours, a schedule of planned activities, infonnation

on how to join the Garden, along with the name and telephone number of the Lessee's



contact person and the Adopt-A-Lot Program Officer. The Adopt-A-Lot Program Officer

may conduct spot checks to see that the required public access is maintained, and if the

Garden is not open at the designated time, the City may terminate this Lease.

B. The City and its representatives, i.e. the DPW, the Police and Fire Departments, and other

City agency representatives shall have access to the leased premises at all times for any

purpose.

Lessee shall surrender the premises at the end of the term in as good condition as reasonable use

will permit. In the event that the lease is terminated or expires, the Lessee shall remove all

temporary improvements installed on the property by the Lessee at its own cost or expense.

Lessee shall also return all tools referenced in Section 3(A)(ii) of this Lease and other unused

items provided by the City, to DPW withui thirty days of receipt of a notice of termination.

If the Lessee shall remain in the premises after the expiration of the term of this Lease without

having executed a new written Lease with the City, such holding over shall not constitute a

renewal or extension of this Lease. The City may treat the Lessee as one who has not removed at

the end of his/her term, and thereupon be entitled to all remedies against the Lessee provided^by

law in that situation, or the City may elect, at its option, to construe such holding over as a

tenancy from month to month, subject to all the terms and conditions of this lease, except as to

duration thereof.

The Lessee shall indemnify and hold the City and its officers, agents and employees harmless

from any and all claims or personal injury, and property damage arising out of the Lessee's

occupancy and use of the leased premises.

The expenditures for gardening activities to be undertaken at Garden are to be made solely and

exclusively at the risk and sole cost and expense of Lessee, and no part thereof is, or shall be,

reimbursable by the City for any reason whatsoever. The gardening activities to be performed

pursuant to this Lease were not and are not directed by the City, and the City assumes no

obligation or responsibility nor shall have any liability, for any expenditure made hereunder.

10. Modification

This Lease shall not be modified or extended except m writmg and when signed by both the City

and Lessee. This instrument shall not be changed orally.
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Lessee warrants that no officer, agent, employee, or representative of the City of Jersey City has

received any payment or other consideration for the making of this Lease and that no officer,

agent, employee, or representative of the City has any personal financial interest, directly or

indirectly, m this Lease.

12. Assignment

Lessee shall not sell, assign; mortgage or otherwise transfer, or sublicense any interest or right

provided for herein, nor shall this Lessee be transferred by operation of law, it being the purpose

and spirit of this agreement to grant this Lessee a privilege solely to the Lessee named herein.

All experts, consultants, volunteers or employees of Lessee who are employed by or volunteer

their services to Lessee to perform work under this Lease are neither employees of the City nor

under contract to the City and Lessee alone is responsible for their work, direction, compensation

and personal conduct while engaged under this Lease. Nothmg in this Lease shall impose any

liability or duty to the City for acts, omissions, liabilities or obligations of Lessee or any person,

firm, company, agency, association, corporation or organization engaged by Lessee as expert,

consultant, independent contractor, specialist, trainee, employee, servant, or agent of for taxes of

any nature including but not limited to unemployment msurance, workers' compensation,

disability benefits and social security.

14. Waiver, Release and Consent Agreement

Prior to accessing or using the land, equipment or facilities provided, Lessee agrees to sign the

"JERSEY CITY ADOPT-A-LOT WAIVER AND RELEASE OF LIABILITY/MEDICAL
AUTHORIZATION & CONSENT" agreement provided by the City. Failure to do so constitutes

a breach of this Agreement and, in particular, voids the promise by the City to indemnify Lessee

as described in Section 8.

This lease contains the enth'e conta'act between the parties. No representative, agent, or employee of the

City has been authorized to make any representations or promises with reference to the within letting or to

vary, alter or modify the terms hereof. No additions, changes or modifications, renewals or extensions

hereof shall be binding unless reduced to writing and signed by the Landlord and Tenant.



If any provision(s) of this Lease is held unenforceable for any reason, each and all other

provision(s) shall nevertheless remain in full force and effect.

This agreement shall be governed by and constructed in accordance with the laws of the State

of New Jersey. Any dispute arising under or in connection with this agreement or related to

any matter which is the subject of this agreement shall be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction

of the State and/or Federal courts located in New Jersey. Any dispute arising under or m

connection with this agreement or related to any matter which is the subject of this agreement

shall be subject to mandatory mediation or arbit'ation clause forcing the lessee to talk to the City

to resolve any issue prior to seeking a day in court.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have cause this to be signed and sealed.

AUTHORIZING OFFICIAL/TITLE Garden or Group Name
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COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

CITY ORDINANCE 19-092

TITLE0RDINANCE AMENDiNG CHAPTER 3 CADMSNISTRATION OF GOVERNMENT) ARTICLE
XVIII (DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES) TO RESTRUCTURE THE DEPARTMENT
OF HUMAN RESOURCES.

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE: CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN:

I. Chapter 3 (Administration of Government Article XVIII [Department of Human
Resources] are hereby amended as follows:

CHAPTER 3

ADMINISTRATION OF GOVERNMENT

ARTICLE VI

Department of Administration

§ 3-42. - Organization of Department.

The Department of Administration shall consist of the following divisions and offices:

S. [Offtce-of Risk Maaa-gement]. Reserved

§ 3-60.3. - [Office of-Risk Managemeat.] Reserved.

[There- is hQreby--&Feated under th-e—&opartmcnt of Admimst-mtion, the Office of Risk

Management, the head -of-which shall-be the Risk--Managcr. Under the supervision of the

Busi-noss Administrator, the Risk-MarmgoF-shalI:

A.—In eoordination with-the Corpomtion Counsel, supervise the administration and

payment of workers' c-om-ponsation,-benefits and claims for City employeesr

B.—Admm-istQr the Ci-ty's self-msur-anco and general msuranco programs.

G. —Review all cont-t-a-et-s-a-ad-agreements to recommend risk transfer of liability to other

paFtiesr-bfieluding vendors, cont-Kictors, lieensees and fmnchisesr

ft—Administer the Risk Management progFam-for the City-of Jersey City to include self-

i-nsumnce administration, implcmontafcion of loss prevention and loss reduction

programs, and investigation of property damage Uabil-ity claims.

E. Advise all Ci-ty department-s-on miscotlaneous risk managomcnt issues.

-^—Assist in the preparation of-the monthly agenda for the Insurance Fund CommlssionT

G-. —Assist in the eoordinatien-'of Insurance- Fund Commission activiticG and in the

investment of insurance funds.



19-092 _„„ 2
Continuation of City Ordinance__ -- . .page.

Department of Human Resources

§ 3-134. - Department of Human Resources; created; head; divisions.

There shall be a Department of Human Resources. The head of which shall be the

Director of Human Resources [.] (the "Department Director"). The Department shall be

responsible for the proper and efficient, admimstrati on of all human resources functions

including the administration of employee records, and.the administration of all federal, state.

county and local public employment programs unless.otherwise providecLby I aw^ and shall
provide technical advice and service to other departments as needed.

The Department Director shall, prior to his or her appointment, be qualified by training
and experience in personnel management. [In additien-ta the duties-spocifiod in this sect-te^

the Department of Human Resources shall be rcsponcible for-the proper-and efficient
administration of all huiTiiin resources func-tions. 4H-fehat capac-ity—t] The [4]Department

Director shall appoint each of the Office Directors identified herein and oversee the
Department's functions. The Department Jlirector shall appoint a Deputy Human Resources

Director to assist in Department oversight, [each-division under this section, shall be

responsible for-the proper administmtion of employee records, and-fhe administmti-ett-ef^

federal, statOy-eounty and-local pub lie-employment programs unless otherwise provided by

law, and shall provide technical advice and service to other departments as nQcdod. ]

§ 3-135. - Organization of Department.

A. Within the Department of Human Resources there shall be the following Offices
[divisions and offices]:

[1] [Division ofWorkforcG Mafl-agement] Office of Employee Relations.

[2] [Office of Affipmativo Action] Office ofEmpIoveeBenefits.

C3) [Division of Health BcncfitE] Office of Risk Management.

(4) [Division of Pension], Reserved

(5) [Division of Payroll] Reserved.

§ 3-136. - [Division of Workforce Management] Office of Employee Relations; duties.

A. Creation of the Office of Employee Relations [Division of Workforce-Management];
Director of the Office of Employee Relations [Division of Workforce-Managomont] in
charge; qualifications. Within the Department of Human Resources there shall be an

Office of Employee Relations [D ivision-of-Workforce Management], the head of which
shall be the Director of the Office of Employee Relations [Owisiea-e^-WeFkfeFee-

MaHagemefi^j. The Director of the OjTice ofEmployee Relations [Division-of Worlde^ee
Maimgcmofit] shall, prior to his or her appointment, be qualified by training or
experience in the administration of governmental or large corporate personnel

management, which shall be under the direct supervision of the Director of the

Department of Human Resources.

In addition to the duties specified in the section, the Office of Employee Relations [fiwisti
e^Workforcc Management] shall be responsible for employee records and the

administration of all federal, state, county and local public employment programs, unless

otherwise provided by law.

The Office of Employee Relations [Division of WorkforcQ Managemetrt] shall have the
following duties:

(1) Design programs for the recruitment, selection and development of employment

[2] Maintain liaison with state authorities engaged in enforcing personnel laws and
regulations (Civil Service Department),

[3J Establish and maintain contact with City officials and Department Directors.

(4) Participate actively in developing employment opportunities and operating policies.



19-092
Continuation of City Ordinance^— ,pags-

(5) Coordinate recruitment announcements to optimize awareness of employment

opportunities.

(6) Recommend review of job structures, employee evaluations, training and

experience qualifications to improve entry and promotional opportunities.

(7) Keep abreast of developments and legislation regarding personnel policy and
practices and ensure enforcement.

(8) Prepare and implement a comprehensive Personnel Policy and Procedure Manual.

[9] Oversee the offices created hereunder and perform such other duties as may be

assigned from time to time.

f§ 3-137i - Officeof Affirmative Action; duties.

A] B. [Creation of Affirmative Action Compliance Office; duties.] Within the Office of
Employee Relations [Division of Wer-kforce Management] there shall be an Affirmative
Action Group, [Office] that, under the Office [Dms?&] Director, shall perform the
following duties:

[1] Establish an affirmative action liaison in each department.

(2) Coordinate and establish affirmative action goals in each department.

(3) Evaluate and prepare the City's Affirmative Action Plan.

(4) Investigate and resolve complaints of discrimination from employees and
applicants using state regulations concerning employment with the City.

[5) Maintain liaison with federal and state authorities engaged in the enforcement of
equal employment opportunity laws and regulations.

[6) Maintain statistical data on the composition of the work force in compliance with
the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and other mandated legislation, i.e., Equal Pay Act of
1963, Age Discrimination Act of 1978, Vietnam Veterans and Handicapped Acts.

[7] Coordinate activities with the Workforce Management Division concerning

employment, training and development programs which will tend to equalize

employment opportunities for women and minorities.

(8) Maintain a working liaison with equal employment opportunity program
representatives of federal and state agencies to ensure compliance with the law.

(9) Prepare clear, technically sound, accurate and detailed reports containing findings,

conclusions and recommendations.

§ 3"137[S]. - [Division of Health-Benefits] Office of Employee Benefits; duties.

A. Creation of the Office of Employee Benefits [•&ivision of Health Benefits]; DirectQr
[S-ttjpewifior] m charge; qualifications. There shall be created within the Department of
Human Resources an Office of Employee Benefits [Division of Health Benefits] the head
of which shall be the Director [Sup-ewise?] of the Office of Employee Benefits [©MS?&
of -Health Benefits-]. The Director [Supervisop] of the Office of Employee. _Benefits

P&wi-sion-of Health Benefits] shall, prior to his or her appointment, be qualified by

training or experience in the administration of governmental or large corporate health

benefits plans, which shall be under the direct supervision of the Director of the
Department of Human Resources and which shall have the following duties:

[1) Design programs for the selection and development of health benefits plan.

C2^) Maintain liaisonwith state authorities engaged in enforcing health benefits laws and
regulations (Civil Service Department).

(3) Establish and maintain contact with City officials and Department Directors.

[4] Participate actively in developing operating policies.

(_5) Coordinate announcements to optimize awareness of health benefits.

(6] Coordinate the implementation of an active employee medical health benefits plan
and a retiree medical and health benefits plan.
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(7) Keep abreast of developments and legislation regarding health benefits policy and
practices and ensure enforcement.

[8] Prepare and implement a comprehensive Health Benefits Policy and Procedure
Manual.

(9) Perform such other duties as may be assigned from time to time.

[§ 3-139, -division of Pension; duties.

A;—£reatioB-&^-the Division of Pension; Supervisor in charge; qualifiea-tions, T-heee-is hereby

created within th8 Department of Human Resourees-a-DiviEion-of Pension, the head of

which sha-1-l-be-the Su^epv-isor of fee-Sivision of Pension. Tho Supcrvisor-o^trhe Divisiofl

of Pension shall, prior to his or bar appointment, be quaIifjteeUsy-fcFammg or experience

in the administration of governmental orla^ge-corporate employoo ponsion plans, which

shaH-bc under the-tesst- supervision of the Director of the-Department of Human

Resources-and which shall have the following duties: ]

[10) Administer operations for all municipal employees.

CU[^]) Supervise the administration, but not the investment, of all pension funds of
the city and retirements with respect thereto, including the Police and Fire

Departments.

(1Z[^]] Application and execution of pension payments to retired employees, in
accordance with the Noncontribution Pension Act, N.LS.A. 43:8B-1 et seq., and all

other pension programs within his or her jurisdiction, in addition to assisting and
advising applicants in filing retirement applications.

[13.[4-]) Review retirement applications and personnel action forms prior to making

recommendations to their respective Directors and pension supervisors as to the

pension category in which the individual shall be placed.

CIM^B Compile semimonthly pension payrolls for the municipal employees' pension
fund and other statutory pension payments except for the police and fire fighter's

pensions which shall be the responsibility of the Police and Fire Departments' fiscal
officers.

[15[^]) Be the liaison between the City and the Public Employees' Retirement System
[PERS] and the various pension funds, and compile data for enrollment into PERS m
cases complying with established rules of that fund.

[16[7]) Establish acceptable and workable records of all pension assessment
collections with the approval of the Division of Accounts and Control; accept all
moneys deducted from salaries of municipal employees who are members of all

pension funds and deposit the same; and prepare monthly financial reports and

transmittals to the New Jersey PERS, together with a quarterly financial report.

C1Z[^13 Arrange for physical examinations in accordance with the various pension
acts; receive medical reports from physicians; and in certain cases establish and

maintain a record for the purpose of reducing pension payments in certain cases

where social security Integration is part of their pension.

[18[9]} Prepare annual budgets for the semimonthly pension payments to all
pensioners whose names are carried on the rolls of the City; prepare salary budget

and budget for the office supplies for proper maintenance of the Office of Employee
Benefits [Division of Pcmsioft], together with all duties pertinent to the enrollment
and retirement of all employees of the City with exception of uniform police and
firemen.

[19[0]^ Advise and make recommendations for retirements and act as the certifying
agent for the Social Security Administration.

B. The Pension Commission of the Employees' Retirement System of the City is continued

within the Department of Administration and shall be constituted and have the
functions, powers and duties as provided by law [N.J.S.A_43:13~22.50 etseq.).
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§ 3-138, - Office of Risk Managemest; duties,

There is hereby created within the_Department of Human Resources, the Office of Risk

Management, the head of which shall be the Risk Manager. Under the supervision of_the

Director of the Department of HumarLResources, the Risk Manager shall:

A. In coordination with the Corporation Counsel, supervise the administration and payment

of workers' compensatKm. benefits and claims for City employees.

B^Administer the City's self-insurance and general insurance programs.

C^_Review^H contracts and agreements to recommend risk transfer QfJLabilitv_to other

parties, inclydmg vendors, contractors, licensees and franchises,

D^ Administer the Risk_Management program for the City of Jersey Cit\Lto include self-

insurance administration^ implementation ofloss_prevention and loss reduction programs,

and investigation of property damage liability claims

E. Advise all City departments on miscellaneous risk management issues.

F. Assist in the preparatipn of the monthly agenda for the Insurance Fund Commission.

G. As.slstjlLthe coordmation of Insurance Fund C-ommission activities and in.the investment

of insurance funds,

[§ 3 140. - Division of Payroll; duties,

A.—Creation of the Division of Payroll; Supervisor in charge; qualifications. There ishGreby

created within the Dopaptment of Human Resources a Divisien of Payroll, the head oi

whieh-sfaall be the-Supei'visor of-yie-DivisioH-s^-PayrolI.-Tl^e-Superviso-r-efthe Divisi-eft

of Payroll shall, prior to his or her appointment, bo qualified by training or oKperience-i-H-

the administration-of governmental or large-eorporate paypell operations, which shall

be under the direct suporvislon of the Director of the Department of Human Resources

and-whteh shall have the following dutie&r

-9^—Administar payroll oporationG for all municipal employQes^

{2^—Administer a ccntralizcid tlmckooping system for City employees;

•^—Provide for th-e-nse and ms^allation of a central payroll syst&Hh}

II. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed,

III. This ordinance shall be part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and fully set forth
therein. The City Clerk shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in the official
copies of the Jersey City Code.

IV. This ordinance shall take effect January 1, 2020.

V. The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel are hereby authorized and directed to change

any chapter numbers, article numbers, and section numbers in the event that the

codification of this ordinance reveals a conflict between those numbers and the existing

code, m order to avoid confusion and possible repeals of existing provisions.

NOTE: All new material to be inserted is underscored and material [ste'uek-fepeugfe] is
omitted.

AF/mma
07 ,02/19

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED:_

APPROVED;..
Corporation Counsel

Business Administrator

Certification Required I-t

Not Required a



This summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any resolution that is submitted for Council
consideration. Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the resolution.

Department/Division
Name/Title
Phone/emall

Administration
Brian Platt
201-547-4513

Business Administrator

BPlatt@jcnj.org
Note: Initiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to council meeting @ 4:00
p.m.)'

The purpose of this ordinance is reorganize and restructure the offices within the Department

of Human Resources

I certify that all the facts presented herein are accurate.

Signature of Department Director
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Ord. 19-093

3.3 1st Reading

_2nd Reading & Final Passage

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

CITY ORDINANCE 19-093

TtTLE:AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 3, (ADMINISTRATION OF GOVERNMENT)
ARTICLE VI (DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION) TO REQUIRE THAT THE OFFICE OF
DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION REVIEW ALL REQUESTS FOR PROPOSALS (RFPs)
TO THE AWARD OF A CONTRACT

COUNCIL offered and moved adoption of the following Ordinance:

WHEREAS, on February 24, 2016 the Municipal Council adopted Ordinance 16-026 which
created the Office of Diversity and Inclusion; and

WHEREAS, among the responsibilities of the Office of Diversity and Inclusion is that it
collect and analyze all data and other relevant information pertinent to the City's remedial

hiring and purchasing efforts; and

WHEREAS, it is in the City's best interests that in order for the Office of Diversity and
Inclusion to meet its goals of reforming the City's procurement process and correct

purchasing disparities, it should also be empowered to review all bids, requests for

proposals [RFPs) and requisitions prior to the award of any contract or the purchase of any
good or service.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the Municipal Council of the Ctty of Jersey City
that Chapter 3, [Administration of Government) Article VI (Department of Administration]
be amended to read:

CHAPTER 3
ADMINISTRATION OF GOVERNMENT

ARTICLE I through ARTICLE V

NO CHANGE.

Department of Administration

§3-39 through §3-S3

NO CHANGE.

§ 3-S4. - OiEfice of Diversity and Inclusion; Heads.

A. There is hereby created'within the Office of the Department of Administration an

Office of Diversity and Inclusion. The head of the Office shall be the Chief Diversity
and Inclusion Officer. There shall also be a Deputy Chief Diversity and Inclusion
Officer, who shall assist the Chief in the management of the Office and assume the

duties and responsibilities of the Chief m his or her absence.

B. Should the Mayor by Executive Order establish an Advisory Board for either
Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender [LGBT) or Diversity and Inclusion matters,
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the Office of Diversity and Inclusion shall consider its advice and

recommendations.

§ 3-54.1. - Powers and Duties of Diversity and inclusion.

The Office of Diversity and Inclusion shall:

A. Be the central office for inter-departmental and community collaboration

on issues to promote the protection and inclusion of all persons

irrespective of race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy or gender

identity]/ national origin, age, disability, sexual orientation or other
protected characteristic;

B. Be responsible for collecting and analyzing all data and other relevant

information pertinent to the City's remedial hiring and purchasing
efforts and, for reviewlng_allj'equests_for proposals [RFPs) pnor to the

publication^f the RFP and the award of any contract, and all contacts.

whether awarded by Council resolution or not. shall include an

attestatioiLthat the Office of Diversity and Inclusion had reviewed the
RFP prior to the award _ofthe contract:

C. Maintain a database of minority and women-owned business enterprises:

D. Be responsible for reviewing the annual report of the Abatement and

Compliance Officer and coordinating with the City's Employment and
Training Office to ensure that developers hire minority and women-

owned businesses from the City's minority and women-owned business

database;

E. Organize training seminars for all eligible businesses on how they can

become certified as minority and women-owned business enterprises;

F. Maintain a database of all contracts with minority and women-owned

business enterprises organized by department as well as serve as the

custodian of all research, information and data pertaining to the City's

diversity and inclusion efforts;

G. Host a biannual workshop, in conjunction with the Division of Purchasing,

on how minority and women business owners can become City vendors

or service providers;

H. Create a webpage on the City's website providing access to the minority

and women-owned business enterprises database. The page should also

provide automatic notice to qualifying businesses of relevant

opportunities and should allow other businesses to post opportunities.
The website shall also feature career and contracting opportunities jobs
with the City;

I. Initiate a public relations campaign to create awareness of the City's

minority and women-owned business enterprise database, and the goals

underlying it, to encourage all relevant businesses to sign up and use it

when sourcmg goods and services;

J. Review the monthly reports from the Director of Purchasing detailing
how many of the goods and services procured that month by the City
were to local, minority or women-owned businesses;

K Coordinate with the Compliance Office to ensure the following City goals:

[1] Work with developers to ensure that they utilize the minority and
women-owned business enterprises database for subcontractors

and goods;

(2) Monitor the activities of local minority and women contractors
and subcontractors to determine if the targets established in

Project Employment and Contracting Agreement (PECA) and
Project Labor Agreement (PLA) have been achieved;

L. Engage in outreach efforts at local schools and institutions to cultivate

relationships with local youth;
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M. Undertake periodic demographic and salary audits of all City employees
to determine if there are any pay equality issues;

N. Monitor its own outreach initiates to track how often each initiative is
utilized in order to evaluate its effectiveness and collaborate with the
Diversity and Inclusion Advisory Board to improve its efforts;

0. Issue an annual report to the Mayor detailing the activities of the Office of
Diversity and Inclusion during the prior year and the status of ongoing
and future initiatives;

P, Oversee, review, implement and update the Diversity and Inclusion

strategic plan;

Q. Be the central coordination and oversight entity for the inter

departmental collaboration on Issues impacting diversity;

R. Be the central coordination and oversight entity for the inter-

departmental collaboration on issues impacting hiring;

S. Obtain data pertinent to the City's remedial hiring and purchasing efforts
and updating the ODI website;

T. Oversee the periodic review and update of the disparity study, commonly
known as the Croson Study.

§ 3-S4.2. - Bureaus under the Office of Diversity and Inclusion; heads.

A. Bureau of Business Opportunity, Procurement and Training. There is hereby

created the Bureau of Business Opportunity, Procurement and Training, the head

of which shall be the Field Officer of Bureau of Business Opportunity, Procurement
and Training. The Bureau of Business Opportunity, Procurement and Training shall
assist the Chief Diversity and Inclusion Officer in the implementation of the Powers
and Duties listed under Subsections D, E, G,}, K and M of Section 3-19.6 above, and

shall assist in organizing job fairs and training programs.

B. Bureau of Community Resources & Services. There is hereby created the Bureau of

Community Resources & Services, the head of which shall be the Field Officer of
Bureau of Community Resources & Services. The Bureau of Community Resources

& Services shall Assist the Chief of Diversity and Inclusion (ODI) in the
implementation of Powers and Duties listed under Subsections C, F, H, I, and L of

Section 3-19.6 above, and shall assist the Chief Diversity and Inclusion Officer as

community liaison.

§3-5S through §3-60.11

NO CHANGE.

ARTICLE VII through ARTICLE XVISI

NO CHANGE.

I. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed,

II. The City Clerk shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in the official
copies of the Jersey City Code.

Ill, This Ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner as provided by law.

IV. The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel may change any chapter numbers,

article numbers and section numbers if codification of the ordinance reveals a

conflict between those numbers and the existing code, in order to avoid confusion

and possible accidental repealers of existing provisions.
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NOTE: All new material is underlined: words sfrucl^throygh are omitted. For the
purposes of advertising only, new matter is in boldface and matter to be repealed is

in italics.

07/09/19

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM

Corporation Counsel

Certiftcation Required D

Not Required D

APPROVED^

APPROVED:
Business Administrator



This summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any Ordinance that is submitted for Council consideration.

Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the Ordinance.

Full Title of Ordinance

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 3, (ADMINISTRATION OF GOVERNMENT) ARTICLE
VI (DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION) TO REQUIRE THAT THE OFFICE OF DIVERSITY
AND INCLUSION REVIEW ALL REQUESTS FOR PROPOSALS (RFPs) PRIOR TO THE AWARD
OF A CONTRACT

Initiator

Department/Division

Name/Title
Phone/email

The Municipal Council
Rolaiido R. Lavarro, Jr.

201-547-5268

Office of the Municipal Council President
Municipal Council President
rlavan'o@jcnj .org

Departmenf/pivision
Name/Title
Phone/email

The Municipal Council
Joyce E. Watterman

At Large
Councilwoman at Large

201-547-5134 _\ jwatterman@jcnj.org

Departm ent/Divisiou

Name/Title
Phone/email

The Municipal Council
Jermaine Robinson

201-547-5338

Ward F
Councilman

jrobinson@jcnj.org
Note; Initiator must be available by pllone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to council meeting @ 4:00 p.ra.)

Ordinance Purpose

This Ordinance will require the Office of Diversity and Inclusion to review all requests for proposals (RPPs)
prior to the publication of the RFP and the award of any contract, and will require that all contacts, whether

awarded by Council resolution or not, shall include an attestation that the Office of Diversity and Inclusion had
reviewed the RPP prior to the award of the contract

I certify that all the facts presented herein are accurate.

July 8.2019

Rolando R. Lavarro, Jr.

Municipal Council President

July 8^2019

Joyce E. Watterman
Councilwoman at Large

July 8,2019

Jermaine Robinson

Councilman, Ward 37
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Agenda No._3'4 _1st Reading
Agenda No._^_^2nd Reading & Final Passage

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

C\T\ ORDINANCE 19-094

TITLE: AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A 20 YEAR TAX EXEMPTION FOR A MARKET RATE
MIXED USE RENTAL PROJECT TO BE CONSTRUCTED BVWAVE URBAN RENEWAL
LLC, AN URBAN RENEWAL ENTITY, PURSUANT TO THE LONG TERM TAX
EXEMPTION LAWNJ^A. 40A:20-1 ET SEO,

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN:

WHEREAS, Wave Urban Renewal LLC, an urban renewal entity, formed and qualified

to do business under the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law of 1992, as

amended and supplemented, N.LS.A. 40A:20-1 etse^. (Entity); and

WHEREAS, the Entity owns certain property known as Block 7302, Lot 3.09, on the

City's Official Tax map, and more commonly known by the street address of 700

Washington Boulevard, and more specifically described by metes and bounds, in the
application [Property]; and

WHEREAS, the Property is located within the Newport Redevelopment Plan Area,as
required byN.T.S.A. 40A:20-4 and N.I.S.A. 40A:12A-5[g); and

WHEREAS, the Entity has applied for a 20 year long term tax exemption to construct

a new multiple dwelling, market-rate residential rental project, which will consist of

a. building that will be twelve [12) stories, five (5] stories, and twenty-four (24)
stories containing approximately three hundred thirty six [336) residential rental
units, approximately 16,490 square feet of commercial space located on Block 20,Lot

3.09 on the City's Tax Map and more commonly known as 700 Washington Boulevard,

Jersey City, New Jersey with a surface parking lot on property adjacent to the Project
with one hundred eighty one [181) parking spaces available for rental tenants and
retail customers; and

WHEREAS, Wave Urban Renewal LLC has agreed to:

1. pay to the City for remittance to the Jersey City Board of Education, the
greater of [i] the Minimum Annual Service Charge or (ii] 12% of Annual
Gross Revenue, which sum is estimated to be $1,893,896, and which

shall be subject to statutory staged increases over the term of the tax

exemption; and

2. pay to the City an annual sum equal to 2% of each prior year's Annual

Service Charge, estimated to be $37,877, as an Administrative Fee; and

3. provide employment and other economic opportunities for City

residents and businesses;
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4. pay to City for remittance to Hudson County, an amount equal to 5% of

the Annual Service Charge, estimated to be $94,694, upon receipt of

that charge; and

5. pay the sum of $528,737 to the City's Affordable Housing Trust Fund;
and

WHEREAS, the City has identified the following benefits of the Project:

1. the Annual Service Charge, estimated to be $1,893,896 to the Jersey

City Board of Education, and an additional sum of approximately

$94,694.00 to Hudson County, will generate more revenue for the

Jersey City Board of Education and for Hudson County than the current
real estate taxes on the Property;

2. it is expected that the Projectwill create approximately 970 jobs during
construction, 8 new permanent jobs and 2 part time Jobs;

3. the Project will stabilize and contribute to the economic growth of
businesses in the surrounding area;

4. the Project will further the overall redevelopment objectives of the
Newport Redevelopment Plan Area; and

5. the Project will pay the sum of $528,737 to the City's Affordable
Housing Trust Fund

WHEREAS, the City recognizes that the tax exemption is important in obtaining
development of the project and influencing the locational decisions of probable
occupants for the following reasons:

1. the relative stability and predictability of the Annual Service Charges
will make the Project more attractive to investors needed to finance the

Project;

2. the relative stability and predictability of the Annual Service Charges
will allow the owner to stabilize its operating budget, allowing a high
level of maintenance to the building over the life of the Project, which
will attract tenants to the Project and insure the likelihood of the
success ofthe Project; and

WHEREAS, Wave Urban Renewal LLC has initially complied with Executive Order
2002-005 concerning "Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative Status" by filing an
appropriate letter in the Office of the City Clerk.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Council of the City of
Jersey City that:

A. The application of Wave Urban Renewal LLC, an urban renewal company,

formed and qualified to do business under the provisions of the Long Term
Tax Exemption Law of 1992, as amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1

et seq. a copy of which is on file in the office of the City Clerk, for Block 7302,

Lot 3.09, more commonly known by the street address of 700 Washington

Boulevard, Jersey City, New Jersey, more specifically described by metes and
bounds in the application, is hereby approved.

B. The Mayor or Business Administrator is hereby authorized to execute a tax

exemption Financial Agreement The Financial Agreement shall include at a
minimum the following terms and conditions;
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1. Term: the earlier of 23 years from the adoption of the within Ordinance
or 20 years from the date the Project is Substantially Complete;

2. Annual Service Charge to be remitted to the Jersey City Board of
Education: Each year the greater of:

(a) the Minimum Annual Service Charge equal to the amount of
total taxes levied against the Property in the last full tax year in
which the Property was subject to taxation; or

Cb) 12% of Annual Gross Revenue, which sum is estimated to be
$1,893,896 and which shall be subject to statutory staged
increases over the term of the tax exemption; and

3. Administrative Fee: 2% of the prior year's Annual Service Charge,

estimated to be $37,877;

4, County Payment: an additional 5% of the Annual Service Charge,

estimated to be $94,694, for remittance by the City to Hudson County;

5. Affordable Housing Trust Fund: $1,500 per unit or $504,000 and $1.SO
x 16,490 square feet or $24,735 for a total of $528,735;

6, Project: a new multiple dwelling, market rate residential rental

project, which will consist of a building that will be twelve (12) stories,
five (5) stories, and twenty-four [24) stories containing approximately
three hundred thirty six [336} residential rental units, approximately
16,490 square feet of commercial space located on Block 20, Lot 3.09

on the City's Tax Map and more commonly known as 700 Washington

Boulevard, Jersey City, New Jersey with a surface parking lot on
property adjacent to the Project with one hundred eighty one [181)
parking spaces available for rental tenants and retail customers; and

C. The City Clerk shall deliver a certified copy of the Ordinance and Financial
Agreement to the Tax Assessor and Director of the Division of Local

Government Services.

D. The application is on file with the office of the City Clerk. The Financial
Agreement shall be in substantially the form on file in the Office of the City
Clerk, subject to such modification as the Business Administrator or

Corporation Counsel deems appropriate or necessary.

E. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby

repealed.

F. This ordinance shall be part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and fully
set forth therein. The City Clerk shall have this ordinance codified and
incorporated in the official copies of the Jersey City Code.

G. This ordinance shall take effect atthe time and in the manner provided by law.

H. The City Clerk and Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized and
directed to change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers

in the event that the codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a

conflict between those numbers and the existing code, in order to avoid

confusion and possible accidental repealers of existing provisions.
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NOTE: All material is new; therefore underlining has been omitted. For
purposes of advertising only, new matter is indicated by bold face and
repealed matter by italic.

07/10/19

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM

Corporation Counsel

Certification Required D

Not Required t-1

APPROVED:.

APPROVED:_
Business Administrator



This summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any Ordinance that is submitted for Council consideration.

Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the Ordinance.

Full Title of Ordinance

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A 20 YEAR TAX EXEMPTION FOR A MARKET RATE MIXED
USE RENTAL PROJECT TO BE CONSTRUCTED BY WAVE URBAN RENEWAL LLC,
AN URBAN RENEWAL ENTITY, PURSUANT TO THE LONG TERM TAX EXEMPTION LAW
N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 ET SEP.

Initiator

Department/Division
Name/Title
Phone/emaU

The Municipal Council
Rolando R. Lavan-o, Jr.

201-547-5268

Office of the Municipal Council President
Municipal Council President
rlavaiTofa^cnj .org

Mote: Initiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to council meeting @ 4:00 p.m.)

Ordinance Purpose

This Ordinance will approve a 20-year tax exemption for a market-rate residential rental project to be

constructed at 700 Washington Boulevard, The building will consist of three towers: one to be twelve (12)

stories, the second to be five (5) stories and the third to be twenty-four (24) stories and which together will
contain approximately three hundred thirty six (336) residential rental units and approximately 16,490 square
feet of commercial space. The project will include a surface parking lot on the property adjacent to the towers

with one hundred eighty one (181) parking spaces available for rental tenants and retail customers.

Once approved, the applicant will pay to the City for remittance to the Jersey City Board of Education, the
greater of (i) the Minimum Annual Service Charge or (ii) 12% of Annual Gross Revenue, which sum is

estimated to be $1,893,896, and which shall be subject to statutory staged increases over the term of the tax

exemption.

The applicant will also pay to the City an annual sum equal to 2% of each prior year's Annual Service Charge,

estimated to be $37,877, as an Administrative Fee, a payment of $528,737 to the City's Affordable Housing
Trust Fund, and a payment of $94,694 to Hudson County,

I certify that all the facts presented herein are accurate.

July 8. 2019

Rofando R. Lavarro, Jr. Date
Municipal Council President





RE: 700 Washington Blvd.
Block 7302, Lot 3.09
Newport Redevelopment Plan Area

THIS FINANCIAL AGREEMENT, [Agreement] is made as of the _ day of

_, 2019 ("Effective Date"), by and between WAVE URBAN RENEWAL LLC,

an urban renewal entity formed and qualified to do business under the provisions of the Long Term

Tax Exemption Law of 1992, as amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., having

an office at 111 Town Square, 3rd Floor, New Jersey 07310 [Entity], and the CITY OF JERSEY

CITY, a Municipal Corporation of the State of New Jersey, having its principal office at 280 Grove

Street, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302 [City].

WHEREAS, the Entity is the owner of real property located within Block 7302, Lot 3.09,

more commonly known by the street address of 700 Washington Blvd, Jersey City, and more

particularly described by the metes and bounds description set forth as Exhibit 1 to this Agreement;

and

WHEREAS, this property is located within the Newport Redevelopment Plan area; and

WHEREAS, the Entity plans to construct a building that will be twelve (12) stories, five

(5) stories, and twenty-four (24) stories containing approximately three hundred thirty six (336)

residential rental units, approximately 16,490 square feet of commercial space with a surface

parking lot on an adjacent property containing one hundred eighty one (181) parking spaces;

WHEREAS, on May 30,2017 the Proj ect received preliminary and final site plan approval

from the Planning Board; and

WHEREAS, on December 6,2018 the Entity filed an Application with the City for a long

term tax exemption for the Project; and

WHEREAS, by the adoption of Ordinance 19-_ on _, 2019, the Municipal

Council approved a long term tax exemption for the Project and authorized the execution of a

Financial Agreement; and

1



NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, and for

other good and valuable consideration, it is mutually covenanted and agreed as follows:

Section 1.1 Governing Law

This Agreement shall be governed by the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption

Law, as amended and supplemented, NJ.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seci., and Ordinance 19-_ adopted

on _, 2019, which authorized the execution of this Agreement. It being

expressly understood and agreed that the City expressly relies upon the facts, data, and

representations contamed in the Application, attached hereto as Exhibit 3, in granting this tax

exemption.

Section 1.2 General Definitions

Unless specifically provided otherwise or the context otherwise requires, when used in this

Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

i. Allowable Net Profit- The amount arrived at by applying the Allowable Profit Rate

to Total Project Cost pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3fc).

u. Allowable Profit Rate " The greater of 12% or the percentage per annum arrived at

by adding 1.25% to the annual interest percentage rate payable on the Entity's initial permanent

mortgage fmancmg. If the initial permanent mortgage is insured or guaranteed by a governmental

agency, the mortgage insurance premium or similar charge, if payable on a per annum basis, shall

be considered as interest for this purpose. If there is no permanent mortgage financing, or if the

financing is internal or undertaken by a related party, the Allowable Profit Rate shall be the greater

of 12% or the percentage per annum arrived at by adding 1.25% per annum to the interest rate per

annum which the municipality determines to be the prevailing rate on mortgage financing on

comparable improvements in Hudson County. The provisions of NJ.S.A. 40A:20-3(b) are

incorporated herein by reference.

iii. Annual Gross Revenue - Any and all revenue derived from or generated by the

Project of whatever kind or amount, whether received as rent from any tenants or income or fees

from third parties, including but not limited to fees or income paid or received for parking, or as

user fees or for any other services. No deductions will be allowed for operatmg or maintenance

2



costs, mcludmg, but not limited to gas, electric, water and sewer, other utilities, garbage removal

and insurance charges, whether paid for by the landlord, tenant or a third party.

iv. Annual Service Charge - The amount the Entity has agreed to pay the City each

year for municipal services supplied to the Project, which sum is in lieu of any taxes on the

Improvements, pursuant to NJ.S.A. 40A:20~12. It shall include a payment for all profit exceeding

Allowable Net Profit, i.e., annual excess profit.

v. Auditor's Report - A complete amiual financial statement outlining the financial

status of the Project, which shall also include a certification of Total Project Cost and clear

computation of the annual Net Profit. The contents of the Auditor's Report shall have been

prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and shall contain at a

minimum the following: a balance sheet, a statement of Income, a statement of retained earnings

or changes m stockholders' equity, a statement of cash flows, descriptions of accounting policies,

notes to financial statements and appropriate schedules and explanatory material results of

operations, cash flows and any other items required by Law. The Auditor's Report shall be certified

as to its confonnance with such principles by a certified public accountant who is licensed to

practice that profession in the State of New Jersey.

vL Certificate of Occupancy - A document, whether temporary or permanent, issued

by the City authorizing occupancy of a building, m whole or in part, pursuant to NJ.SA. 52:27D-

133.

vii. Debt Service - The amount requked to make annual payments of prmcipal and

interest or the equivalent thereof on any construction mortgage, permanent mortgage or other

financing including returns on institutional equity financing and market rate related party debt for

the project for a period equal to the term of this Agreement.

viii. Default - Shall be a breach of or the failure of the Entity to perform any obligation

imposed upon the Entity by the terms of this Agreement, or under the Law, beyond any applicable

grace or cure periods.

ix. Entity - The term Entity within this Agreement shall mean Wave Urban Renewal

LLC, which Entity is formed and qualified pursuant to N.J.SA. 40A:20-5. It shall also mclude

any subsequent purchasers or successors m interest of the Project, provided they are fanned and



operate under the Law.

x. Improvements or Protect - Any building, staicture or fixture permanently affixed

to the land and to be constructed and tax exempted under this Agreement.

xi. In Rem Tax Foreclosure or Tax Foreclosure - A summary proceeding by which the

City may enforce a lien for taxes due and owing by tax sale, under N.J.S.A. 54:5-1 to 54:5-129 et

seq.

xii. Land Taxes - The amount of faxes assessed on the value of land, on which the

project is located and, if applicable, taxes on any pre-existing improvements. Land Taxes are not

exempt; however, Land Taxes are applied as a credit against the Annual Service Charge.

xiii. Land Tax Payments - Payments made on the quarterly due dates, including

approved grace periods if any, for Land Taxes as determined by the Tax Assessor and the Tax

Collector.

xiv. Law - Law shall refer to the Long Term Tax Exemption Law, as amended and

supplemented, N.J.SA. 40A:20-1, et seq. and Ordinance 19-_ on _, 2019,

which authorized the execution of this Agreement and all other relevant Federal, State or City

statutes, ordinances, resolutions, rules and regulations.

xv. Minimum Annual Service Charge - The Minmium Annual Service Charge shall be

the amount of the total taxes levied against all real property in the area covered by the Project in

the last full tax year in which the area was subject to taxation, which amount the parties agree is

$499,632.

xvi. Net Profit - The Annual Gross Revenues of the Entity less all annual operating and

non-operating expenses of the Entity, all determmed in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles, but:

(1) there shall be included in expenses: (a) all Annual Service charges paid pursuant to

N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12; fb) all annual payments to the City of excess profits pursuant to N.J.S.A.

40A:20-15 or NJ.S.A. 40A:20-16; (c) an annual amount sufficient to amortize (utilizing the

straight line method-equal annual amounts) the Total Project Cost and all capital costs determined

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, of any other entity whose revenue is

included in the computation of excess profits over the term of this agreement; (d) all reasonable



annual operatmg expenses of the Entity and any other entity whose revenue is included m the

computation of excess profits including the cost of all management fees, brokerage commissions,

insurance premiums, all taxes or service charges paid, legal, accountmg, or other professional

service fees, utilities, building maintenance costs, building and office supplies and payments into

repair or maintenance reserve accounts; (e) all payments of rent including but not limited to ground

rent by the Entity; (f) all Debt Service; and

(2) there shall not be included in expenses either depreciation or obsolescence, interest on

debt, except interest which is part of Debt Service, income taxes or salaries, bonuses or other

compensation paid, directly or indirectly to directors, officers and stockholders of the entity, or

officers, partners or other persons holding a proprietary ownership interest in the entity.

xvli. Pronouns - He or it shall mean the masculine, feminine or neuter gender, the

singular, as well as the plural, as context requires.

xviii. School Board - The Jersey City Board of Education.

xix. Substantial Completion - The determination by the City that the Project, in whole

or in part, is ready for the use intended, which ordinarily shall mean the first date on which the

Project receives, or is eligible to receive, any Certificate of Occupancy whether temporary or

permanent for any portion of the Project.

xx. Termination - Any act or omission which by operation of the terms of this

Fmancial Agreement shall cause the Entity to relinquish its tax exemption.

xxi. Total Project Cost - The total cost of constructing the Project through the date a

Certificate(s) of Occupancy is issued for the entire Project, which categories of cost are set forth

in N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3(h). There shall be included from Total Project Cost the actual costs incurred

by the Entity and certified by an independent and qualified architect or engineer, which are

associated with site remediation and cleanup of environmentally hazardous materials or

contaminants in accordance with State or Federal law and any extraordinary costs incurred

including the cost of demolishing structures, relocation or removal of public utilities, cost of

relocatmg displaced residents or buildings and the clearing of title.



Section 2.1 Approval of Tax Exemption

The City hereby grants its approval for a tax exemption for all the Improvements to be

constructed and maintained in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the

provisions of the Law which Improvements shall be const'ucted on certain property known on the

Official Tax Assessor's Map of the City as: Block 7302, Lot 3.09, commonly known by the street

address 700 Washington Blvd, Jersey City, and described by metes and bounds m Exhibit, 1

attached hereto.

Approval is granted to the Entity whose Certificate of Formation is attached hereto as

Exhibit 4. Entity represents that its Certificate contains all the requisite provisions of the Law; has

been reviewed and approved by the Commissioner of the Department of Community Affairs; and

has been filed with, as appropriate, the Office of the State Treasurer or Office of the Hudson

County Clerk, all in accordance with NJ.S.A. 40A:20-5.

Entity represents that it will construct a building that is five (5) stories, twelve (12) stories,

and twenty four (24) stories, containing approximately three hundred thirty six (336) residential

rental units 16,490 with a parking lot on an adJ acent property containing one hundred eighty (181)

parking spaces [Project]; all of which is specifically described in the Application attached hereto

as Exhibits.

Section 2.4 Construction Schedule

The Entity agrees to diligently undertake to commence construction and complete the

Project in accordance with the Estimated Construction Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit 5.

The Entity represents that it is the owner of the Property upon which the Project is to be

constructed. Upon construction, the Entity represents that the Improvements will be used,

managed and controlled for the purposes set forth in this Agreement.

The Entity represents that the Improvements shall be financed in accordance with the



Financial Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 6. The Plan sets forth a good faith estimate of Total

Project Cost, the amortization rate on the Total Project Cost, the source of funds, the interest rates

to be paid on construction financmg, the source and amount of paid-in capital, and the terms of

any mortgage amortization.

The Entity represents that its good faith projections of the initial rents and other revenue

to the Project are set forth in Exhibit 7.

So long as there is compliance with the Law and this Agreement, it is understood and

agreed by the parties hereto that this Agreement shall remain m effect for tihe earlier of twenty (20)

years from the date of Substantial Completion of the Project or twenty three (23) years from the

adoption of Ordinance 19-_ on _, 2019, which approved the tax exemption.

The tax exemption shall only be effective during the period of usefulness of the Project and shall

continue in force only while the Project is owned by an entity formed and operating under the Law.

Section 4.1 Annual Service Charge

In consideration of the tax exemption, the Entity shall make the following annual payments

to the City to be remitted to the School Board for services provided to the Project:

Annual Service Charge: an amount equal to the greater of: the Minimum Annual Service

Charge, as defined in Section 1.2 xvi or an Annual Service Charge equal to 12% of the Annual

Gross Revenue. The Annual Service Charge shall be billed initially based upon the Entity's

estunate of Annual Gross Revenue, attached hereto as Exhibit 6. Thereafter, the Annual Service

Charge shall be adjusted in accordance with this Agreement. Upon its receipt of the Annual Service

Charge payment from the Entity the City shall remit an amount equal to 5% of the Annual Service

Charge to Hudson County as required by N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12(e). All other monies collected as

part of the Annual Service Charge shall be remitted to the School Board.

The Minimum Annual Service Charge pursuant to Section 1.2xv shall be due following the

execution of this Agreement. The Annual Service Charge shall be due on the first day of the month
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following the Substantial Completion of the Project. In the event the Entity fails to timely pay the

Minimum Annual Service Charge or the Annual Service Charge, the unpaid amount shall bear the

highest rate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax liens on land until paid.

The Annual Service Charge shall be adjusted, in Stages over the tenn of the tax exemption

in accordance with N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12(b) as follows:

i. Stage One: From the 1st day of the month following Substantial Completion until

the last day of the 7th year, the Annual Service Charge shall be the Annual Service Charge;

ii. Stage Two: Begmning on the 1st day of the 8t year following Substantial

Completion until the last day of the 13th year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual Service

Charge or 20% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the land and

Improvements;

iii. Stage Three: Beginning on the 1st day of the 14th year following the Substantial

Completion until the last day of the 18th year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual Service

Charge or 40% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the land and

Improvements;

iv. Stage Four: Beginning on the 1st day of the 19 year following Substantial

Completion until the last day of the 19th year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual Service

Charge or 60% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the land and

Improvements.

v. Final Stage: Beginning on the 1st day of the 20th year following Substantial

Completion through the date the tax exemption expires, an amount equal to the greater of the

Annual Service Charge or 80% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of

the land and Improvements.

The Entity is required to pay both the Annual Service Charge and the Land Tax Payments.

The Entity is obligated to make timely Land Tax Payments, including any tax on the pre-existing

improvements, in order to be entitled to a Land Tax credit against the Annual Service Charge for

the subsequent year. The Entity shall be entitled to credit for the amount, without interest, of the



Land Tax Payments made in the last four preceding quarterly installments against the Annual

Service Charge. In any quarter that the Entity fails to make any Land Tax Payments when due and

owing, such delinquency shall render the Entity ineligible for any Land Tax Payment credit against

the Annual Service Charge. No credit will be applied against the Annual Service Charge for a

partial payment of Land Taxes. In addition, the City shall have, among this remedy and other

remedies, the right to proceed against the property pursuant to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act,

N.J.S.A. 54:5-1, et seg. and/or declare a Default and tennmate this Agreement.

Section 4.4 Quarterly lastaUments / Interest

The Entity expressly agrees that the Annual Service Charge shall be made m quarterly

instalhnents on those dates when real estate tax payments are due; subject, nevertheless, to

adjustment for over or underpayment within thkty (30) days after the close of each calendar year.

In the event that the Entity fails to pay the Annual Service Charge or any other charge due under

this Agreement, the unpaid amount shall bear the highest rate of interest permitted m the case of

unpaid taxes or tax liens on the land until paid in full.

The Entity shall also pay an annual fee to the City in addition to the Annual Service Charge

and Land Tax levy. The Administrative Fee shall be calculated as two (2%) percent of each prior

year's Annual Service Charge. This fee shall be payable and due on or before December 31 of

each year, and collected m the same manner as the Annual Service Charge.

A. Contribution. The Entity will pay the City the sum of $528,735 or [$1,500 per unit

or $504,000; $1.50 per square foot of retail space or $24,735 as a contribution. The sum shall be

due and payable as follows:

i. 1/3 on or before the effective adoption date of the Ordinance approving the tax exemption;

ii. 1/3 on or before the issuance of the first of any construction permit for the Project, but no

later than six months after the date of the Financial Agreement; and

ill. 1/3 on or before the date the first of any Certificate of Occupancy is issued for the Project,



but no later than twenty-four (24) months after the date of the Financial Agreement.

It is expressly agreed and understood that the timely payments of Land Taxes, Mmimum

Annual Service Charge, Annual Service Charge, including any adjustments thereto, are Material

Conditions of this Agreement.

In order to provide the City's residents and businesses with certain employment and other

economic related opportunities, the Entity is subject to the terms and conditions of the Project

Employment and Contractmg Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit 8.

The City agrees that the Project is exempt from the requirements of Section 3-76 of the

Jersey City Municipal Code concerning required wage, benefit and leave standards for building

service workers. The City agrees that the Project is exempt from the requirements of Jersey City

Municipal Code Section 3-51G(1) requiring all janitors and unarmed security guards employed at

the Project, including by any and all tenants or subtenants of the developer, to be paid not less than

the standard hourly rate of pay and benefits for theh' respective classifications and to be receive

paid leave.

Section 6.1 Certificate of Occupancy

It is understood and agreed that it shall be the obligation of the Entity to obtain. all

Certificates of Occupancy in a timely manner so as to complete construction m accordance with

the proposed construction schedule attached hereto as Exhibit 5. The failure to secure the

Certificates of Occupancy shall subject the Property to full taxation for the period between the date

of Substantial Completion and the date the Certificate of Occupancy is obtained.

It shall be the primary responsibility of the Entity to forthwith file with both the Tax

Assessor and the Tax Collector a copy of each Certificate of Occupancy.
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Failure of the Entity to file such issued Certificate of Occupancy as required by the

preceding paragraph, shall not militate against any action or non-action, taken by the City,

including, if appropriate retroactive billing with interest for any charges determined to be due, in

the absence of such filing by the Entity.

The estimated cost basis disclosed by the Entity's application and proposed Financial

Agreement may, at the option of the City, be used as the basis for the construction cost in the

issuance of any construction permit for the Project.

The Entity agrees to maintain a system of accounting and mtemal controls established and

administered in accordance with generally accepted accountmg principles.

A. Auditor s Report: Within ninety (90) days after the close of each fiscal or calendar year,

depending on the Entity's accounting basis that the Agreement shall contmue m effect, the Entity

shall submit to the Mayor and Municipal Council and the NJ Division of Local Government

Services in the Department of Community Affairs, its Auditor's Report for the preceding fiscal or

calendar year. The Auditor's Report shall include, but not be limited to gross revenue, and the

terms and interest rate on any mortgage(s) associated with the purchase or construction of the

Project and such details as may relate to the fmancial affairs of the Entity and to its operation and

performance hereunder, pursuant to the Law and this Agreement. The Report shall clearly identify

and calculate the Allowable Net Profit for the Entity during the previous year, the excess of which

shall be paid to the City each year an excess profit is generated.

B. Total Project Cost Audit: Within ninety (90) days after Substantial Completion of the

Project, the Entity shall submit to the Mayor, Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City

Clerk, who shall advise those municipal officials required to be advised, an audit of Total Project

Cost, including but not limited to an audit of actual construction costs as certified by the Project

architect.
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C. Disclosure Statement: On the anniversary date of the execution of this Agreement, and

each and every year thereafter while this agreement is in effect, the Entity shall submit to the

Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City Clerk, who shall advise those municipal

officials required to be advised, a Disclosure Statement listing the persons havmg an ownership

interest in the Project, and the extent of the ownership interest of each and such additional

information as the City may request from time to time. All disclosures shall include ownership

interests of the individual persons owning any corporate interest in the Entity.

The Entity shall permit the inspection of its property, equipment, buildings and other

facilities of the Project and, if deemed appropriate or necessary, any other related Entity by

representatives duly authorized by the City or the NJ Division of Local Government Services in

the Department of Community Affairs. It shall also permit, upon request, examination and audit

of its books, contracts, records, documents and papers. Such examination or audit shall be made

during the reasonable hours of the business day, in the presence of an officer or agent designated

by the Entity for any year during which the tax exemption financial agreement was in full force

and effect.

All costs incurred by the City to conduct a review of the Entity's audits, including

reasonable attorneys' fees if appropriate, shall be billed to the Entity and paid to the City as part

of the Entity's Annual Service Charge. Delinquent payments shall accme interest at the same rate

as for a delinquent service charge.

During the period of tax exemption as provided herein, the Entity shall be subject to a

limitation of its profits pursuant to the provisions ofN.J.S.A. 40A;20-15.

The Entity shall have the right to establish a reserve against vacancies, unpaid rentals, and

reasonable contingencies m an amount equal to five (5%) percent of the Gross Revenue of the

Entity for the last full fiscal year preceding the year and may retain such part of the Excess Net

Profits as is necessary to eliminate a deficiency in that reserve, as provided in NJ.S.A. 40A:20-
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15. The reserve is to be non-cumulative, it being intended that no further credits thereto shall be

permitted after the reserve shall have attained the allowable level of five (5%) percent of the

preceding year's Gross Revenue.

In the event the Net Profits of the Entity, in any year, exceeds the Allowable Net Profits

for such year, then the Entity^within one hundred and twenty (120) days after the end of the year,

shall pay such excess Net Profits to the City as an additional annual service charge; provided,

however, that the Entity may maintain a reserve as determined pursuant to aforementioned

paragraph 8.1. The calculation of the Entity's Excess Net Profits shall include those project costs

directly attributable to site remediation and cleanup expenses and any other costs excluded in the

definition of Total Project Cost in Section 1.2 (xx) of this Agreement. If the Service Charge is

calculated as a percentage of Total Project Costs, such costs must be included in the Total Project

Costs for purposes ofcalculatmg the Annual Service Charge.

The date of termination, expiration or sale shall be considered to be the close of the fiscal

year of the Entity. Within ninety (90) days after such date, the Entity shall pay to the City the

amount of the reserve, if any, maintained by it pursuant to this section and the balance of the Excess

Net Profit, if any.

Section 9.1 Approval of Sale

Any sale or transfer of the Project, shall be void unless approved in advance by Ordinance

of the Municipal Council. It is understood and agreed that the City, on written application by the

Entity, will not unreasonably withhold its consent to a sale of the Project and the transfer of this

Agreement provided 1) the new Entity does not own any other Project subject to long term tax

exemption at the tune of transfer; 2) the new Entity is formed and eligible to operate under the

Law; 3) the Entity is not then in default of this Agreement or the Law; 4) the Entity s obligations

under this Agreement are fully assumed by the new Entity; and 5) the Entity pays m full the

maximum transfer fee, currently 2% of the Annual Service Charge, as permitted by N.J.S.A.
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40A:20-10(d).

Nothing herein shall prohibit any transfer of the ownership interest in the Entity itself

provided that the transfer, if greater than 10%, is disclosed to the City m the annual disclosure

statement or in correspondence sent to the City in advance of the filing of the annual disclosure

statement.

Where the consent or approval of the City is sought for approval of a change in ownership

or sale or transfer of the Project, the Entity shall be required to pay to the City a new tax exemption

application fee for the legal and administrative services of the City, as it relates to the review,

preparation and/or submission of documents to the Municipal Council for appropriate action on

the requested assignment. The fee shall be non-refmidable.

During the term of this Agreement, the Project shall be maintamed and operated in

accordance with the provisions of the Law. The operation of Project under this Agreement shall

not only be termmable as provided by NJ.SA. 40A:20-1, et seg., as amended and supplemented,

but also by a Default under this Agreement. The Entity's failure to comply with the Law shall

constitute a Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have the

right to terminate the tax exemption.

During the term of this Agreement, the Entity must comply with Executive Order 2002-

005, and Ordinance 02-075, requiring Written Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative Status. The

Entity's failure to comply with the Executive Order or the Ordmance shall constitute a Default

under this Agreement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to terminate the

tax exemption.
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Default shall be failure of the Entity to conform with the terms of this Agreement or failure

of the Entity to perform any obligation imposed by the Law, beyond any applicable notice, cure

or grace period.

Should the Entity be in Default, the City shall send written notice to the Entity of the

Default [Default Notice]. The Default Notice shall set forth with particularity the basis of the

alleged Default. The Entity shall have thirty (30) days, from receipt of the Default Notice, to cure

any Default which shall be the sole and exclusive remedy available to the Entity. However, if, m

the reasonable opinion of the City, the Default cannot be cured within thirty (30) days using

reasonable diligence, the City will extend the time to cure.

Subsequent to such thirty (30) days, or any approved extension, the City shall have the

right to terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 11.1.

Should the .Entity be in default due to a failure to pay any charges defmed as Material

Conditions in Section 4.6, the Entity shall not be subject to the default procedural remedies as

provided herem but shall allow the City to proceed immediately to terminate the Agreement as

provided in Article XI herein.

The City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to proceed against the property

pursuant to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, NJ.S.A. 54:5-1, et seg. In order to secure the full

and timely payment of the Annual Service Charge, the City on its own behalf, or on behalf of the

Trustee, reserves the right to prosecute an In Rem Tax Foreclosure action against the Project Area

in accordance with Applicable Law, as more fully set forth m this Financial Agreement.

In addition, the City may declare a Default and terminate this Agreement. Any default

arising out of the Entity s failure to pay Land Taxes, the Minim-um Annual Service Charge,

Admirdstrative Fes, Affordable Housing Contribution or the Annual Service Charge shall not be

subject to the default procedural remedies as provided herein, but shall allow the City to proceed
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immediately to terminate the Agreement as provided herein. All of the remedies provided in this

Agreement to the City, 'and all rights and remedies granted to it by law and equity shall be

cumulative and concurrent. No termination of any provision of this Agreement shall deprive the

City of any of its remedies or actions against the Entity because of its failure to pay Land Taxes,

the Mimmum Annual Service Charge, Administrative Fes, Affordable Housing Contribution or

Annual Service Charge. This right shall apply to arrearages that are due and owing at the time or

which, under the terms hereof, would m the future become due as if there had been no termination.

Further, the bringing of any action for Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge,

Adtaimstrative Fes, Affordable Housing Contribution or the Annual Service Charge or for breach

of covenant or the resort to any other remedy herein provided for the recovery of Land Taxes shall

not be construed as a waiver of the rights to terminate the tax exemption or proceed with a tax sale

or Tax Foreclosure action or any other specified remedy.

In the event of a Default on the part of the Entity to pay any charges set forth in Article IV,

the City among its other remedies, reserves the right to proceed against the Entity's land and

property, in the manner provided by the In Rem Foreclosure Act, and any act supplementary or

amendatory thereof. Wlienever the word taxes appear, or are applied, directly or impliedly to mean

taxes or municipal liens on land, such statutory provisions shall be read, as far as is pertinent to

this Agreement, as if the charges were taxes or municipal liens on land.

In the event the Entity fails to cure or remedy the Default within the time period provided

in Section 10.2, the City may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to the

Entity [Notice of Termination].

The Entity may notify the City that it will relinquish its status as a tax exempt Project, in

any year after the Effective Date of this Agreement, as of the January 1st of the year next ensuing.

The Notice of Voluntary Termination must be received by the City no later than October 1s of the

tax year preceding the calendar year m which the termination is to occur. As of the date so set, the
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tax exemption, the Annual Service Charges and the profit and dividend restrictions shall terminate.

However, under no circumstances will the Entity be entitled to any refund, m whole or in part, of

any funds paid to the City, including but not Imiited to any Administrative Fees and the Affordable

Housing Contribution. In addition, the due date for all Affordable Housing Contribution and any

other fees that the Entity agreed to pay under this Agreement, shall be accelerated so that all fees

to be paid shall be due on January 1 as a condition precedent of the voluntary termination.

Within ninety (90) days after the date of termination, whether by affirmative action of the

Entity or by virtue of the provisions of the Law or pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, the

Entity shall provide a final accounting and pay to the City the reserve, if any, pursuant to the

provisions ofN.J.S.A. 40A:20-13 and 15 as well as any remaining excess Net Profits. For purposes

of rendering a final accounting the termination of the Agreement shall be deemed to be the end of

the fiscal year for the Entity.

Upon Termination or expiration of this Agreement, the tax exemption for the Project shall

expire and the Land and the Improvements thereon shall thereafter be assessed and conventionally

taxed according to the general law applicable to other nonexempt taxable property in the City.

Section 13.1 Arbitration

In the event of a breach of the within Agreement by either of the parties hereto or a dispute

arising between the parties in reference to the terms and provisions as set forth herein, either party

may apply to the Superior Court of New Jersey by an appropriate proceeding, to settle and resolve

the dispute m such fashion as will tend to accomplish the purposes of the Law. In the event the

Superior Court shall not entertain jurisdiction, then the parties shall submit the dispute to the

American Arbitration Association in New Jersey to be determined in accordance with its rules and

regulations in such a fashion to accomplish the purpose of the Long Temi Tax Exemption Law.

Section 13.2 Appeal of Assessment of the Land or Improvements

In comiection with the amount of the Staged Adjustments that is, taxes otherwise due,
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pursuant to Section 4.2 hereof and N.J.S.A. 40A;20~12, the Entity shall be permitted to file a tax

appeal with the Hudson County Board of Taxation or the Tax Court of the Superior Court of New

Jersey in the event a dispute arises over the value of the Land and Improvements on the Property.

Nothing contained in this Financial Agreement or otherwise shall constitute a waiver or

relinquishment by the City of any rights and remedies, including, without limitation, the right to

tenninate the Agreement and tax exemption for violation of any of the conditions provided herein.

Nothing herein shall be deemed to limit the City's right to audit or recover any amount which the

City has under law, in equity, or under any provision of this Agreement.

It is understood and agreed that in the event the City shall be named as party defendant in

any action by a third party alleging any breach, default or a violation of any of the provisions of

this Agreement and/or the provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et se^, the Entity shall indemnify and

hold the City harmless against any and all liability, loss, cost and expense (including reasonable

attorneys' fees and costs), arising out of this Agreement. In addition, the Entity also agrees to

defend itself in any lawsuit at its own expense. Furthermore, the Entity expressly waives all

statutory or common law defenses or legal principles which would defeat the purposes of this

mderanification. However, the City maintains the right to intervene as a party thereto, to which

intervention the Entity consents; the expense thereof to be borne by the City.

Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either party to the other shall be sent by

certified or registered mail, return receipt requested.

When sent by the City to the Entity the notice shall be addressed to:

Wave Urban Renewal LLC
40 West 57th Street, 23rd Floor
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New York, NY 10019
Att: Arnold Lehman, Esq.

and
Connell Foley, LLP
Harborside Financial Center
2510 Plaza Drive
Jersey City, NJ 07311
Att: James C. McCann, Esq.

unless prior to giving of notice the Entity shall have notified the City in writing otherwise.

In addition, provided the City is sent a formal written notice in accordance with this

Agreement, of the name and address of Entity's Mortgagee, the City agrees to provide such

Mortgagee with a copy of any notice required to be sent to the Entity.

When sent by the Entity to the City, it shall be addressed to:

City of Jersey City, Office of the City Clerk
280 Grove Street
Jersey City, New Jersey 07302
Attn: Robert Byme

with copies sent to the Corporation Counsel, the Business Administrator, and the Tax Collector

unless prior to the giving of notice, the City shall have notified the Entity otherwise. The notice

to the City shall identify the Project to which it relates, (i.e., the Urban Renewal Entity and the

Property's Block and Lot number).

If any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement or the Application, except a Material

Condition, shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this

Agreement or the application of such term, covenant or condition to persons or circumstances other

than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each

term, covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be valid and be enforced to the fullest extent

permitted by law.

If a Material Condition shall be Judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable and
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provided the Entity is not m Default of this Agreement, the parties shall cooperate with each other

to take the actions reasonably required to restore the Agreement in a manner contemplated by the

parties and the Law. This shall include, but not be limited to the authorization and re-execution of

this Agreement in a form reasonably drafted to effectuate the original intent of the parties and the

Law. However, the City shall not be required to restore the Agreement if it would modify a

Material Condition, the amount of the periodic adjustments or any other term of this Agreement

which would result m any economic reduction or loss to the City.

This Agreement shall be consb-ued and enforced m accordance with the laws of the State

of New Jersey, and without regard to or aid of any presumption or other rule requiring construction

against the party drawing or causing this Agreement to be drawn since counsel for both the Entity

and the City have combined in their review and approval of same.

The parties agree that in the event of a conflict between the Application and the language

contained In the Agreement, the Agreement shall govern and prevail. In the event of conflict

between the Agreement and the Law, the Law shall govern and prevail.

There have been no oral representations made by either of the parties hereto which are not

contained m this Agreement. This Agreement, the Ordinance authorizing the Agreement, and the

Application constitute the entire Agreement between the parties and there shall be no modifications

thereto other than by a written instrument approved and executed by both parties and delivered to

each party.

This Agreement and all conditions in the Ordmance of the Municipal Council approving

this Agreement are incorporated in this Agreement and made a part hereof.

In their dealings with each other, utmost good faith is required from the Entity and the City.
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It is expressly agreed and understood that the fees detailed herein represent all potential

fees chargeable to the Entity. During the term of this Agreement the City shall not impose any new

or increase in taxes (real estate or otherwise), charges, fees, impositions of any type or kind on the

Property, the Project, the Entity or the tenants or occupants of the Project, and any executive order,

directive or policy, municipal ordinance or legislation, or municipal agency directive which

imposes any new or increase in taxes (real estate or otherwise), charges, fees, or impositions of

any type or kind on real property, multi-famlly mixed use projects, urban renewal entities, owners,

or the tenants or occupants (residential, retail or commercial) of multi-family mixed use property

generally shall be deemed ex post facto, of no force and effect, and not applicable to the Project,

Property, the Entity, or the tenants or occupants of the Project.

The followmg Exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set forth at

length herein:
1. Metes and Bounds description of the Project;

2. Ordinance of the City authorizing the execution of this Agreement;

3. The Application with Exhibits;

4. Certificate of the Entity;

5. Estimated Construction Schedule;

6. The Financial Plan for the undertaking of the Project;

7. Good Faith Estimate of Initial Rents;

8. Form of Architect's Certification of Actual Consfruction Costs.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused these presents to be executed the day
and year first above written.
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This Project Employment & Contracting Agreement is made as of the _day of
_, 2019, between the CITY OF JERSEY CITY [City] having its

principal office at 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, NJ 07302, and WAVE URJBAN RENEWAL
LLC [Recipient], having its principal office at c/o Newport Associates Development Company,
111 Town Square, 3rd Floor, Jersey City, NJ 07310.

The following words and terms, when used in this agreement, shall have-th'e-following

meanings unless the context clearly indicates otherwise.

1. "City" means the Business Administrator of the City of Jersey City, or his designee,

mcluding any person or entity which enters mto an agreement with the City to

implement, in whole or m part, this agreement.

2. "Contractor" means any party performmg or offering to perform a prime contract on

behalf of the Recipient.

3. Construction Contract means any agreement for the erection, repair, alteration or
demolition of any buildmg, structure, bridge, roadway or other improvement on a Project

Site.

4. "DEO" means the Division of Economic Opportunity under the Department of

Administration, located at 280 Grove Street. DEO is in charge of Project Employment &
Contracting coordination and monitoriug on projects receiving abatements.

5. "Economic Incentive" means a tax abatement or tax exemption for a property or project

which requires approval of the Municipal Council.

6. "Employment" includes positions created as a result of internal promotions, terminations,
or expansions within the Recipient's work force which are to be filled by new employees.

However, positions filled through promotion from within the Recipient's existing work
force are not covered positions under this agreement.

7. Jersey City Employment and Training Corporation or "JCEPT" means the non-profit

quasi public Entity with whom the City has an operatmg agreement to undertake certain
employment services.

8. "Local Business" means a bona fide business located in Jersey City.

9. "Minority" means a person who is defined as such under federal or state law.



10. "Minority or Woman Owned Local Busmess" means a bona fide business located in

Jersey City which is fifty-one (51%) percent or more owned and controlled by either a
Minority or woman.

11.. "Permanent Jobs" mean newly created long term salaried positions, whether permanent,

temporary, part time or seasonal.

12. "Project or Project Site" means the specific work location or locations specified in the

contract.

13. The "Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator" or "Coordinator is the employee
m the Department of Admmistration, who is m charge of overseeing compliance of
Project Employment & Contracting Agreements. Contractors and developers engaged in

projects covered by Project Employment & Contracting Agreements will direct mqutries
to the Coordmator. The Coordmator may incorporate referrals from JCEPT or its One-

Stop Career Center if the City's agreement with JCEPT so provides.

14. The "Project Employment & Contracting Monitor" or "Monitor" is the employee in the

Department of Administration who is in charge of monitoring the site, collecting the
reports and documentation, and other day-to-day Project Employment & Contracting

administration as stipulated by this agreement.

15. The "Receipt's Officer" is an employee of the Recipient who is designated by the

Recipient to make sure the Recipient is m compliance with the Recipient's Project
Employment & Contracting agreement.

16. "Recipient" means any individual, partnership, association, organization, corporation or
other entity; whether public or private, or for profit or non-profit, or agent thereof, which

receives an Economic Incentive also referred to as a developer.

17. "The Registry" or "Jersey City Employment Registry" means a data base mamtained by

the City or its designee, of Jersey City residents seeking employment and Local
Businesses, including Minority or Woman Owned Local Businesses, seeking contracts.

18. " Subcontract" means a bmding legal relationship involving performance of a contract that

is part of a prime contract.

19. "Subcontractor" means a third party that is engaged by the prune Contractor to perform

under a subcontract all or part of the work included in an original contract.

20. "Substantial Completion" means the determination by the City that the Project, in whole
or in part, is ready for the use intended, which ordinarily shall mean the date on which the

Project receives, or is eligible to receive any Certificate of Occupancy for any portion of
the Project.



H, ' Parposes Coastracttoa Jobs, Bsstn©§§ Coatractiag^ Permaiffiefflf Jobg

The City wishes to assure contmumg employment opportunities for City residents,.
particularly residents who are Minorities, and business opportunities for Local Businesses,

especially Minority and Women Owned Local Busmesses, with employers located in or
relocatmg to the City who are the Recipients of Economic Incentives. The City has determined

to accomplish that goal by requiring the Recipient of an Economic Incentive to act in Good
Faith, as defined herein, and discharge its obligations under this Agreement. To the extent

mandated by State and Federal law and so long as the Entity discharges its Good Faith
obligations imder this agreement, the City acknowledges that the Recipient and its contractors
are free to hire whomever they choose.

Because this project is not subject to the terms of a Project Labor Agreement during

construction, this agreement shall apply to all Construction Jobs, Business Contracts and non-

construction Permanent Jobs. Recipients are also required to notify any commercial tenants of

employment services available from the City.

The Recipient shall designate a principal officer of its firm to be responsible for
administering the agreement detailed herein auid to report to and confer with the City in order to

discharge its Good Faith obligations as defined in this agreement. This officer should be
designated as the Project Employment & Contracting Officer.

The Recipient shall send a letter designating its "Project Employment & Contractmg
Compliance Officer" to the Project Employm.ent & Contracting Coordmator prior to any
preconstruction meetings. An example of this letter can be found in Exhibit A. This Officer

should also be present for all preconstruction meetings.

The Recipient should send a letter regarding the "Project Employment & Contracting
Compliance Officer" to the employees of the Recipient's company. An example of this letter

can be found in Exhibit B.

This agreement shall be m effect for a period co-temunus with the effective period of the
tax exemption [the Economic Incentive]. Thus, it will commence on the date the City Council

adopted Ordinance _, approving the tax exemption and terminate the earlier of

23 years from the date of the adoption of that Ordinaace or 20 years from the date of Substantial
Completion of the Project.

In the event the Recipient is able to demonstrate that its work force already meets the
goals set forth below or is able to meet such goals during the term of this agreement, the

Recipient shall be required to submit the periodic certified mamung and certified payroll reports
described below to confirm ongoing compliance. The goals are as follows:



1. ' Employment (Cosastructiom and Permanent Jobs): The Recipient shall make a Good

Faith effort to achieve the goal of a work force representing twenty (20%) percent of
labor hours who are Minorities and who are women.

2. Business Contracting: The Recipient shall make a Good Faith effort to achieve the goal
of awarding ten (10%) percent of the dollar amount of its contracts to Mmority or

Women Owned Businesses.

1. Comstructioffl Jobs: Recipient shall comply with all of the following conditions:

A. Initial.Contractmg Report

i) The Recipient shall submit the mitial conb'acting report. A letter must be
forwarded with requests for quotation or bid to the Office of Diversity and
Inclusion for minority contractors or vendors for any construction or building

operating goods, services and sub-contracting opportunities. An example of this
letter is given m Exhibit C.

ii) The Recipient shall contact those businesses to submit bids. An example of this
letter can be found m Exhibit D.

B. Initial Manning Report:

i) Prior to the commencement of their work on the. Project, the Recipient shall
obtain from all Contractors/Sub contractors an Initial Manning Report.

ii) The Initial Maiming Report should contain an estimate of the total hours in each
construction trade or craft and the number of hours to be worked, including a list

of the number of minority residents and women Uiat will work m each trade or

craft, mcludmg the work hours to be performed by such employees of any and all
Contractors and Subcontractors. Attached hereto as Exhibit _ is the Recipient's

Initial Manning Report.

iii) The Initial Maiming Report shall be filed with the Project Employment and
Contractmg Monitor, who must accept the Report prior to the Recipient entering

into any construction contract. An example of this acceptance letter is given m

Exhibit

C. Compliance Statement

Prior to commencement of their work on the Project, each Contractor or Subcontractor

must agree in writing to comply with this agreement and the employment goals elaborated
herein. An example of this Compliance Statement can be found in Exhibit _.
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D. Monthly Reports:.

Manning Report (after construction commences)

i) The .Recipient will submit Monthly Project Manning Reports to the Project
Employment & Contracting Monitor in DEO under the Department of
Administration by the seventh day of the month followmg the month during
which the work is performed, for the duration of the contract.

ii) The report will accurately reflect the total hours in each construction trade or craft

and the number of hours worked, including a list of the number of mmority

resident and women resident workers m each trade or craft, and will list separately
the work hours performed by such employees of the Contractor and each of its

Subcontractors during the previous month. The Monthly Mannmg Report shall be
in the form attached hereto as Appendix G.

iii) The Recipient is responsible for maintammg or causing the Contractor to maintam
all records supporting the reported work hours of its Contractors or

Subcontractors.

Certified Payroll Report

i) The Recipient will fmmlsh the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor with
copies of its weekly Certified Payroll reports. The reports will specify the
residence, gender and ethmc/racial origin of each worker, work hours and rate of

pay and benefits provided. The Certified Payroll report shall be in the form
attached hereto as Exhibit

ii) Payroll reports must be submitted on a monthly basis with the Monthly Manmn^
Report or the Recipient is no longer m compliance.

E. Annual Equal Employment Opportunity Reports

Prior to commencement of work on the Project, the Recipient will submit copies of the

most recent Local Union Report (EEO-3) and Apprenticeship Information Report (EEO-2)
which are required to be filed with the US Commission of Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission by the collective bargaining unit and annually thereafter.

F. Other Reports

In addition to the above reports, the Recipient shall furnish such reports or other

documents to the City as the City may request from time to time in order to carry out the

purposes of this agreement.

G. Records Access



The Recipient will insure that the City will have reasonable access to all records and files
reasonably necessary to confirm the accuracy of the information provided in the reports.

H. Work Site Access For Monitor

i) The'Uty will physically monitor the work sites subject to'thls agreement to verify
the accuracy of the monthly reports. Each work site will be physically monitored
approximately once every two weeks, and more frequently if, it is deemed
reasonably necessary by the City. The City's findings shall be recorded in a Site
Visit Report." An example of a bi-weekly site visit report can be found in Exhibit

u) The Recipient shall require the Contractor and Sub-contractor to cooperate with

the City's site monitoring activities and mform the City as to the dates they are
working at the Project site. This includes specifically instructing the on-site
construction manager about the monitoring process, and informing him/her that
the monitor will contact him/her to set up an initial meeting.. In the case of

projects with multiple locations, the Recipient shall inform the City of the dates
they are working at each site Iocation(s) where they are working, in order to

facilitate the monitoring.

1. Permanent Jobs: Recipient shall comply with all of the following conditions:

A. Pre-hirins Job Awareness: At least eight (8) months prior to the hiring of a Recipient s
permanent workforce, the Project Employment & Contracting officer for the Recipient

will meet with the Coordinator, including the director of JCETP to discuss how the
Recipient plans to hire its permanent workforce. The following issues should be covered

in this meeting:

i) whether subcontractors will be used in fhe hiring process.

ii) the specific types of jobs that need to be filled.
iii) the qualifications needed for these particular jobs.
iv) possible training programs offered by the permanent employer.

v) the Recipient's goals and how It plans to meet these goals.
vl) any other issues which need to be addressed.

B. Subcontractor Notification — If the Recipient decides to subcontract any portion or all of

its permanent workforce, then the Recipient must receive a signed acknowledgment from

the subcontractmg party that it will abide by the Project Employment •& Contracting
Agreement before said subcontractor begins staffing permanent employees. The

Recipient must forward a copy of the signed acknowledgment to the Project Employment
& Contracting Monitor, An example of this signed acknowledgment can be found in

Appendix 3.



C. Subcontractor Pre-Hiring_ Job, Awareness Meeting "- Each subcontractor hired to staff

permanent job positions must appoint a Project Employment & Contracting Officer 'to
meet with the head of the Registry to discuss the same issues presented above in VI
l.A.(i)-(vi) and notify the City.

D. Subcontractors of Subcontractors—Subcontractors of subcontractors are subject to the

same requirements for the initial subcontractors.

E. Documentation of Hiring .Plan-Once the Pre-Hiring Job Awareness Meeting has takeii

place, the Recipient must put together a document with goals and totals for future
permanent employment needs. This plan should summarize all that was discussed m the

Pre-Hiring Awareness Meeting, list estimates for manpower needs, set residential and

minority employment goals commensurate with the Project Employment & Contracting
Agreement, and show how the Recipient plans to meet these goals. An example of this

plan is found m Appendix 4.

F. Pre-Hirmg Notification: At least ten (10) working days prior to advertising for any
employees, the Recipient or the Recipient's subcontractor shall provide the DEO and the
JCEPT with a written notice, which shall state the job title, job description and minimum
qualifications, rate of pay, hours of work and the hiring date for each position to be filled,
in qualitative and objective terms which will enable the referral of qualified applicants to
the Recipient-

G. Advertisement: At the request of the City, or because the City does not have qualified

applicants to refer to the Recipient, the Recipient will place an advertisement for the jobs
in a newspaper which is regularly published in Jersey City. The Recipient must furnish
the DEO with a copy of this advertisement.

H. Pre-Hiring Interview: The Recipient shall interview any qualified applicants referred to it
pursuant to the agreement. In the event advertisement is required, the Recipient agrees to

mtemew any qualified persons respondmg to the advertisement.

I. . Monthly Employment Reports: The Recipient will submit written employment reports to
the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in the form to be provided by the City.
The report will be submitted on the 1 day of every month. It will describe each job and
state whether the job was filled or held by a City resident, mmority resident or woman
resident and date of hire. The report will explain in writing the reasons why any qualified
referred applicant (or m the event advertisement is required^ any qualified person
responding to the advertisement) was not hired and the reason therefore. The form of this

report shall be in substantially the form found m Appendix 5, subject to such revision as
the City deems appropriate and reasonable. Monthly reports may be extended to semi-
annually reports once the initial workforce is hired.

J. Record Access: The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access, to all files

and records including payroll and personnel information reasonably necessary to confirm

the accuracy of the information set forth in the semi-amual reports.



K. Work Place Access: The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to the

site to physically monitor the work site to verify the accuracy of the information set forth
in the any reports.

L. Other Reports, Documents: In addition to the above reports, the Recipient shall furnish

such reports or other documents that the City may request from time to time m order to
implement the purposes of this agreement.

M. Incorporation of Aereement: The Recipient shall incorporate the provisions" of this

Agreement in all contracts, agreements and purchase orders for labor with any service,
maintenance, security pr management agent or Contractor engaged by the Recipient
•whose personnel will be assigned to the Recipient project.

VIII. Goo.d FattSi DefiiEied. Bu§mes§ Contracts

A. Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following conditions:

i) Solicitation of Businesses:

a) One month before the solicitation for any goods or services, the Recipient must

forward a letter with a description of the goods or services to the Project

Employment and Contracting Coordmator;

b) The Recipient shall provide the City with a written Purchasing Report every
month. The form of this report shall be in substantially the form found in
Appendix 6.

c) Pre-Hirmg Notification: At least ten (10) working days prior to advertising for
any employees, the Recipient or the Recipient's subcontractor shall provide the

DEO and the JCEPT with a written notice, which shall state the job title, job
description and minimum qualifications, rate of pay, hours of work and the hiring

date for each position to be filled, in qualitative and objective terms which will
enable the referral of qualified. applicants to the Recipient.

d) Advertisement: At the request of the City, or because the City does not have
qualified applicants to refer to the Recipient, the Recipient will place an
advertisement for the jobs in a newspaper which is regularly published in Jersey
City. The Recipient must furnish the DEO with a copy of this advertisement.

e) Pre-Hirme Interview: The Recipient shall interview any qualified applicants
referred to it pursuant to the agreement. In the event advertisement is required, the

Recipient agrees to interview any qualified persons respondiug to the
advertisement.

f) Monthly Employment Reports-: The Recipient will submit written employment
reports to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in the form to'be
provided by fhe City. The report will be submitted on the 1st day of every month.



It will describe each job and state whetller the job was filled or held by a City
resident, minority resident or woman resident and date of hire. The report will

explain in writing the reasons why any qualified referred applicant (or in the event
advertisement is required, any qualified person responding to the advertisement)
was not hired and the reason therefore. The form of this report shall be m

substantially the form found in Appendix 5, subject to such revision as the City
deems appropriate and reasonable. Monthly reports may be extended to semi-
annually reports once the initial workforce is hired.

^) Record Access: The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to all
files and records including payroll and personnel information reasonably
necessary to confirm the accuracy of the information set forth m the seml-annual

reports.

h) Work Place Access^ The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access
to the site to physically monitor the work -site to verify the accuracy of the
information set forth in the any reports.

i) Other Reports, Documents: In addition to the above reports, the Recipient shall

famish such reports or other documents that the City may request from time to

time in order to implement the purposes of this agreement.

j) Incorporation of Agreement: The Recipient shall incorporate the provisions of this
Agreement m all contracts, agreements and purchase orders for labor with any
service, maintenance, security or management agent or Contractor engaged by the
Recipient whose personnel will be assigned to the Recipient project.

The Recipient pledges not to use local and local minority vendors solely as conduits for
vendors that are not local aud- minority owned. Any discovery by Project Employment

and Contracting Monitor of a Recipient, using the masthead of a local or minority

owned business as a way to get credit for local or minority employment when it should
not, will immediately subject the Recipient to the penalties listed in Section VIII (d)
below.

Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following conditions:

A. The Recipient shall send all tenants of commercial space, including retail space, within

the Project Site a Tenant Employment Services Guide in the form attached as Appendbc
7.

B. The Recipient shall require tenants of commercial, including any retail space to complete

an annual questionnaire concemitig the composition of the work force of each tenant. The

completed questionnaire be submitted to the Project Employment & Contractmg Monitor.

The questionnaire shall be m the form attached as Appendix 8.



The Recipient will send the results of its solicitation to the Project Employment &
Contracting Monitor no later than December 1st of each year.

1. Advisory Notice: The City will issue a written Advisory Notice to the Recipient if there
is non-compliance with a Good Faith requirement as defined in this agreement. The

Advisory Notice shall explain in sufficient detail the basis of the alleged violation. The
Recipient shall have 7 days to correct the violation.

2. Violation Notice: If the alleged violation set forth in the Advisory Notice has not been
corrected to the satisfaction of the City the City shall issue a Violation Notice to- the
Recipient. The Violation Notice shall explain in sufficient detail the basis of the alleged,
continuing violation. The Recipient will have three (3) working days to correct the
violation.

3. Correcting the Violation: Either or both the Advisory Notice or.the Violation Notice may
be considered corrected if the Recipient satisfies Ae requirements of this agreement and

so advises the City in writing, subject to confirmation by the City.

4. Extension of Time to Correction: Either the Advisory Notice or the Violation Notice
may be held in abeyance and the tune for correction extended if the Recipient enters into

satisfactory written agreement with, the City for corrective action wliich is designed to

achieve compliance. If Recipient fails to abide by the terms of such agreement the
violation will be considered not corrected.

If the City determmes that the Recipient is in violation after the expiration of the cure
periods, the Recipient agrees that the City shall be entitled to the liquidated damages
provided below.

While reserving any other remedies the City may have at law or equity for a material
breach of the above terms and conditions, the parties agree that damages for violations of

this agreement by the Recipient cannot be calculated within any reasonable degree of
mathematical certainty. Therefore, the parties agree that upon the occurrence of a
material breach of any of the above terms and conditions and after notice and expiration

of any cure period, the City will be entitled to liqmdated damages from the Recipient in
the following amounts:

A. Failure to file Initial Manning Report (Construction Jobs) or Pre-Hiring Notification
(Permanent Jobs) or Pre-Contracting Notification (Business Contracts): an amount equal

to Five percent (5%) increase in the estimated annual service charge as set forth- m the
Financial Agreement for each quarter or part thereof that the Recipient is non compliant.

B. Failure to conduct Pre-hiring Interviews or submit Compliance Statement (Submit

description of goods or services, (Business Contracting): aa amount equal to Three (3%)
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percent of the estimated annual service charge as set forth In the Financial Agreement

for each quarter or part thereof that the Recipient is non compliant.

B. Failure to allow record or work place access or submit any other required reports (all
categories): an amount equal to Three (3%) percent increase service charge as set forth

m the Financial Agreement for each quarter .or part thereof that the Recipient is non

compliant.

C. The use of the local or local minority'business' masthead for labor or work supplied by a

non local or local minority vendor: An amount equal to Ten (10%) service charge as set

forth in the Financial Agreement for each quarter or part thereof, the Recipient is non
compliant.

Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either party to tlie other, shall be sent by
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed as follows:

1. When sent by the City to the-Recipient it shall be addressed to:

Wave Urban Renewal, LLC
c/o Newport Associates Development Company

Ill Town Square, y Floor

Jersey City, NJ 07310
Att: Arnold S. Lehman, Esq.

and

Connell Foley, LLP
Harborside 5
185 Hudson Street, Suite 2510
Jersey City, NJ 07311 . •

Attn.: James C. McCann, Esq.

2. When sent by the Recipient to the City, it shall be addressed to:

City of Jersey City
Department ofAdmmistration

Division of Economic Opportunity
Project Employment & Contractiug Monitor
280 Grove Street
Jersey City, New Jersey 07302
Att: Division Director

and

Director of Jersey City Employment and Training Program, Inc
895 Bergen Avenue—2nd Floor

Jersey City, NJ 07306
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Att: Executive Director

with separate copies to the Mayor and the Business Admiaisb'ator.

These forms are examples only and shall be in substantially the form on file m the Division of
Economic Opportunity, subject tcrmodifications from time to time by fhe City as necessary or
appropriate.

1. Letter designating Recipient's Project Employment & Contracting Officer
2. Letter from Recipient to Employees of Recipient's Company
3. Acknowledgment ofPECA compliance of Subcontractor

4. Example of Hiring Plan
5. Example of Monthly Employment Report
6. Example of Monthly Purchasmg Report
7. Tenant Employment Sei-vices Guide

8. Commercial Retail Annual Questionnaire

This agreement shall take effect on the date that the Economic Incentive is approved by the
Municipal Council.

To the extent requked by State and Federal Law and so long as the Entity discharges its Good
Faith obligations under this agreement, the City agrees and acknowledges that the Recipient and its
contractors are free to hire whomever they choose. If this agreement conflicts with any collective

bargaming agreemen.t, the City agrees to defer to such agreements so long as the Recipient provides the

City with a copy of the offending provision m the collective bargaming agreement.

In the event there are any conflicts between this Agreement and any Project Labor Agreement,
then as it pertains to construction jobs covered by the PLA, fhe Project Labor Agreement shall govern.
Wherever, possible, this Agreement shall be interpreted consistently with the Project Labor Agreement.
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DATE: July 9, 2019

TO: John Hallanan (for Distribution to City Council)

FROM: Ernest Borja

SUBJECT: Twenty Year Tax Abatement Application: Wave Urban Renewal, LLC - Market Rate
Residential Project w/ Commercial Component-700 Washington Boulevard

CC: B. Platt, E. Toloza. R. Lavarro, 0. Mata, J. Abuan

The applicant, Wave Urban Renewal LLC, has applied for a twenty (20) Year tax abatement under N.J.S.A. 40A:20-
1 etseq.

The Property consists of vacant land with a foundation that has been constructed for the Project. An
application fee of $9500.00 has been paid.

The Project is located on Block 7302, Lot 3.09 - 1.296 acres (formerly part of Block 7302, Lot 3.01) and
commonly known as 700 Washington Boulevard. The Property consists of vacant land with a foundation that
has been constructed for the Project.

The Applicant seeks a long term tax exemption pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq. (the "Law") for the
Project. The Project is located in the Newport Redevelopment Plan area. The Project is located within the.zone
designated as the 1st Tier (5 Year) as set forth on the Tier Map and described in the Jersey City Tiered Tax
Exemption Policy. The Applicant requests waivers from the requirements set forth in the Tiered Tax Exemption
Policy because the Applicant proposes that 100% of the annual service charges generated by the Project be
dedicated to the Jersey City Board Of Education for its exclusive use and control.

The Applicant requests that the financial agreement be based upon the twelve percent (12%) of annual gross
revenue formula for a renta! project for the twenty (20) year term of the exemption.

Based on the applicant's projected effective annual gross income of $15,782,467, a minimum service charge of
$1,893,896 will be charged.

The proposed staged adjustments would begin the first day of year eight (8). The ASC from years one (1) through
seven (7) would be (12%) of Annual gross revenue.

Beginning in year eight (8) through the end of year thirteen (13) the ASC would be the greater of twelve percent
(12%) of Annual gross revenue, or twenty percent (20%) of conventional taxes.



Beginning in year fourteen (14) through the end of year eighteen (18) the ASC would be the greater of twelve
percent (12%) of Annual gross revenue, or forty percent (40%) of conventional taxes.

Beginning in year nineteen ("I 9) until the end of year nineteen (19) the ASC would be the greater of twelve percent
(12%) of Annual gross revenue, or sixty percent (60%) of conventional taxes.

Beginning in year twenty (20) until the end of year twenty (20) it would be the greater of twelve percent (12%)of
Annual gross revenue, or eighty percent (80%) of conventional taxes.

The Applicant agrees to make an affordable housing contribution to the City of Jersey City in the total amount
of $528,735 ($1,500 X 336 units plus $1.50 x 1 6,490 square feet of retail space).

The Project will consistof a mixed-use building which will be 12 stories, 5 stories and 24 stories in height and
will contain 336 residential units, approximately 16,490 square feet of permitted retail and/or commercial
space and associated site and amenity improvements. Parking for 1 81 vehicles parking for the Project will be
provided on the adjacentLot3.04(alsoformerly part of Lot 3.01). Each residential rental unit will have living.
dining, and kitchen areas. The Unit breakdown is as follows:

Unit Type 1 Number of Units
Studio
1 Bedroom
2 Bedroom
3 Bedroom
4 Bedroom
TOTAL

43
132
121
32
8
336

The estimated construction cost complied by the applicant is estimated to be $175,500,420.

The Applicant will construct the Project upon approval of the tax abatement Construction is expected to be
substantially complete within twenty-four (24) months of.commencement

The Applicant estimates that construction of the Project wil! generate nine hundred seventy (970) jobs over the
construction period. Following the construction period, approximately eight (8) permanent full time and two
(2) part -time jobs will be created. The Applicant intends to enter into a Project Employment and Contracting
Agreement with the City.



The total real estate tax assessment for Block 7302, Lot 3.01 (10.33 acres) in 2018 was 112,604,500. On May
30,2018 the Jersey City Planning Board granted a final subdivision approval for Lot 3.01 establishing Block
7302, Lot 3.09 (1.296 acres). New assessments on the new lot after the proposed improvements put land at
33,600,000 and the improvement assessment at 115.625,300. With the net assessment at 1 49,225,300,
conventiona! taxes would be $2,220,472 using the 2018 tax rate (1.488).

Based upon the above formula it is estimated that the Project will render an annual service charge to the City
for dedication to JCBOE of approximately $1,893,896; an annual county service charge of 5% to Hudson
County of approximately $94,694; and, an annual administrative fee of 2% to the City of approximately $37,877.



BLOCK 7302 Lot 3.09 (A Subdivided Lot)

ton Blvd. (Subi. To

Block Lot Existing New

Assessments

Assessment

(Exemption)

7302 3.( TBD
TBD

33/600/000

115/625,300

149,225/300

115,625,300

115/625300

Stages

From the Istdayofthe month following substantial

completion until the last day of the 6th year, the ASC

shall be at 12% of Annual Revenue

Beginning on the 1st day of the 8th year and the last day of the

13th year of substantial completion, an amount equal to the greater

of the ASC at 12% or 20% of the amount of taxes otherwise

due on the value of the land and improvements;

Beginning on the 1st day of the 14th year and the last day of the

18th year of substantial completion, an amount equal to the greater

of the ASC at 12% or 40% of the amount of taxes otherwise

due on the value of the land and improvements;

Beginning on the 1st day of the 19th year and the lastdayofthe

19th year of substantial completion, an amount equal to the greater

of the ASC at 12% or 60% of the amount of taxes otherwise

due on the value of the land and improvements;

Beginning on the 1st day of the 20th year and the last day of the

20th year of substantial completion, an amount equal to the greater

of the ASC at 12% or 80% of the amount of taxes otherwise

due on the value of the land and iinprovements. $

1/28/2019
Annual Land Tax 499/968.00

Yearly Land & Improvement Tax @ Expiration $

Yr.Taxes*

(Phased-ln)

444/094

I,

1,332/283

1,776,378

2/220,472



SERVICE CHARGE VS CONVENTiONAL
^ASSUMING L488 TAX RATE WITH 2% ANNUAL INCREASE

WAVE URBAM RENEWAL

EXISTING ASSESSMENT
NEW ASSESSMENTS BASED ON TAX ASSESSOR ANALYSIS
LAND 33,600,000 COUNTY 5%

BLDG 115,625/200 ADMIN 2%
TOTAL 149,225,300 PROJECTED SERVICE CHARGE DEDICATED TO JCBOE (1ST YEAR) 1,893,896

YEAR

1

2
3
4
5
6
7
8 •

9
10
11
12

13
14
15
16
17
18
IS
20

ASCw/Phase-lnLess

Land Tan Credit

1,393,928

1.421,807

1.450,243

1,479,248

1,508,832

1,539,009

1,569,789

1,601,185

1,633,209

1,665,873

1,699,190

1,733,174

1,767,838
1,803,195

1,839,258

1,876,044

1,913,564

1,951,836

1,990.872

2.030,690

ASCuu/2% Annual
Increasfi

1,893,896

1,931,774

1,970,409

2,009.818

2,050.014

2.091.014

2,132,835

2,175.491

2,219,001

2,263,381

2,308,649

2,354,822

2,401,918
2,449,956

2,498,956

2,548,935

2,599,913

2,651,912

2,704,950

2,759,049

ASC VJ/1% Annual
In cease & Phase-) n

1.893,896

1,931,774

1,970,409

2.009.818

2,050,014

2,091,014

2,132,835

2,175,491

2,219,001

2,263,381

2,308,649

2,354,822

2,401,918
2,449.956

2,498,956

2,548,935

2,599,913

2,651,912

2,704,950

2,759,049

County (s%)

94,695

96,589
98,520

100,491

102,501

104,551

106,642
108,775

110,950
113,163

115,432

117,741

120,096

122,498
124,948
127,447

129,996
132,596

135,247
137,952

Admin (2%)

37,878
38,635

39,408
40,196
41,000

41,820

42,657

43,510

44,380
45,268
46,173

47,096

48,038

4S,999
49,979
50,979

51,998

53.038

54,099

55.181

Estimated Convent] onatTaKes
On New Assessment

2,220,472

2,264,882

2,310,180
2,356,383

2,403,511

2,451,581

2,500,613

2,550,625

- 2,601,637

2.653,670

2,706,744

2,760,878

2,816.096

2,872,418

2,929,866

2.988,464

3,048,233

3,109,198

3,171,381

3,234,809

Staged Adj

Rate

20%
20%
20%
20%
20%
20%
w%
40%
40%
40%
40%
60%
50%

y, trf Conv.

510,125

520,327
530,734
541,349

552,176

563,219
1,148,967

1,171.947

1,195.385

1,219,293

1,243,679

1,902,829

2,587,847

Conventional Tawes
at 51% (Estimated!

1,132,441

1,155,090

1,178,192

1,201.755

1,225,791

1,250.306

1,275,312
1,300,819

1,326,835

1/353,372

1,3BO,439

1,408,048

1,436,209
1,464,933

1,494,232

1,524,116

1,554,599

1,585,691

1,617,405

1,649,753

Current TMES On

Enistine Assessment Land Tan

499,968

509,967

520,167
530,570

541,181
552,005
563,045
574,306

585,792
597,508
609,458
621,647

634,080
646,762
659,697

672,891

686,349
700,076

714,077
728,359

TOTAL 33,868,784 46,016,691 46,016,691 2,300,835 920,334 53.951,641 13,687,877 27,515,337

ASCphase-in reflects annual 2% increase in conventional taxes AND Gross Rents
Projected figures subject to rounding discrepancies

12,147,907

SERVICE CHARGE TO BE DEDICATED TO JERSEY C\Vf BOARD OF EDUCATION. CiTY WILL ONLY RETAIN ADMINISTRATIVE FEE.



FISCAL IMPACT COST PROJECTION (TIER 3 - 20 YEAR).

Block: 7302 Lot: 3.09 Loc: 700 WASHINGTON BLVD

Market Rate

Units

Planned Development

Studio
1 Bedroom
2 Bedroom
3 Bedroom
4 Bedroom

TOTAL

Number

of Units

43
132
121
32
8

336

Demagraphie Multipliers'

Household Students

1.644
1.644
2.107
3.422
3.699

0.051

0.051
0.115
0.560
0.560

Annual

Expenditures

Total Per Capita Per Pupil

Residents . Students Municipal Per Schoo! District

70.69

217.01
254.95
109.50
29.59

2.19

6.73

•13.92

17.92
4.48

1. Total Municipal Ratables

2. Residential Ratables
Commercial Ratables

3. Residential Ratables
as a Percentage of
Total Ratables

$34,617,402.514

$16,041,947,110
$9,015,134,600

46.34%

4. CY 2018 Budget $593,898,612

5. Residential Portion $275.216.781

$1,049.86

$1,049.86
$1,049.86
$1,048.86
$1,049.86

$3,685.00

$3,685.00
$3,685.00
$3,885.00
$3,685.00

6. Population of Jersey City

(2014 Census) 262,146

7. Per Capita Municipal Cost

$1,049.86

8. Annual Expenditures Per Student**

$3,685.00

Tofa/

Annual Expenditures

Municipal School District Total

$74,216.751
$227,828.171
$267,S5B.83|
$114,963.95|

$31,067.481

$715,735.181

$8,031.21
¥24,807.42
$51,276.78
$66,035.20
$16,508.80

$•{66.709.40

$82,297.96
¥252.635.59
$318,935.61
$180,999.15

$47,576.28

$682,444.58

9. Increase in Services

Incurred Per Development $ 882,444.58

10. Anticipated Gross PILOT (1st Year)
Annual Service Charge io JCSOE $ 1,893,896.00

2%Admln $ 37,877.92

Less Land Tax (i.4SB) $ (499,968.00)

11.1st Year Net PILOT ¥ 1,431,805.92

12. implied Surplus (Cost) $ 549,361.34

Classic Average costing approach for projecting the impact of population change and local R/lunicipal and School District costs

"Source: NWFimmial supplied Demographic ivlultipiers {See report)

"•Source: 2017'201B Jersey City Mwicipsl Cost Per Pupil

NEW ASSESSMENT AFTER IMPROVEMENTS

LAND;
BLDG:

33.600.0DO

115,625,300

SERVICE CHARGE TO BE DEDICATED TO JERSEY CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION. Gin- WILL ONLY RETAIN ADMINISTRATIVE FEE.





Report of Directors;
8.3

Meeting 05.22.19.'

CITY HALL ® 280 GROVE STREET s JERSEY CITY, NEW JERSEY 07302
TELEPHONE (201) 547-5500 © FACSIMILE [201} 547-5442

STEVEM M, FULOP
WYOR

STEVENM.FULOP
MAWR

May 15,2019

The Honorable Rolando R. Lavarro, Tr.
Municipal Council President
City Hall - 280 Grove Street, Room 202
Jersey City, New Jersey 07302

Dear Council President Lavarro:

The principal of Wave Urban Renewal, LLC (hereinafter "the Entity") recently applied to
obtain a twenty-year tax exemption for a 24-story, mixed-use residential tower that the Entity
proposes to construct at 700 WasHngton Boulevard. We have reviewed the application in accord
wifh NJ.S. 40A:20-8, and we cannot support the proposal,

Our primary objection to the Bntit/s proposal is that it would actually costihe City money
over the term of the tax exemption, -approximately $2.9 million. Furthermore, the proposal
provides no discemable benefit to tlie City, fmancial or otherwise, First, the percentage of Annual

Gross Revenue requested by the Entity is less than the percentage of Annual Gross Revenue
required of similar projects over the last four years. Second, the proposal does not include the 10%
moderate income housing requirement that the City has required of similar projects. Third, while
the Entity's unusual request to dedicate most of the PILOT revenue to the Jersey City Board of
Education would assist in paying for local schools, so too would conventional taxes which would
do so without adding any burdens on the taxpayers as this proposal would. Lastly, factoring the
location of the Entity's proposed project, both the Internal Rate ofRetim and the Yield on Cost
indicate that this project does not need any tax incentive from the City to be financially viable. In
other words, this proposal fails the "but for test" that other applications have neededto demonstrate
in order to obtain approval.

I have included for your review the Fiscal Impact Report on this proposal prepared by NW
Financial.

ec: The members of the Mmcipal Council
Robert Byrne, City clerk



Excee^mg Expectations
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FISCAL IMPACT REPORT

700 Washington Boulevard
Block 7302, Lot 3.09 (Formerly Part of Lot 3,01)
Jersey City, New Jersey, 07310

SUBMITTED TO;

Assistant Corporation Counsel
City of Jersey City

DATED:

PREPARED BY NW FINANCIAL GROUP, LLC:
Michael I. Hartley,
Principal

Managing Director

Analyst



John J. Hallanan III, Esq,
Assistant Corporation Counsel
City of Jersey City
Department of Law
280 Grove Street
Jersey City,, New Jersey 07302

NW Fiiumcial Group/ LLC
2 Hudson Place/3-^ PL
Hoboken/NJ 07030

Tel (201) 656-0115
Fax (201) 656-^:905
ww w .nwfirtan cial.com

Gear John,

This report provides NW Pinancial's review, summary and fiscal impact analysis of the proposed

project at 700 Washington Boulevard.

Sincerely,

^^
Michael I. Hanley, Principal
NW Financial Group, LLC

1|Page



£170.5 million construction of 336 market rate residential units, 16,490 square feet ofre'tail and

181 parking spaces by LeFrak (the "Developer")

The Developer has requested a 20-year tax abatement at 1 2% of Annual Gross Revenue ("AGR"),

of which 100% of the annual service charge would be dedicated to tlie Jersey City Board of

Education (the "JCBOE")

Botli the Internal Rate of Return and the Yield on Cost are sufficient to attract private capital while

paying conventional taxes

The requested PILOT exceeds the maximum term available under Executive Order 2015-007 and

does not meet its requirements

The tequested percentage of annual gross revenue requested by the Developer is less than the

percentage applicable in Executive Order 2015-007

The market rate development does not meet the 10% moderate mcome housing requirement under

Executive Order 2015-007

The requested PILOT would result m a projected net cost to the City of $2.9M over the 20-year

period

The Developers request that most of the PILOT revenue go to the JCBOE would result in the City

forgoing approximately $31,3M m revenue over the 20-year period

The dedication of revenue from the PILOT to the Board of Education. is not authorized by statute,

as payments must be annually appropriated by the municipal council

The Developer has submitted atax abatement application, to the City of Jersey City (the "City") with respect

to the construction of a multi-tower residential development consisting of 336 market rate units along the

Hudson River waterfrontm the City's Newport community. There will also be 16,490 square feet of retail

along with 181 parking spaces. The proposed redevelopment (the "Redevelopment" or the "Project") will

be comprised of ttocee "buildings o-f 5 stories, 12 stories, and 24 stories. The Project is located at 700

Washington Boulevard m Jersey City, near the Newport PATH Station (0,3 miles). Exhibit 1 on the

following page provides a breakdown ofth.e units by type, sf/imit, and rent:
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Studio 43

336

Jte-
Retail

Paiidng

661 $ 2,754 $ 4.17 $ 1,421,150
One Bedroom

Two Bedroom

Three Bedroom

Four Bedroom

132
121
32

8

809
1J62
1,490
2,459

3,236
4,261
5,339
7,787

4.00

3.67

3.58

3.17

5,125,824
6,186,4S8
2,050,240

747,536

_3, >;3JA^

16,490 $ 51.68 $ 852,142

Spaces Moathly Fee Annual Be^t
181 $ 146 $ 317,338

It.should be noted that after a review of the Developer's proforma and based on. our own rental comparable

research, the projected rents seemed conservative for all imit types, especially since the Redevelopment

won*t be brought to market for another 2-3 years. For purposes of this report, the rents were increased 2-

3% for all unit types» whicli resulted in an increase in annual r&nt of about $370,000.

A breakdown of projected construction costs, a fmancial analysis of the Redevelopment, and the

Developer's rate of return are provided in the following sections of this report.

As part of our oveTall review of the Redevelopment, NW Financial has reviewed the Developers fmanclal

projections, construction costs and sources and uses ofiunds. The breakdown of the cost of construction

and the Developer's sources of funding is provided in Exhibit 2 on the following page;
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NW FINANCIAL GROUP,

Project Sources and Uses of Funds

Sources'

Permanent Debt $
Equity

Total Sources $

Uses

Land and Improvements $

Construction Costs

Architects, Engineers, Surveying, Attorney Fees

Insurance, tnterest, and Finance Costs

Obtaining Initial Permanent Financing
Marketing

RET and Assessments During Constfuction

Developer's Overhead

Total Uses

119,322,294
51,I38;(20

170,460,420

25,200,000

114,471,134
5,876,497

16J88.882
2,501,000

250,000
249,350

5,723,557
170.469.420

1 -The sources of fundiug are based on ft typical bi'eakdowa of debt and equity forthEs type &£ residential project

2 -The Developer's application assumed a land and impfovemeRt cost o-f S90,000/nnit> ^ or puipftses of this report, tttts

was reduced by 17% to S7S)900/uait based on recent sales data incliiding 25 Colum&us Drive.

As the Exhibit 2 shows» this report assumed 70% of the total Project costs will be financed with a bank loan

and the remaining 30% will be financed fi'om the Developer's own equity in the transaction. The largest

component of the total project cost is the hard costs ofconstt'uction, at $114,471,134 ($340,688 per unit).

Conventional Tax Scenario

The Developer's potential need for financial assistance in the form of a long-term tax-exemption is

determined by a calculation of the developer's internal rate of rstum ("IRR"). Market rate residential

projects such as the Redevelopment typically require a minimum levered IRR- of 11-15% in order to secure

financing. The Developer's IRR is driven by several factors, including the cost of construction, the amount

of Developer equity in the transaction and the projected revenues and expenses of the Project

In order to determine if the 'R.edevelopment needs a long-term tax-exemption, w& first analyzed the

developer's IR.R in a conventional tax scenario, in which the Developer would pay regular property taxes

on the Project. A 10-yeai' pro forma for a conventional tax scenario is provided in Appendix A of this report.
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NW FINANCIAL GROUP/ LLC
Kxaaiiiiig fa'jA'cfttfiODs

For ths purposes of this analysis^ we calculated the market value of the property based on its projected Net

Operating Income C'NOI"), excluding taxes, and a capitalization rate of 4.50% plus the City's 20T8

effective tax rate of 1.615% for atotal of 6,115%. Based on these factors, we estimated that the Project

would have a market value of approximately $224,132,513. In order to determine the assessed value, we

looked at the 2019 assessment of recently completed residential high-rise buildings m the axes. and

determined that $550,000/umt, or $184,800,000, was appropriate. Please see Exhibit 3 below;

Year Built Floors Units Acres Assessment Assessmenf/Uait

65 Bay Street
110 1st Street

90 Columbus Drive
485 M.ssm Boulevard

160 Morgan Street

70 Columbus Drive
200 Greene Street

TotaS

2016
2015
2018
2018
2015
2015
2017

52
36
50
17
38
48
69

447
451
539
397
417
545
762

1.64

0.73

N/A
1.36

N/A
WA
1.45

$ 228,800,000 $
218,874,900
245,300,000
175,000,000
165,783,800
205,000,000
286,000,000

S 217,822,671 $

511,857
485,310
455,102
440,806
397,563
376,147
375,328
434,588

Using the City's 2018 combined tax rate of 1.488 per $100 of assessed value, the Project would pay aa

estimated $2^749,824 in property taxes under a conventional tax scenario in Year 1 and $2,804,820 in Year

1, the first stabilized year of operations, assuming a 2% amiual increase. Based on the City's policy and

past practice, a Project Labor Agreement ("PLA") would be required if a PILOT were to be granted to the

Project. A PLA would not be required under conventional property taKes. Based on discussions with

developers and a review of similar projects, this analysis included a 10% reduction in- hard costs in the

conventional tax scenario. Given these factors and calculations, Exhibit 4 on the following page provides

a.summ.ary of the developer's return on investra&nt in a oonventional tax scenario. For reference purposes,

we have also included a summary of the return without adjusting any assumptions from. the developers

application.
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Assmnptioas

Annual Gross Revenue $

Operating Expenses

PILOT
Met Operating income $

Project Value
Total Project Cost
Net Project Value $

Yield on Cost
Internal. Rate of Return

16,459,115
2,752,879
2,804,820

ia.901,416 S

242,253,693
159,013,307
83,240,386 $

6.86%
16.97%

5,098,1
2,752,879
2,804,820

10,540,473

234,232,731
175,500,420
58,732,311

6.01%
12.96%

As Exhibit 4 above shows, the Developer would realize a yield on cost of 6.86% based on the N01 of the

Project in a conventional taK scenario. Once the Developer's annual fmancing costs are considered, the

Developer's IRR would be approximately 16,97% under such a scenario. The Project generates a

concludes that a long-term tax abatement in not necessary for the Pr&jecf to proceed.

The economic analysis is consistent with the actual experience in the downtown Jersey City area. Exhibit

5 below lists projects that are approved, under construction, or completed and have not received a tax

abatement:

Address Units

235 Grand Street
25 Park Lane South
100 Monitor Street
101 Grove Street

362 Summit Avenue

549 KRE and honst&te Development Under Construction

381 LeFrak Complete
309 Ironstate Development Under Construction

131 Ironstate Development Approved
69 N/A Complete
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NW FINANCIAL GROUP/ LLC
Hxccedttlg Espectations

The City also recently approved the redevelopment plan amendment for a 443-unit tower on the St.

Lucy's church lot. The project is in a less desirable area, includes inclusive affordable units and is

prepared to pay conventional taxes.

PILOT Scenario

Although this report has concluded that a long-term tax abatement is not necessary for the project to

proceed, this section of fhe report provides a summary of the Developer's rate of return under the

Developer's proposed PILOT terms. The primary financial subsidy that is available to developers in New

Jersey is the long-term tax-exemption. Based on the Developer's application, the length of the requested

Long-Term Tax-Exemptlon is 20 years at 12% ofAGR. The Developer will pay Ae greater of either a,

percentage ofAGR or a percentage of Otherwise Applicable Taxes ("OAT").

Under the mayor's Executive Order 2015-007, a -mu-Iti-tiered PILOT structure was created based on the

location of fh.e redevelopment compared to the Area Median Income of each census tract. Each of the five

tiers were eligible for different incentives, with "greater incentives for new development in targeted areas

of the City, while contmumg to provide financial incentive to support development along the waterfront,"

This project falls m the zone designated as th.e 1st Tier and would have been eligible for a 10-year PILOT

term at 13%0fAGR.ExecutiveOrder2015-Q07canbefoundinAppendix.Fi along with the Tier Map. A

comparison of the requested PILOT and the PILOT under the mayor's Executive Order can be found in

Exhibit 6 below:

Year

1-6

7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

developer It-eqyest
% ufAGR

12%
12%
12%
12%
12%
12%
12%
12%
12%
12%
12%
12%
12%
12%
12%

% of OAT
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
20%
20%
40%
60%
80%

Exccutwc Order
% ofAGR

13%
13%
13%
13°/o

13%

% of OAT
0%

20%
40%
60%
so%
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NW FINANCIAL GROUP/ LLC
Exavfiins £^yccf(if(ons

NW Pinancial prepared a Developer pro forma based on the above Annual Service Charge calculation. A

10-year pro forma for such a scenario is provided in Appendix B to this report. Exhibit 7 below provides a

summary of the Developer's return on invesfme&f under a long-term tax-exemption. For reference purposes,

we have also included a summary of the return without adjusting any assumptions from the developer's

application,

Assumptions

Annual Gross Revenue $

Operating Expenses

PILOT
^et Operating Income $

Project Value
Total Project Cost

16,459,115 $
2,752,879
1,975,094

11,731,142 $

260,692,052
170,460,420

16,098,172
2,752,879
1,931,781

11,413,513

253,633,615
175,500,420

Yield on. Cost

Intemal Rate of Return

6,88%
17.21%

6.50%
15.22%

As Exhibit 7 shows.. the Developer's return on investent increases slightly under the PILOT scenario. A

comparison of the gross PILOT and conventional taxes is provided in Appendices C and D of this report.

PILOT Dedication and School Children

The Redeveloper proposes that the annual service charges generated by the Project be dedicated to the

Jersey City Board of Education for its exclusive use and control. The proposal is flawed in a number of

tespects. The Long-Term Tax Exemption Law identifies the mamier in which ATinual Service charges are

to be split between taxing entities. The revenue that is received by the City must be appropriated according

to NJSA 40A;4"1 "New Jersey Local Budget Law", NJSA 40:48-17.1 allows:

When any mwwipaiity, the bwndanes of which are identiaal •with the boundaries of the local school

district shall have on hand surplus revenue unappwpriated or anticipated receipts un&ppropnaied for

municipal purposes) the governing body may) in Us discretion, by resolu.tion adopted at a regular or

special meeting thereof^ authome. the tt'ansfef of and cause to be transferred all or any such part of

unappropriated surplus revenue OP unappropnated anticfpated receipts as the governing body shall deem
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advisable to ike board of education of the school distmt of the municipality; provided, however, no

transfey of surplus revenue or anticipated receipts by a. governing body to the board of education of the

local school district, under the authority conferred by this section, shall be tna.de unless and until such

proposed transfer or appropriation shall have been included in the local municipal budget for the year

in which it is intended to make such transfer available fmm a prior year's appropriathn reservs and

shaUh&ve been regularly approved, advertised and adopted as apart of such focal municipal budget.

The ability to utilize municipal revenue to assist local school districts exists, but the ability to dedicate

revenue does not. Any revenue sent by a municipality must be appropriated on an annual T^asis and as a

result the R.edeveloper request for dedication cannot be accepted.

The Redevelopment will result in an influx of new residents to the City, This increase in population will

result in additional Municipal costs to the City and an incrsase in the number of pupils in the Jersey City

School District. The increase in public school children -will result in an increase in costs for the School

District as well as the City. This sectkm of our report will describe the method by which these increases in

municipal and school costs are calculated. Our analysis uses an average cost approach, also known as the

Per Capita Multiplier Method, developed by Rutgers University. This method Is used throughout the United

States as one of the most basic techniques of fiscal impact analysis,

Demographic Multipliers

The demand for municipal and school services for each residential unit correlates primarily to the nmnber

of residents and public-school age childreft in each unit. Both future residents and school pupils can be

projected using recent surveys of similar types of residential units. This report uses demographic data from

the November 2006 report "Who Lives in New Jersey Housing: A Quick Guide to Nsw Jersey Residential

Demographic Multipliers," published by Center for Urban Policy Research at Rutgers University. The

2006 report was based on demographic data from the 2000 census as well as data that is (CNew Jersey-

specific" or unique to and field-tested m New Jersey. Using this data, the Rirtgers report produced

multipliers for both- residents and school children per unit broken down by size and "type. These m.ultiplieis

are then applied to the number and type of units.
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The 2006 Rutgers report breaks residential units down by many different factors: unit type (detached home,

townhouses, multifamily units, etc>), number of bedrooms (0-1, 2, 3» etc.) and the assessed value of the

properties (below median, above median, all values, etc.). This fiscal impact analysis utilized the Statewide

multipliers for 5+ Units (Rent) studio, 1-bedroom, 2-bedroom and 3-bedroom raulti-family rental units at

above median assessed value for both new residents and public-school children. For fhs 4-bedroom values,

we used the 2-4 Unit above median multipliers. Exhibit 8 below provides a summary of the number of units,

the multipliers for persons and public-school children and the projected total of new persons and public-

school children:

1^

Studio
1BR
2BR
3BR
4BR

43
132
121
32
8

1.644
1.644
2.107
3.422
3.699

71
218
255
110
30

0.051

0.051
0.115

0.560
0.560

Multiplier Chiidren
3
7
14
18
5

New Residents

When the Project is operating at full capacity,, it will add about 6§4 new residents to the City's cuiTent

population; an increase of approximately 0.26%.

PnbUc School Children

The Redevelopmen.1 will result in a total increase of approximately 47 public school students to the current

enrollment; an increase of approximately 0.15%,

Municipal and School Costs

Total municipal and school district costs follow directly from the number of residents and public-school

children generated per residential unit, It is necessary, however, to determine the per capita costs of

municipal services to residents and the educational costs per student,
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Municipal Costs / City Sei-vicesfor Children

Total muaicipal spending for residents can be derived from ths most recent budget. In particular, given the

Developer's request that all PILOT revenue be dedicated to the school, this report focused on services the

City provides speciftcatly to children as well as City residents in general. City services geared toward

children are discussed in this section.

Department ofRecreaHon

Among of other programs, the City's Department of Recreation offers after school programs for children

at the Jersey City YMCA and Armory atid various public schools throughoiit the City. These programs

have been expanded in recent years to include programmmg in the evening hours st ten schools throughout

Jersey City. The programs include standard recreation sports such as "basketball, tennis and swimming as

well options such as fishing, gymnastics arts and crafts and STEM classes. The Department of Recreation

also offers a. variety of programs for residents with special needs. In total, the City budgeted approximately

$4.9 million for its Department of Recreation in 2018.

Department of Health and Human Services

The City's Department of Health and Human Sewices provides health and social services to City residents

of all ages through a variety of programs. These include funding for iiTimunization services for uninsured

children and the investigation of potential threats to public health though the Bureau of Investigations and

inspections the Bureau of Healthy Homes and th& Bureau of Lic&nsing. The Jersey City Department of

HeaKh and Human Services supports initiatives such as health education, dis&ase prevention, a. child care

clinic, consumer safety, environmental health, senior affairs, and nutrition services. The City budgeted

approKimately $5.5 million for the Department of Health and Human Services in 2018.

Department of Public Works

The City's Division of Parks and Forestry with in the Department of Public Works oversees more than 60

parks througliouf the City and is responsible for the maintenance and care of other properties such as

playgrounds. The responsibilities of this division include tree removal, repair of playground equipment,

and maintenance of city pools, athletic fields, bask.etball courts and tennis courts. The City budgeted

appfoximately $3.2 million on its Division of Parks and Forestry in 2018.
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Municipal Cost Analysis

Having reviewed the City's 2018 Municipal Budget, this report isolated specific line if&ms that would "fall

under th& category of irmnicipal services to residents. These selected items fi'om the 2018 Budget are listed

in Exhibit 9 below:

Office of the Mayor
City Clerk and Municipal Council
Department of Human Resources

Department of Administration

Office of the Tax Assessor

Department of Law

Department of Public Works

Department of Recreation.

Department of Health, and Human Services

Department of Public Safety

Department of Housing, Economic Development, & Commerce

Unclassified

Contingent

Deferred Charges

Statutory Expenditures

Other Operations Excluded

Public and Private Programs

Capital Improvement Fund

Municipal Debt Ser/ice

Local District School Purposes

Reserve for Uacollected Taxes

$ 2,916,789 $
2,230,998

2,302,736
18,071,816
1,289,406
4,475,342

48,706,346
4,932,353
5,503,868

192,526,523
7,149,278

124,867,740
50,000

6,175,326
61,808,945
12,020,000
14,682,627

1,874,490

69,152,754
5,561,764
7,599,511

945,517

5,870,145

3,209,705
4,932,353
2,835,068

181,357,254
512,757

46,542,006
9,620,000

From the 2018 Budget, this report identified $255^824,805 in municipal costs associated wifh. services for

residents and children in the City, In the context of this specific application, in which ths Developer has

requested that all net PILOT revenue go the JCBOE, it Is important to note that while the JCBOTE will

certainly have costs associated with the new children resulting from the Project, the City also budgets

considerable amounts that would be impacted by new residents but also specifically new children. These

include significant lins items in the City's Department ofR.ecres.tlon and Department of Health and Human

Services as well as the considerable cost of Public Safety. In order to isolate the appropriate portions of
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these line items that are applicable to residents only, we analyzed a breakdown of assessed value within the

City. This breakdown is featured m Exhibit 10 below;

City Tax Base

Residential
Commercial

Industrial
Apartments

Vacant

16,659,648,010
9,397,844,400
2,336,454,100
4,005,265,300
2,821,412,435

$ 35,220,624,245

As Exhibit 10 above demonstrates, the combined 2019 assessed valuation. in the City was approximately

$35.2 billion, Of this, approximately $20.7 billion, or approximately 58.67%^ was classified as residential

or apartment,

This analysis applied the 5S.67% figure to th& line items from the 2018 municipal budget listed in Exhibit

§ on the previous page. The application of 58,67% to $255,824,805 results in approximately $150,099,481

for the residential portion of the municipal services listed in the table above. In per capita terms, this

$150,099,481 figure results m about $564 in spending for each of the City's approximately 265,932

residents. In order to determine the increas& in municipal costs that the City wUl mcur as a result of the new

residents from the Project this per capita figure must be applied to the number of new residents. Exhibit 11

below provides a breakdown of the municipal costs associated v/lth the new residents:

Per Capita Total Ne-w

Spending Spending
Studio
1BR
2BR
3BR
4BR
Total

43
132
121
32
8

336

71 5
218
255
110
30
684 S

S 564 ;
564
564
564
564

i 564 ;

^ 40,044
122,952
143,820
62,040
16,920

g 385,776

Utilizing this method of projecting municipal costs, the 684 n&w residents would result in $385,776 in

incremental municipal costs.
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School Costs

The increase in school costs is calculated by applying the projected number of new public-school pupils

(47) to the most recently available data for total Cost of Classroom Instruction per Pupil for the Jersey City

School District. The New Jersey Department of Education keeps statistics with respect to the costs per

student m each school district in the State. The Cost of Classroom Instruction per Pupil m the Jersey City

School District's 2017-2018 Budget was $10,787. The Costto the School District is multiplied by the share

of school district costs that are generated by Local School Taxes (16,40%).

Exhibit 12 below provides a summary of the projected increase ill school costs based that will need to be

covered by Local Tax revenues as a result of the Project:

Studio
1BR
2BR
3BR
4BR.

43
132
121
32
8

3
7
14
18
5

10,787
10,787
10,787
10,787
10,787

16.40%
16.40%
16.40%
16.40%
16,40%

5,307
12,383
24,767
31,843

8,845
336 $ 10,787 16.40% $ 83,146

The projected 47 new public-school chil4reiL ente.rmg the Jersey City School District would result in a total

of $83,146 in additional costs for the School District in Year \ that will need to be covered by Local School

Taxes.

Municipal and School District Revenues

Exhibit 13 on the following page provides a summai-y of the increasss In both Municipal and School costs

for the City upon completion of the Project:
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Summary of Increases in Municipal and School Costs

Studio
1BR
2BR
3BR
4BR

43
132
121
32
8

71
218
255
no
30

3
7
14
18
5

$ 40,044 $
122,952
143,820
62,040
16,920

5,307
12,383
24,767
31,843

8,845

$ 45,351
135,335
168,587
93,883
25,765

47 S 385,776 $

As the table above shows, the total increase in costs for both the School District and the Municipal Budget

will be $468,922 in Year I, followmg tlie completioti of the proposed Project,

Cost Benefit Summary -PILOT

Under the terms of the proposed Financial Agreement between the Developer and the City (the "Financial

Agreement"), the City would grant to the Developer a long-term tax exemption OTI the improvements made

to the Project. The projected gross Annual Service Charge for the 20-year term of the tax-exemption is

provided in Appendix D of this report. As Appendix D shows, the Developer will pay a projected

$ 1,975,094 in the fast year of full operation of the Redevelopment. During the term of the tax exemption,

however, the Project will pay conventional property taxes on the assessed value of the land. Based on the

assessed value of $184,800,000 and the City's 2018 tax rate, Exhibit 14 below provides a projection of

what the Project wilt pay in Land Taxes:

County
County Open Space

School District
Local School

Municipal Local Purpose
Municipal Open Space

Municipal Library

0.400
0.010
0.351
0.009
0.689
0.002
0.027

$ 150,797
3,770

132,324
3,393

259,747
754

10J79
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As Exhibit U on the previous page shows, t^e Project will pay approximately $560,964 in property taxes

on. the assessed value of the land. This amount will be credited to the Developer against the gross Annual

Service Charge (approximately $1,975,094). In atypical PILOT agre&ment, 5% of the remaming paymenf

is paid to the County ($98,755) and the rest is paid to the City. This would result in a net Ammal S&rvics

Charge to the City of $1^586,055. Exhibit 15 below provides a sunmiary of the revenues the City and

JCBOE can expect from the Project under a PILOT pursuant to the Long-Ten-m Tax Exemption Law, the

projected municipal and school costs and the net financial benefiVcost of the Project itiYear 2;

City Share
City Costs

1,586,055
(393,492)

School Share
School Costs

$ 1,1.92,564

$ 180,948
(§4,809)

In this case, ths Developer made the unusual proposal of dedicating 100% of the annual service charge to

the JCBOE for its exclusive use and control. The land would 'be conventionally taxed in the same way as a

typical PILOT agreement, however after the 5% of fhe remaining annual service charge was paid to the

County, the remaining 95% would go to tlie JCBOE instead of the City. The only revenue the City would

receive in this scenario would be their share oftiie latid taxes ($270,680),

Exhibit 16 on the following page provides a summary of the revenues the City and JCBOB can expect from

the Project under the proposed PILOT, the projected municipal and scliool costs and fhe net: financial

benefit/cost of the Proje&t in Year 2:
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Ex
cial Benefit/^

PH.OT

City Share
City Costs
Net Gain/Lo

School Share
School Costs

hibit 16
^ost Analysis of the Project

$ 1,975,094

$ 270,680
(393,492)

ss $ (122,811)

$ 1,451,092
^4,809)

As Exhibit 16 shows, under the proposed PILOT ths overall net benefit from the R-edevelopment in Year 2

will be $ 1,243,472, however the Cily would realize a net loss of $122,811, while the JCBOE has a net gain

of $1,366,283. In the context of this specific application, in which the D&velopsr has requested that all net

PILOT revenue go the JCBOE, it is important to note that while the JCBOE will have costs associated with

the new children resulting from the Project, the City also budgets considerable amounts that would bs

impacted by new residents but also specifically new children. These Include significant Ime items in the

City's Departaient of Recreation, and Department of Health and Human Services as well as the considerable

cost of Public Safety. The City would Ukely lose over $2.9 million over the requested 20-ysar period placing

an unnecessary burden on the municipal budget.

Cost/Benefil: Summary ~ Conventional Taxes

Exhibit 17 below provides a complete breakdown of expected revenues to the County, School, and City

fi'om the Project under conventional taxes in Year 2;

County

County Open Space
School District

Local School
Municipal Local Purpose

Municipal Open Space
Municipal Library

Total

0.400 $

0.01.0

0.351
0.009
0.689
0.002
0.027

1.488

; 753,984
18,850

661,621
16,965

1,298,737
3,770

50,894
2.804.820
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County

School

City

0.410 $
0.360
0.718

; 772,834
678,586

1,353,401
1.^

Exhibit 18 belo-w provides a summary of tlie revenues the City can expect from the Project under

conventional taxes, the projected municipal and school costs and the net financial b&nefit/cost of the Project

in Year 2:

City Share
City Costs

School Share
School Costs

1,353,401
(393,492)

678,586

(84,809)
Gam/Loss $ 593,776

As Exhibit 18 shows, under conventional taxes the overall net benefit from the Redevelopment m Year 2

will be $1,553,68$, with both fce City ($959,910) and the JCBOE ($593,776) showing a net benefit
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Appendix A: Developer Pro Forma - Conventional Taxes

Matket Rate Readsntial Revenue

Cofnmeital Ro/enue
Other Revenue

Vat&my Matket Rate

Vacanq1 Commerciat/Other

Annual Grass Revenue

Operating Elspe rises

Corwerrtional Taxes

Total expenses

N01 Before Taxes
Net Operating lncoBie

Debt Service

Net Income after DE and MR

DSCR First Mortgage

Equity

IftR. - Cash Flow

IRR-10 Year Sate

Yteld on Cost

9.03%

16.37%

5LS6K

Construction Year Constroction Year

1 2
Year Year Year Year

4
Year

5
Year Vear

7
Year Year Year

10
15,531,238 5 15,S41,S53

852,142 863,185

602,291 614,337

(3,88Z,el(B (732,033)

16,158,700 ; 16,481,874 S 15^11,Sn S 17,147,742

886,569 904,300 922,386 940,834

626,624 639,156 6S1.933 664,378

(807,935) (824,094) (540,576} (857.3B7)
t363,GOES 174,1^6)

17,490,637 i 17,840,510 5 18,197,3^1 S 1B,S61.267

959,650 978,843, ' 9WMO 1,018,383

678,277 631,343 705,690 71S,793

(67dj3S) (632,026) (309,366) (926,063)
(75,660) P7,173] 08,716) (80,2S1) (81,899 iB3,S34) (S5/Z05) (8S;939J

i^S!§Si^iiI^MB;^l^»)iy $ 12^^253 $ 18,459^15 t ~\6JSS^3S_^ 17,124,053 $ 17,"1GS,545 $~ 17,ElS,S76 $ 13^72,193 ^ li.KS.ST^ •T»,906,3SO $ li,ZM.4'?7

2,638,301 S 2,752,873 f 2,807,337 t 2.3&f,03S t 2,931^77 $ 2,976,605 S 3,039,401 S 3,100,133 $ 3,162,193 i 3,225.437
.2.749'.s2i ._ 2.ao4ia2° 3,850^17 S,91S,135 2^?G,4S8 3,036,1123 3,096,7.48 3,153,633 3,231,057 3,2S62M

|^|^lJ;^^||^ffl!i||^i^J^^ _S^4G^25$ S.SST^OO $ __5,Ge^,S53 ? 5.78Z,23:TT~ S,3a7,STsT*—e,Q1S,833- 5 6/136/149 $ 6^58,872—£ e^84,<)SO $ ^SH;^

J _-10,iM(y5Z S 13,706,236 $ _13,9&0,3S1_ £ M,2SS,96B S 14,5<}5,1G7 $ 14,836,071 £ 15,132,792 t 15/135,448 t IS.744,157 16,033,040
^il|^^B^E!§'^^iiit^Ii1'iiS S 7:230,529 $ 10,901^16 ? 11,119,444 -$1-),341,ES3 $ 1-[,55B,G?0 $ n,30D,043 $ 12,OS6,OM $ 12.£76,765—$ 12,322,300 £ 12.772,746^

^®!il^flSi?i{^i^fi1f^fi^;I^if^.
J (7,658,681) J_ (7,65^eai> S 07,658,681) _;[_ ^,GS8,6B1) 3 ,_ f?-,6SS,661) S (7,6SS,6E1) 3 (7,658,631; t ^,658^611 ^ (7.6SB,SS1) S P',6SB,6S1)

{366,133} $ 3,242,735 3,460,763 S 3,683.152 3,909,989 S 4,141,362 4,3T7,363 $ 4,616.064 E,m,06E

123,851,936) (23,8S1,SSS)

(Zi,aS1,996) (23,851,996)

(2i,3E1.99£) t23.aS1.996;)

(3G8.1 £3}

(368,153)

3,242,735

3,242,73S

3,460,763

3,450,763

3,SS2,I5Z

3,69S,1S2

3,909,989

3iS09,9B9

4,141.362

4,^1,362:

4,377,S63

4.377363

4,618,034

4,61 S.O&4

A, 663,619

4,363,613

S,mB65

163,236,760
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Market Rate ResJdential revenue
Cammarical Revenue

Other Revenue

Vacancy Market Rate

Vacsney CommeTdsVOther

Annual Gross Reuenue

Operating Expenses

PILOT
Tu.tal fapenses

NetOperafmg Iniome

Debt Service Flra Mortgage

Net Income after DS and &4R

DSCR First Mortgage

Equity

lilR-Cash Flow

i(Ut - Sale

field on Cdrf

Construction Year Construction Year
1 2

Yesr

1
Year

4
Year

7
Year

10
15,531,238 $ 15,841,863 l6,15B,70Q $ 16,4S1,B74 I 16,811,51-1 t I7,1<!.7,74Z 5 17,490,637 $ 17,840,510 S 18,197,321

852,142

602.Z91

O^easiol
(363,603)

863,1 SS

6W,S27

f792,OS3)

WJG)

8S6.S63

6Z6,ff24
(B07,93S)

(75,660)

9M,300

$39,156

(SHOM)
P7,173S

S2Z.385

651,939
(SAO,5761

(73,716)

340,834
654,378

(B57,3B7)

(30,291)

953,650
678,277

(87^i,S3S)
tai,S96)

9TO.84S

691,843
(892,02Q

(a3,£34)

998,420

7os,6se

(S03,S66)

[85,ZOSi

•1,018,369

713,793

(325,053)

[86,90%
^||^i^)E^^i^iji|i[i{S^lL$ 12:739,253 S. 16,459^ •iSi16;7E3S,29S $- 17,124,OS3-$ ^!7,46S^5<5 $ 17,515,876 $ 1S,17S,T9a $ ia,53S,637 -$ iisG6,350$ 19,284,477"

2,698,SC1 $ 2,752,879 t 2,807^37 $ Z,864,03S $ 2,921,377 t 2.979,605 S 3,&39,4Q1 ? 3,100,189 3 3,162,193 t 3,225,127

1,528,71[)_ 1.375,094 2,01.4,396 2,054,B8B 2,095,985 2,157,305 2,1BO,66S a,224,a76 Z^6B,762 2,31^1.137
^^tSi^^t^Mi\S^^S.$ 4,2S7',6H}_ 4.727.973 f. -4,82^532 t"-^4,?18,933' $ ^ 5/017^63 ^ 5,117^0" ^ S^ZZO,OG4-$ S324,4S5--t 5,^0,355 -$ 5,5is,S74-

g®iRi§^^gifiii;M;%lM^f
^iia^^i^^faliMT S.511,642 $_ 11,731,142 $ 11,S65,76S t __1_2,20S,OS1 $ 12,449,182 $ -12,693,166 f t2,9S2,1Z9 $ 1^,211,172 i 13,475,293 $ 13,744,903

il^i^B!%^Bi(^S{ilNl^}ts_
Jg_21q017) $ (5,310,017) S_ ^?,ZTO,017} S (S,ZH),017) t ?£1^017^ .S_ .(8,31 Oi017)_S _ (8,210,017) _S (3,210,017) } (8,210,017) ^ [B,£10,017)

301,625 ^_ 3^2U2^_£ ,3,755748 S,_3.rS35,OS4 S_ 4^39,165 ? 4488,1^ S -4,7<12,n2 5 5,001,155 ^ S^6S,37a-I - S,S34,BB6-

9.57%

17-Z1%

ftS,569,OSi)

(25,563,053]

E2S,ses,osa)

(25,569,063)

(£5,569,063;

(£5,569,063)

301.625

301,62S

3,S£1,125

3,521,125

3,?SS,74S

3.75S.748

3,995,064

3,995,064

4,239,165

4,239,165

4,483,1.1.9

4,')88,1^t9

4,742,112

4742,112

5,001,1SS

5,001,1SS

5,265,378 5,554,686

5,263,375 197,532,^18
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1

2

3
4

5
6
7

8

9
10

11

12
13

u
15

16
17
18

19
20

$ 2,749,824 $
2/804,820

2,860,917

2/918/135

2,976,498

3,036,028

3,096,748

3,158,683

3,221.857

3,286,294

3,352,020

3,419,061

3,487,442

3,557/191

3,628,334

3,700,901

3,774,919

3/850,417

3,927,426

4,005,974

$ 66/813,491 $

(1,422,960)

(1,451,419)

(1,480.448)

(1,510,057)

(1,540,258)

(1.571,063)

(1,602/484)

(1,634,534)

0,667.224)

(1/700,569)

(1,734,580)

(1,769,272)

(1,804/657)

(1340,750)
(1,877,566)

(1,915,117)

(1,953,419)
(1,992,488)

(2,032,337)

(2,072/984)

(34,574.185)

$ (385776) $
(393,492)

(401,361)

(409389)
(417/576)

(425,928)

(434^46)
(443,135)

(451,998)

(461,038)

(470,259)

(479,664)

(489,257)
(499,042)
(509,023)

(519,204)

(529,588)

(540,180)

(550/983)

(562,003)

$ (9.373,342) $

941,088

959,910

979/108

998,690

1,018,664

1,039,037

1,059,818

1,081,014

1,102,635

1,124,687

1,147,181

1,170,125

1,193,527

V17398
1,241,746

1,266/581

1,291,912

1317,750

1,344,105

1,370,988

22,865,963



Appendix C: Conventional Taxes - Net Benefit - School Revenues and Costs

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

w
11
-12

13

14
15
16

17
18
19

20

$ 2,749,824 $

2,804,820

2,860,917

2/918,135

2,976,498

3,036,028

3,096,748

3,158,683

3,22-[,857

3/286/294

3352,020

3,419,061

3,487,442

3,557,191

3,628334

3,700,901

3,774,919

3,850,417

3,927,426

4,005,974

$ 66,813,491 $

(2,084,544) $

(2,126,235)
(2,168,760)

(2,212,135:)

(Z,25G,377)

(2,301,505)

(2,347,535)

(2,394,486)

(2,442,376)

(2,491,223)

(2,541/048)

(2,591,868)

(2,643,706)

(2/696,580)

(2,750,512)

(2,805,522)

(2,861,632)

(2,918,865)

(2,977,242)

(3,036,787)

(50,648,936) $

(83,146) $
(84,809)

(86,505)
(88,235)

(90,000)

(91,800)

(93,636)

(95,509)

(97,419)

(99/367)

(101,355)
[103,382)

(105,4493

(107,558)

(109,710)

011,904)

cmuz)
(f16,425}
(118,753)

021,128)
(2,020.234) $

582/134

593,776

605,652
617,765

630,120

642,723
655,577

668,689

682,063

695,704

709,618

723,810

738,286

753,052
768,113

783,475

799,145

815/128

831,430

848,059

14,144320
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Appendix D: PILOT - Net Benefit - City Revenue and Costs

1
2
3

4
5

6
7
s
9
10
11

12
13
14

15
16
17

18
19
20

$ 549,965 $
560,964

572,183

583,627

595,300

607,206

619/350

631,737

644,371

657,259

670,404

683/812

.697,488

71 f ,438

725,667

740,180

754,984

770,083

785,485

801,135

13,362,698 $

(284/592) ^
(290,284)

(296,090)
(302,01-1)

(308,052)

(314,213)

(320/497)

(326,907)
(333,445)

(340,114)

(346,916)

(353,854)
(360/931)

(368,150)

(375,513)

(383,023)

(390,684)

(398,498)

(406,467)

(414,597)

(6,914,837) $

) (385,776)

(393,492)

(401361)
(409389)
(417,576)

(425,928)

(434/446)

(443,135)
(451,998)
(46-L038)

(470/259)

(479,664)

(489,257)

(499,042)

(509,023)
(519,204)

(529,588)

(540,180)

.(550,983)

(562,003)
(9,373,342) ;

$ (120,403)
(122,811)

(125,267)

027,773)

(130,328)

(132,935)

(135/S94)

(138,305)

041,072)

(143,893)

(146,771)

(149,706)

(152,700)

(155,754)

(158,869)

(162,047)

(165,288)

(168,594)

(171,965)

(175,405)

^ (2.925,481)



Appendix D: PILOT' Net Benefit - School Revenue and Costs

Tax Less: County School Share Less: Schoois School

1
2

3
4
5

6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

$ 1,528710 $
1.975,094

2,OU,596

2,054,888

2,095/985

2,137,905

2,180,663

2,224,276

2,26^762

2/314,137

2,360,420

2,407,628

2,455,781

2,504,897

2,554,994

2,606,094

2,658,216

2,711381

2,765,608

3,204,779

$ 47,024,816 $

(549,965) :
(560,964)

(572,183)

(583,627)

(595300)
(607/206)

(619350)
(631,737)

(644,371}

(657,259)
(670,404)

(683,812)

(697/468)

(711,438)

(725,667)

(740,180)
(754,984)

(770,083)

(785/485)

(801,195)

(13,362,698) S

^ (48,937) $
(98,755)

(100,730)

002,744)
(104,799)

(106,895)

009,033)

(111,214)
(113/438)

(115,707)
018,021}
020,38-1)

(122,789)

(125,245)

(127,750)

(130305)
032,911}

(135,569)

(138/280)
(-! 60,239)

I (2323,743) $

133/056 $

135,717
138,431

141,200

144,024

U6,905

149,843

1S2.840

155,896

159/014

162,195

165,438

168,747

172,122

175,565

179,076

182,657

186,311

190,037

193,837

5,397,826 $

(83,U6) $
(84,809)
(86/505)

(88,235)

(90,000)

(91,800)

(93,636)
(95,509)

(97,419)

(99,367)

(101,355)

(103,382)

(105,449)

(107,558)

(109,710)

(111,904)

(114,142)

(116,425)

(118,753)

(121.128)
(2,020,234) $

979,718

1.366,283

1,393,609

1,421/481

1,449,910

1,478/909

1,508,487

1,538,657

1,569,430

1,600,818

^632,835

L665.491
1,698,801

1.732.777

1,767,433

1,802,781

1,838,837

1,875,614

1,913,126

2,316,055

3^S51,052
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Appendix E: Net City Benefit Comparison

Year

1

2
3

4
5
6
7
8
9
10
-it

12

u
u
15

16
17
18
19
20

Developer Proposed PILOT

Net City Benefit*

(120,403)
(122/811)
(125,267)
027,7731

(130328)
(132,935)
(135,594)
038,305)
(14-1,072)

043,893)
(146,771)

(149,706)
(152,700)
(155,754)
(158,569)
(-162.047)

(165,288)

(168,594)
071,965}
(175,405)

(2/925,481)

PILOT Distributed Pursuant to LITE law

Dsffsrence vs. Developer

Net City Benefit* Proposed PILOT

Taxes

DEffererace vs- Developer

809,405

1/192,564

1216,415

1.240743
1,265/558

1,290,869

1,316,687

•1,343,021

1369,88-1

1,397,279

1,425,224

1,453J29
1,482,803

1,512,459

1,542.708

1,573,563

1,605,034

1,637,134

1,669,877

2,067,941

$ 28,412,894 $

(929,808)
CL31S,375}
('[,341,683)

(1,368,516)
0,395,887)
(1,423,804)

(1,452,280)
0,481,326}
(1,510,952)
0,541.172)

(1,571,995)
(1,603,435)
(1,635,504)
0,668,214)
0,701,578)

0,735,609)
(-1,770/322)

(1,805,728)
(1,841.843)

(2,243.346)
(31,338,375)

$ 941,088 $
959,910

979,108

998,690

1,018,664

1,039,037

1,059,818

1,08-[,014

1,102,635

1,124,687

1,147,181

1,170,125

-(,193,527

1,217,398

1,241,746

1,266.581

1,291,912

1,317,750

1,344,105

1,370,988

$ 22,865.963 $

(1,061,491)
(1,082,721)
(1,104,375)

(1,126,463)

(1,148,992)
(1,171,972)
(t,195.411)

(1,219,320)
(1,243,706)

(1.268/580)

(1,293,952)

0,319,831)

(1,346/228)
(1,373/152)
(1,400,615)

(1.428,627)
(-t,4S7^00)

(1,486,344)
(1,516,071)
(1,546392)

(25,791,444)

HP\f (1S.567,1&5)

*After factoring in projected City costs of new residents
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STEVEN M.PULOF
MAWROFj£RS&rOhJ

B.CUOU-.OQ7

C1TV HALL ) 280 GROVE STREET 1 JERSEY CITY, NJ 07302
P; 201547 5500 ! F: 201547 5442

Report of Directors
8,e

109.09.2015

STEVEN M. FULOP
MftOSOFJEfiSEfCTV

rdSeptember 3^2015

Pursuant to the authority vested in the Mayor of the City of Jersey City by law» I issue the
following Executive Order (EO) approving and directmg the implementation of procedures and policy
guidelines for best practices in the award of long term tax exemptions or Payment In Lieu Of Taxes
(PILOTs). This EO supersedes any previous EOs and/or Policies.

I. Statement of Purpose;

The award of PILOTs for construction projects located wifeia a redevelopment area, an urban
enterprise zone, or to create affordable housing, had l^istorically been a process subject to vague
parameters, a lack of transparency, and the perceived injudidous exercise of discretion As a result,
public confidence in the process had eroded, and redevelopment in underserved areas had been
neglected. By the pjpomnlgation of EO 2013»004 this admimstmtion began to address these issues by
alleviating the underlying causes of public policy concerns while stimulating redevelopment in
underserved areas. Ths within EO and condating Policy is em update of the BO and PoKcy initially
promulgated to foster the transparency, objectivity, imiformity, predictEibiIity and strategic incentives the
City needs to grow a&d prosper. This updated EO and the correlasmg policy will continue to incentives
development in areas most in need of it wMIe also leveraging the economic activity taking place in
Jer&ey City to create a sigmficant amount of new affordable housmg.

This EO afSttns the procedures and policy guidelines to be used in the evaluation, approval and
awarding of long term tax exemption applications and financial agreements. These procedures and
policy guidelines are undertaicen m conjunction with the requirements of the Long Temi TSK
Exemption Law, KJ^SA, 40A:20-1 et seq<; 5 Year Tax Exemptiosi Law, NJ.S.A, 40A:21-1 et seq.; the
New Jersey Housing Mortgage and Fmance Agency Law, N.J.S.A. 55:i4K4 et seq.; and all applicable
ordinances of the City of Jersey City. This EO is prospective. Accordingly^ it applies to future long
term PILOTs and related financial agreements including any amendments to existing Financial
Agreements. More specific additional guidance can be found m the policy guidelines attached hereto as
Appendix A, which guidelines may also be amended from time to time.
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II. • Definitions:

When used in this EO, terms shall be cbfmed as follows:

"Affordable Housing Project" means a project intended to provide housing affordable for persons of low
or moderate income, for senior citizens -under section 202 ofPub.L. S6-372 (12 U.S,C, § 1701q) or
rental housing for persons witli disabilities under section Sll of Pub,L. 101-625 (42
U.S.C. § 8013), or under any other program that the New Jersey Commissioner of Cotmmmity Affairs
by rule may determine to be of a similar nature and purpose,

"Service Charge" means the anxiual payment to be made by the EnEity to the City in lieu of payment of
conventional property taxes. The service charge is calculated as a percentage of either tl'ie pcoject s gross
revenue, or total project cost, whichever Is designated in the Financial Agreement.

"Application" means a written application prepared by an Entity seeking a PILOT.

"Certified Audit" means a complete set of financial statements rendering an opinion on the Entity^
amual financial statements taken as a whole, prepared according to the current standards of the
Financial Accounting Standards Board, and certified as conforming to those standards by the Certified
Public Accountant duly licensed to practice that profession m the State of New Jersey.

"City" means the City ofJers&y City.

"Entity^ means either an "Entity" defined as a limited-dividend entity, or non-profit entity, pursu&nt to
NJ.S.A. 40A:20~1 et seq.; qualified under NJ.S.A. 55:UK"1 et seq.-^ or, an owner wider HJL^A^,
40A:2t-letseq.

"Fmaacial Agreement"3 means the contract between the City and the Entity including all amendments
and supplements thereto, by which a PILOT is conferred.

"Oross Revenue" means annual gross revenue or annual gross rents, as appropriate, and other income,
for each Urban Renewal Entity designated pursuant to N.J.SA. 40A:^0-1 et seq>, NJ-SA. 40A:21-l ^t
seq., N.J.S.A.. 55:14K-i et seq. or, in the case of a condominium project, as determined pursuant to

^Project" m-eans the land an-d the improvements thereto Q): thereon or the constraction, improvement or
conversion of a structure in an area in need of rehabilitation th%t would qualify for a PILOT, and which
are the subject of the Financial Agreement.

i» mmonues ana women

owtied businesses during construction and permanent employraent upon project completion for the term
of the exemption.

Tax Exemption" means to exempt fi-om conventional taxation the value of improvements under a
fmancial agreement pursuant to NJ,S,A. 40A:20-1 et seq., N,J,_SA. 55:14K-1 et seq. or tax agireemerrt
pursuant lo NJ.S.A. 40A:21-3, for a limited time has provided in the Financial Agreement between the
City and the Entity; more commonly referred to as a "tax abatement" to hereinafter shall be referred to
as a "PILOT."

III. Procedure for the Award of a Tax Exemption.

WW),XK'£fWwn SCV



A. First Step: Project Proposal Discussion;.

Prior to submitting an application the Project Developer or its designated agent and/or attorney
will meet with the Deputy Mayor or his/her designated agent to go over the general parameters of the
proposed project mid PILOT application. Projects located within an area designated as a Redevelopment
Area may be obligated to enter into a Redevelopment Agreement with the Jersey City Redevelopment
Agency (JCRA) pursuant to its mission to undertake and/or assist with redevelopment projects with
flmctkms such as project facilitation, site assembkge and clearance, and environmental
remediation, Suclt agreement may include terms and conditions consistent with the Cit/s affordable

B. Second Step: The Entity Submits an Application for a PILOT:

The Entity must submit an Application addressed to the Mayor, The Entity in its Application
shall satisfy the minimum requirements set forth in state law, and demonstrate compliance with the
policy guidelines attached hereto as Exhibit A..

C. Third Step: The Mayor ACTrov&s of Disapproves the Aoplication:

The Mayor shall recommend within 60 days to approve or disapprove the Application. The
Mayor's recommendation will be based upon the application's compliance with the mimmum
requirements contained in state and the policy guidelines attached hereto, subject to legal review by
Corporation Counsel. The Mayor shall subiml the Application to the Council with his recommendation.

If the Entity demonsbrates it has met th$ minimum requu'ements set forth in state law; and has
complied with the criteria set fort}i in the attached policy guidelines, the Application shall receive
Mayoral recommendation and should be approved by the Council, An Application fhat lias been
disapproved by the Mayor may be withdrawn, revised and resubmitted by the Entity, but a new
appU&ation fee will be charged.

D * Fourth Step: The Financial Agreement Between tlie Entity and the City is Prepared:

Once the Application receives fde Mayor's reconmiendatlon, the City shaii prepare a Financial
Agreement between the City and the Entity to be submitted to the Council with the Application. The
Financial Agreement shall set forth tax exemption provisions mcludmg, at a mimmum, the duration of
the tax exemption and the annual service charge, iacludmg the statutory phase-in Tequirements, and shall
conform to the requirements contamed in the applicable state law. The yinancsal Agreement sliall
conform to all &pplicable ordinances of the City of Jersey City, as well as other such provisions the
Coipomtion Counsel deems appropriate and necessary.

The Financial Agreement shall also include findmgs by the City as to (a) the relative benefits of
die project to the redewioptnent of the redevelopment area, when compared to the costs, if any,
associated with the tax exemption^ and (b) an assessment of the importance of the tax eKemption to b^
granted in obtaining the development of the project and influencing the location decisions of probable
occupants of the project or units of the project

VWU £RS £T? N1.60V



E. Fifth Step; The ApplicaSkm and Fiaancial Agreement ars Submitted to the Council for

Once the Financial Agreement has been prepared, the Financial Agreement shall be submitted to
the Council for approval by ordinance. The Application shall be placed on file with the Clerk so that it
is available for review. The Financial Agreement shall not take effect until approved by ordinance. The
Council will either approve the Application and the Financial Agre&ment as presented and adopt the
ordinance, or disapprove the Application and the Financial Agreetnenfc as presented and reject the
ordinance. If the Application and the Financial Agreement conform to the policy guidelines attached
hereto^ adoption is strongly encouraged. Ate adoption, a Financial Agreement may be amended or
modified from time to time but only with the mutual consent of the parties. Any amendments or
modifications of Financial Agreements shall be by application and will be subject to the same procedure
as a new application, including tJie payment of an. application fee as set forth m § 160-1 (KK) of the
Jersey Ci£y Code.

IV. Application ~ Criteria for Evaluation,

An application will be evaluated by the Mayor according to the criteria set forth in the attached
policy for the award of a PILOT. Failure of an Entity's Application to conform to the within PILOT
Policy will result in the Application receivmg a negative or unfavorable recormnend^tion f?oxn the

/or,

V. 'Fmancial Agreement - Form. and Contents

Every approved project shall be evidenced by a Financial Agreement between the City and the
Entity. The Financial Agreement shall be in the form of a contract, and shall include, but not be limited
to, the following;

A. A detailed construction schedule, which must indicate that the commeEicement of
construction shall occur no later -than 2 years from the date of adoption of the ordmance approving the
tax exemption. Unless otherwise provided for by law, constmction shall be deemed to have commenced
when all necessary approvals, including the issuance of building permits, have been obtained and
constmction activity has begua on site;

S, The Entity^s plans for flnanciag the project fneluding the estimate^ tot^ project cost, the
amortization rate on -the total project cost, the source of funds, the interest rates to be paid on the
construction fmancing, the source md amQunt ofpaid-in capital, the terms of mortgage amortization or
payment of principal on any mortgage, a good faith projection of initial sales prices of any condomimum
ymts (if applicable) and expenses to be incuired in promoting emd consummating such sales, and the
rental scWules and lease terms to be used m the project (if applicable). Any changes or modifications
to the plans for financing, mcludmg the project cost xnust be reported in a timely manner to the Mayor;

C. The amount of the administrative fee;

D. The duration or term of the Financial Agreement, which shall commence upon the
delivery 1?y the City Clerk to the Tax Assessor of a certified copy of the ordinance approving the
Financial Agreement as provided m NJ.S.A, 40A:20-12, delivery shall be presumed to have occmred
upon final publication of the ordinance approvmg the PILOT;



E. The first payment of the Eumual service charge which shall become due and owing on the
first day of the month following Substantial Completion of the project. Substantial Completion shall
ffiean the date ofth& issuance of the fast certificate of occupancy, whether temporary or final, for any
portion of the project. The annual service charge, if not tim&ly paid, shall accrue interest thereafter,
whether or not the Entity receives a bill therefore, and aceme at the same rate as charged for delinquent

F. The amount and schedule of paymenls to the Affordable Housing Tmst Fimd (if
ipplieable) which shall be m accordance with the governing statute and §304-28 to §304-30 of the

G. The m&thod for computing the project's gross annual revenue;

H. A requirement to execute a Project Employment and Contractmg Agreement and, if
applicabk, a Project Labor Agreement;

1. A requirement to comply with the Livmg Wage Ordinaacet Section 3-76 of the Jersey

J. A provision that the profits of and/or dividends payable by the Entity shall be limited,
aecordin^ to tlie provisions ofNJ.S.A. 40A:20-1 et SCCL., if the Entity is a Hmlted-dividend entity, and
th%t such excess net profits, If any, shall be calculated and paid axmually to the Crty as an additional
service charge in accordance with WLSAi 40A:20"3(c) and N.J.S.A,. 40A:20"15;

K. A provision that requires the Edtity to pay a county service charge in an amount equal to
5% of the annual semce charge payable to the City and remitted by the City to the County in addition to
the annual City service charge and the administrative cost charge.

L. A requirement that the Entity submit, wifhin 90 days after the close of its fiscal year, its
auditor's reports to the Mayor or his designee^ Busmess Admmlstratoi, Tax Collector, Corporation
Counsel, City O&rk, as well as to the Director of the Division of Local Government Service in. the New
Jersey Department of Community Affairs, The auditor's report shall include an audit of total project
cos.t certified by the project architect and certified public &ccoimtant» the annual au<iit of annuaJI gross
revemis, an annual excess profit calculation and the annual financial operations of the project. Th? audit
shall be certified to by a certified public accountant, Tiie City reserves the right TQ undertake a separate
audit by an outside auditor the cost to be borne by tlie Entity and

M. Such other terms and. conditions as the Corporation Counsel or Business AdministEator

VI. Financial Agreement - Enforcement and Penalties.

Historically,, enforcement procedures, mechanisms, and penalties varied on a project-by"project
basis. Going forward, enforcement procedures, mechanisms and penalties will ^>e standardized and
applied uniformly. Any Entity which is m default of an obligation in the Financial Agreement shall be
required to cure the default within 30 days after receivmg a notice of the default. Examples of an event
of default include, but are not limited to, failure to commence or complete construction in accordance

5
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with fee construction schedule; failure to timely pay die annual service charge administrative fee,
contribution to the Affordable Housing Trust, or any other fees associated with the project and Fmancial
Agreement; failure to timely submit certified copies of audits of total project cost, ammal gross revenue
and annual excess profit calculation; and the breach of any o^er material condition. Failure to cure the
default within the specified cure period will require the Entity to pay the City's legal fees, costs and
expenses in enforcing the Fmancia! Agreement and. may result m the imposition of any or all of the
following remedies;

»a

B. If the parties cannot quantify damages, liquidated damages wlU be imposed in accordance
with the Financial Agresment,

C Imposition of interest on the late payments of any charges at the highest rate allowed for
by law for delinquent taxes^

D. Increase m the percentage of annual gross revenue or total project cost, as applicable,
used to calculate the annual service charge,

B- Suspension or ten&ination of the tax exeraption;
F, All of the remedies provided in the PECA or PLA, if applicable.

If any provision of this EO^ or the application of any such piovLsion to any person or
circumstances^ shall be held invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the femamder of this EO to the
extent it c^n be given effect, or the application of such provision to persons or ciicumstances other than
those to which it is held invalid or unenforceable shall not be affected thereby^ and to this extent the
provisions of this EO are sev&iable,

The EO and attached policy guidelines shall be kept on file in the office of the City Clerk and the
Office of the Tax Collector. It will be posted on the City's website and will be made available to the
public upon request*

This EO shall take effect immediately.

?VENM.PULOP
MAYOR
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STEVEN M, FULOP
N.WnOFJ&RSEVWY

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
CITY HALL j 280 GROVE STREET J JERSEY CITY, NJ 07302

P: 201547 5500 | F: 201547 5442

STEVEN M, FULOP
MA?SOf^fl?CTciry

Real estate development is crucial to building a city; however, unfettered development does not
guarantee that the City ofJeisey City will succeed in realizing its full potential. To excel, the City must
adopt a thoughtful, reasoned, comprehensive development strategy, then 'property and efficiently
manage the resulting development. This includes realizing adequate tax revenues to support essential
City services, creating jobs at all income and educational levels, and fostering the right mix of housing,
commercial and recyeational opportunities necessary to cultivate and strengthen vibrant neighborhoods
of varying characteristics. The 2013 Policy laid tbe foundation for the City to make Its progressive
vision a reality. This 2015 Policy reflects a review of the 2013 policy with appropriate adjustments to
further that vision.

The City?s historic use of Payments in Lieu of Taxes (PILOTs) h&d resulted in unbalanced
development that has not truly benefited the City as a whole. This policy seeks to address this reality.
Consequently, long-term PILOTS will be modified along-the waterfr&nt and downtown. And long-term
PILOTS will be more fully utilized to support and encourage development in other areas of the City,
including but not limited to Journal Square, Bergea Lafayette and along the Route 440 Corridor.

How and where to create incentives for development within the City continues to be critical factors
to fulfill the City's needs for strategic globally beneficial development. While the use of PILOTS is
controlled by various state laws, there Is flexibility within- the Long-Term. Tax Exemption Law and the
Redevelopment Area Bonding Law that allows the City to prioritize and maximize the impact of
PILOTS. The below policy recognizes the importance of PILOTS to encourage redevelopment in parts
of the City where it is most needed and incorporates the principles of standardization to make the tax
abatement process more transparent and predictable. The intention is to prioritize ttie use ofPILOTs in
targeted areas as well as to encourage investment, job creation and the construction of new affordable
housing for the benefit of longstanding residents and businesses of the City.

Affordable housing is a public good. and a benefit to the residents of the City that would not
otewise occur without the City providing incentives. By partnering with developers, the City is able to
create quality, sustaitiable a-fFordable housing in all areas of the City, which will ensure any resident,
regardless of where they live, can enjoy the same benefits and amenities that come witk new
development as their peers.
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The policy guidelines and structure of the current Jersey City PILOT program reiy upon the Long"
Term Tax Exemption Law (LTTE). The within policy utilizes the current City ordinances witli strategic
amendments. The Ordinances addressed herein include: the Affordable Housing Trust Fund (Chapter
304-2S et seq.); Constmedon Project Labor Agreements (Chapter
304-33 et seq.) and. the Living Wage Ordinance (Chapter 3-76c et seq.). These ordinances utilize
several concepts that will continue to be used and warrant identification herein. These concepts are:

© Project Labor Agreement: A Project Labor Agreement (PLA) is a contract between a labor
organization and a developer that contains at a minimum the requirements set forth in the Section
304 of the City Code dealing with Construction PLAs, The City currently requires a PLA for
projects with actual construction costs exceeding $25,000,000. Other requirement^ include, but
are not limited to, a guarantee that 'there will be no strikes or lockouts; procedures to ensure the

. timely resolution of labor disputes; and a mandate that 20% of the labor hours required shall be
performed by apprentices and that all apprentices be City residents,

® Project Employment ^nd Contracting Agreement: The City has a policy requiring any recipient
of an economic incentive, defined m part as any tax abatement or exemption, that reduces fh^
annual amount of ta?<es otherwise due by $25,000 or more in the aggregate, to achieve a good
faith goal of a workfoTce representing 51% City residents, 51% of whom are minorities and, in
non-traditional jobs, 6,9% of whom are women. In. addition, developers must achieve a good

faith goal of awarding 20% of the dollar amount of its contracts to local businesses, 51% of
which shall be minority or woman owned local businesses. The terms and conditions of such
goals are set forth in a Project Employment and Contracting Agreement (PECA) to be executed
at the same time of the Financial Agreement is executed.

® Cost-Benefit Analysis; Pursuant to the cost-benefit analysis required by state law, the City

weighs the relative benefits of developing a blighted site or a?ea against the increased costs
generated by the project (if any) to the City. Finajiciai agreements shall include findings settmg
forth the relative benefits of the project to the redevelopment of the redevelopment ayea when
compared to the costs, if any, associated with the tax exemption and an assessment of the
importance of the tax exemption £o be granted in obtaining the development of the project and in
infhencmg the decisions of probable occupants of the project or units of the project. The relative
benefits include whether the project will provide employment and other economic opporUmities
for City residents and businesses. The incentives described in this policy will encourage and
facilitate job creation, which in addidon to providing employment opportunities also tends to
stabilize and contribute to thje economic growth of businesses hi the surrounding area, as well as
further the overall redevelopment objectives of tbe underlying redevelopment plan or Urban
Enterprise Zone.

a LiviA^ Wase: An Entity receiving a PILOT for a project with a construction cost o'f at least
$25,000,000, excluding land acquisition costs, is required to insure that both the Entity and/or its
tenants or subtenants provide certain wage, benefit and leave standords to all jamtors and
unarmed security guards employed at the project as mandated by Section 3-76(C) of the City
Code. The Entity is also required to include the provision in ati leases to insure that the
provision is applied to all janitors and unarmed security guards, whether directly or mdireotly
employed by the Entity^ its tenant or subtenant
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Moderate Income Housmg: The City bases its definitions of low and moderate income housing
mcome limits on those promulgated by the United States Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD). When the term "Moderate Income Housing" is used in this policy,
however, it stiall mean housing available to households earning at or below §0% of the Area
Median Income (AMI).

Affordable Housing Trust Fund: Contribution to the City's Affordable Housing Trust Fund
(AHTF) is required for any market rate housing project or any commercial or industrial project
receiving a PILOT, The amornit of the eontribufions is set by State law as adopted by the City in
Section 304-28 of the City Code.

The PILOT structure described herein Is multi-tiered and is intended to support and provide
gfeater incentives for new development in targeted areas of the City, wliHe con£in.umg to provide
financial incentive to support development along the waterfront All tiers are subject to the p^ase-un of
conventional taxes over the life of the PILOT as provided herein and in accordance with state law. The
City reserves the right to adjust the service eharge provided for in each tlsr if the cost-benefit analysis
results in a negative financial impact upon the City.

Attached to this document as Appendix A is a map which identifies several 2&nes» each of which
are eligible for different mcentives. Each zone is defined as a tier, The first thr^e tiers are based on a
combined analysis of census tracts by Area Median Income, along with the City's recognized
redevelopment areas and conditions and quality of infrastructure. The fourth tier categorizes the areas in
the City most in. need of development. The fiftli and sixth tiers categorize types of development deemed
to l3& so important or beneficial to the City's interests that they must be treated outside of the
geograplilcally defined tiers that make up the crux of this program.

Projects that fall within the zone designated as the 1st Tier on tlie Tier Map shall be eligible for a
PILOT with the following terms:

Term: 10 years;

Armual service charge; 13% of annual gross revenues to the City;

® County service charge: An axnoimt equal to 5% of the City service charge to be paid to the City
in addition to the City^s service charge @nd to be remitted by the City to the County;

Administrative cost charge: 2% of annual service charge;

^ Financial Agreement;

10% of the units to be built must be Moderate Income Housing. The applicant may be relieved of
its obligation to include a set aside of affordable housing, if the applicant makes a voluntary
contribution to the Affordable Housing Trust Fund, at a rate of no less than $5,,000 for every
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market rate wi-t that is actually built as part of the project. This contribution is In addition to the
AHTF obligations imposed by City ordinance, state statute or the Financial Agreement.

Compliance -with applicable City ordinances, includmg affordable housing, PECA, PLAs and
Living Wage; and

e All projects that demonstrate they have exceeded the applicable biring obligations contained in
the PECA and/or PLA are eligible for a 1% reduction In the annual service charge for the entire
duration of the abatement starting from when the project tias made the demonstration and for as
long. as the project remains in full corapliance with all applicable PECA and/or PLA hlrmg
obligations. As provided for in the applicable agreement, all projects shall report compliance
with PECA and/or PLA regularly during the eonstmction phase to qualify for the 1% reduction,
After construction is complete, all projects shall report annually to mamtai?i eligibiUty.
However, in the event that the project receiving the 1% reduction ceases to be m compliance the
1% reduction will be suspended^ m addition to the imposition of other remedies.

Additional considerations:

® Projects located within an area designated as a Redevelopment Area may be obligated to enter
into a Redevelopment Agreement with tlie Jersey City Redevelopment Agency (JCRA) pursuant
to its mission to undertake and/or assist with redevelopment projects with fiinctions such as
project facilitation, site assemblage and clearance, and enviroiu&ental remediation. Such
agreement may include terms and conditions consistent with the City's affordable housing
policies.

® Any affordable housing project located in this tier shall be eligible to utilize the incentives
allowed for and subject to the requirements under the 5 Tier; and

Any commercial project located in this tier shall only be eligible to utilize the incentives allowed
for and subject to the requirements under the 6fii Tier.

Use of % RAB may be permitted for mfrastmcture or related redevelopment uses as permitted by
the Redevelopment Area Bond Financing Law NJ,S.A. 40A:12A-64 et seq. as racen-tive for
projects in this tier.

Projects within tte I Tier may be eligible for an additional 5 year term making the entire term of
the abatement 15 years if the applicant commits to bmldmg additional onsite Moderate Income Housing
units as follows:

For projects that will set aside 5% of the total -units built as onsite Moderat& Income Housmg
as a condition of a zoning or redevelopment plan^ or

® For projects that agree to set aside 10% of the total units built as onsite Moderate Income
Housing absent any other onsite Moderate Income Housing obiigations.

For those applicants electing the additional 5 year term, the total cmsite affordable housing mclusion
will not exceed 20% of the total unite constructed. In the alternative, the applicant may be eligible for
an additional 5 year term if it makes a voluntary contributioa to the AHTF in the amount of $15,090 per
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unit for every unit that will be built on the site. However, any requirement to Include onsite affordabb
housing that is part of a redevelopment plan can only be altered by amending the plan. All cash
contributions are due and owing-at the time the ordmance authorizing the PILOT -talces effect, and. are
nonrefundable. Any obligation tesulting from extending £he term of the abatement is in addition- to the
standard AHTF obligations imposed by City ordinance, state statute or the Financial Agreement,

iiid

iiidProjects that fall wiiliin the zone designated as the 2'la Tier on the Tier Map shall be eligible for a
PILOT with the followmg terms:

>• Term: 10 years;

Annual service charge: 11 % of annual gross revenues;

® County service charge: An amount equal to 5% of the City service charge to be paid to the City
in addition to the City's service charge and to be remitted by the City to the County;

^ Administrative cost charge: 2% of annual service charge;

® Financial Agreement;

s. Compliance with applicable City ordinances, including affordable housing, PECA, PLA and
Living Wage; and

® All projects that demonstrate they have exceeded the applicable hiring obligations contained m
the PECA and/or PLA are eligible for a 1% reduction in the annual service charge for th^ entire
dmtion of the abatement starting from when the project has made fhe demonstration and. for as
long as the project remains in full compliance with all applicable PECA and/or PLA hiring
obligations. However, in the event that the project receiving the 1% teduolion ceases to be in
compliance the 1% reduction will be suspended, m addition to the imposition ofcfer remedies.

Other considerations:

Projects located within an area designated as a. Redevelopment Area may be obligated to enter
mto a R&developrasnt Agr&ement with the" Jersey City Redevelopment Agency (JCRA) pursuant
to its mission to widertake and/or assist with redevdopmen.t projects with functions such as
project facilitation, site assemblage and clearance, environmental remediation. Such agreement
may include terms and conditions consistent with the City's affordable housing policies.

Any affordable housing project located in tins tier shall ^& eligible to utilize the incentives
allowed for and subject to the requirements under the 5 Tier; and

Any commercial project located in tHs tier shall only be eligible to utilize the incentives allowed
for and subject to the requirem&nts under the 6 Tier, .
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©. Use of a RAB may be permitted for infrastructure or related redevelopment uses as pennitted by
the Redevelopment Area Bond Financing Law N.LS.A. 40A:12A-64 et seq. as incentive for

projects in this tier,

Projects within the 2s Tier may be eligible for an additional 10 year tenn making the entire term of
the abatement 20 years if the applicant commits to building additional onsite Moderate Income Housing
(up to 80% AMI) units as follows:

For projects ttiat will set aside 5% of the total units built as onsite Moderate Income housing
as a condition of a z-onmg or redevelopment plan; or

® For projects that agree to set aside 10% of the total units built as onsite Moderate Income
Housing absent any other onsite Moderate Income Housing obligations.

For those applicants electing the additional 10 year term, the total onshe affordable housing
inclusion will not 5Kceed 20% &f the total units constructed. In the alternatives the applicant may be
eligible for an additional 10 year term if it makes a voluntary contribution to the AHTF in the amount of
$15,000 per unit for every unit that will be built on the site. However, any requirement to include onsite
affordable housing that is part of a redevelopment plan can only be altered by amending tiie plan. All
cash contributions are dve and owing at the time the ordinance authorizing the PILOT takes effect, and
are nonrefundable. Any obligation resulting fir&m extending the term of the abatement is in addition to
the standard AHTF obligations imposed by City ordinance, state statute or the Financial Agreement.

trd TT;,&i6

Projects that fall within the zone designated as the 3 Tier on the Tier Map shall be eligible for a
PILOT with "the following terms:

Term: 20 years;

Annual service charge: 11% of annual gross revenues;

County service charge; An amount equal to 5°/o of the City service charge to be paid to the City
in addition to the City's service charge and to be remitted by the City to the County;

Administrative fee: 2% of annual service charge;

Financial Agreement;

Compliance with applicable City ordinances, including affordabls housing, PECA, PLA and
Living Wage; and

All projects that demonstrate they have exceeded the applicable hiring obligations contained in
the PECA and/or PLA are eligibla for a 1% reduction in the annual service charge for the entire
duration of the abatement starting from when the project has made the demonstration arid fbf as
long as the project remains in fall compliance with all applicable PECA and/or PLA hiring
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obligations. However, in the event that the project receiving the 1% reduction ceases to be in
. compliance the 1% reduction will be suspended, in addition to the imposition of other remedies.

Additional considerations;

& Projects located within an area designated as a Redevelopment Area may be obligated fo enter
into a Redevelopment Agreement with fche Jersey City Redevelopment Agency (JCRA) pursuant
to its mission to undertake and/or assist with. redevelopmerLt projects with functions sucii BS
project facilitation, site assem.blage and clearance, environmental remediation. Sucli agreement
may include tenns and conditions consistent with the City s affordable housing policies,

® Any affordable housing project located in this tier shall be eligible to utilize the Incentives
allowed for and subject to the requirements under the 5 Tier; and

Any commercial project located in this tier shall only be eligible to utilize fhe inceiriives allowed
for and subject to the requirements under the 6 Tier.

Use of ^ RAB may be permitted for infrastructure or related redevelopment uses as permitted by
tiie R.edev&lopment Area Bond Financing Law NJ.SA. 40A:l2A-64 e£ seq. as incentive for
projects in this tier.

Projects within the 3r Tier may be eligible for an additional 10 year term making the entire term of
the abatement 30 years If the applicant commits'to bmldmg additional onsifce Moderate Income Housing
(80% AMI) units as follows:

@ For projects that will set aside 5% of the total units built as onsite Moderate laeome Housing
as a condition of a zoning or redevelopment plan; or

® For projects that agree to set aside 10% of the total units built as onsite Moderate Income
Housing absent any other onsite Moderate Income Housing oblig&tions.

For those applicants electing the additional 10 year term, the total onsite affordable housing
inclusion, will not exceed 20% of the total units constructed, In the alternative, the applicant may be
eligible for an additional 10 year term if it makes a voluntary contribution to the AHTF in. the amount of
$15,000 per unit for every unit that will be builf on the site. However, any pequirem-ent to include onsite
affordable housing that is part of a redevelopment plan can only be altered by amending the plan, AU
cash. cont-ibutions are due and owing at the time the ordinance authorizing file PILOT takes effect, and
are nonrefundable. Any obligation resulting from exlending the term of the abatement is in addition to
the standard AHTF obligations imposed by City ordinance, state statute or the Financial Agreement,

Projects fchaf fall within the zone designated as the 4? Tier on the Tier Map shall be eligible for a PILOT
with the following tenns^

Maximum term: 30 years;

® Annual service charge: 1 1% of annual gross revenues;
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County service charge; An amount equal to 5 % ofths City service charge to be paid to Ae City
' in addition to the City's sen/ice charge and to be remitted by the City to the County;

A.dmmistrative fee: not to exceed 2% of annual service charge;

® Financial Agreement;

<& Compliance with applic&ble City ordmances; includmg affordable hoysmg, PECA; PLA and
Living Wages, and

® All projects that demonstrate they have exceeded the applicable hiring obligations contained in.
the PECA and/OT PLA are eligible for a 1% reduction in the annual service charge for the entire

• duration of the abatement starting from when the project has made the demonstration and for as

long as the project remains in fall compliance with ail applicable PECA and/or PLA hiring
obligations. However, in the event tliat the project receivmg the 1% reduction ceases to be in
compliance the 1% reduction will be suspended, in addition to the imposition of other remedies.

Additional considerations: - .

Projects located within an area designated as a Redevelopment Area may be obligated to enter
into a Redevelopment Agreement with the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency (JCRA) pursuant
to its mission to undertake- and/or assist with redevelopment projects with functions such as
project facilitation, site assemblage and ^balances environmental remediation. Such agreement
may include terms and conditions consistent with the City's affordable housing policies.

^ Any affordable housing project located in this ti-er shall be eligible to utlllzs the incentives
allowed for and subject to the requirements under the 5 Tier; and

Any cormnerciaJ project located in this tier sliall only be eligible to utilize the incentives allowed
• for and subject to the requirements under the 6 Tier,

Use of a RAB may be pemiitted for infrastructure or related redevelopment uses as pemiittsd by
the Redevelopment Area Bond Financing Law NJ^A,. 40A:12A-64 et seq. as ineenrive for
projects in this tier.

^ttl

Any Affordable Housing Project located anywhere in the City will be eligible for a PILOT with title
following terms;

» Administrative fee; 2% ofUie annual service charge;

Financial Agreement to accord with either the Long-Term Tax Exemption (LTTE) law or the
New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency (HMFA) law usually 30 years; and
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A Project Employment and Contractmg Agreement requiring the hiring of City residents and
using of City suppliers.

There are three categories of affordable housing projects: (I) Low or Moderate Income Housing
projects defined under St&te or Federal law; (2) mixed mcome projects; and, (3) project-based
Se&tion § projects:

o Low orModerate Incom& Housina Projects;

a 100% of the project for the entire term of the PILOT is for exclusive occupancy
by households with gross household income not to exceed S0% AM? for
households of the same size within the housing region ("Affordable Umts"),
Projects with I00°/o Affordable Units applying under the LTTE or HMFA law
will be treated the same1 and shall be eligible for a PILOT with the following
minimal terms:

© Eicemption term cotermmous wi.th the HMFA morlgag&, or for LTTE
projects^ the length required, to satisfy the terms of the State or Federal
Affordable Housing financing or otherwise required by law. In either case
the term shall not exceed the duration of the affordabllity controls;
Annual semoe charge: 5% - §% of annual gross revenues; and

Administrative fee of ,5% of annual service charge,

o Mixed-Jrtcome Proiects:

[a Projects with a minimum of 20% deed restricted Affordable Units for the temi of
the tax exemption shall be eligible for a PILOT with the following mmimal terms;

® Exemption term cotermin-ous with the HMFA mortgage or, for LTTE
projects, the length required to satisfy the terms of the State or Federal
Affordable Housing financing or othenvise required by law. In either case
the term shall not exceed the duration ofaffordability controls;
Annual service charge:

o 5% - 8% of annual gross revenues for the Affordable Units,
o a percentage of annual gross revenue for the market rate

residential units, depending on. Tier in which ths project is located
s Admmistr^tive fee: .5% of annual service charge^ and

The number of Affordable Units as well as verification of mcome eligibility for
all occupants in Affordable Units must be certified to the City annually.

Additional considerations:

© Contributions to the City's AHTF will not be required.

®' Any affordable housing project that includes a commercial component shall be eligible for a
PILOT on the commercial component only at 10% of annual gross rev&nues for the same length
of the TA on the affordable housing.

1 Projects seeking exemption under the HMFA will require sn HMFA mortgage as required by the govermng statute.
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Projects located within, an area designated as a Redevelopment Area may be obligated to enter
into a Redevelopment Agreement with the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency (JCRA) pursuant
to its mission to undertake and/or assist with redevelopment projects with functions such as
project facilitation, site assemblage and clearanc&, and environmental remedlation. Such
agreement may include terms and conditions consistent with the City's affordable housing

policies,

Use of a RAB may be permitted for infrastructure or related red&velopmeot uses as permitted by
the Redevelopment Area Bond Financing Law NJ.S.A, 40A;12A-64 el seq. as incentive for
projects in this tier.

6A - Hotel Projects:

Any hotel project shall be eligible fora PILOT with the followmg terms:

® Maximum term: 30 years;

service cliarge of:

o 11 % of annual gross revenues; or^

o 3% of Total Project Cost, as more specifically defined by statute and Marshall and Sv.dft.

© Administrative fee; 2% of annual service charge;

Financial Agreem&nt;

® Compliance with applicable City ordinances, includmg affordable housing, PECA, PLA and
Living Wage; and

All projects that demonstrate they have exceeded the applicable hirmg obligations contained in
the PECA and/or PLA are eligible for a 1% reduction m the annual senrice charge for the entire
duration of the abatement starting from when the project has made the demonstration and for as
long as the project remains in full compliance with all applicable PECA and/or PLA hiring
obligations. However, m the event that the project receiving the 1% reduction ceases to be in
compliance the 1% reduction will be suspended, In addition to the imposition of other remedies,

Additional considerations: . '

Terms and condirions including the duration, the amount of the annual service charge and
administrative fee, may be negotiated by the Mayor subject to the terms and conditions and other
guidance provided in the LTTE law and City ordinances; and

Projects located within an area designated as a Redevelopment Area may be obligated to enter
into a Redevelopment Agreement with the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency (JCRA) pursuant
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to its mission to undertake and/or assist with redevelopment projects with functions such as
project facilitation, site assemblage and clesirance, and environmental remediatiQFL

Use of a RAB may be permitted for mfrastructure or related redevelopment uses as permitted by
• the Redevelopment Area Bond Financing Law NJ.SA. 40A: 1 2A-64 et seq. as incentive for

projects in this tier.

6B - Commercial & Industrial Projects:

Any commercial or industrial project, as defined by statute and that will employee more than 25 fuH
time permanent employees, located throughout the City shall be eligible for a PILOT with the followmg
minimal terms:

® Maximum term: 30 years;

® Service charge: 10% of annual gross revenues;

® Administrative fee: 2% of annual service charge;

Financial Agreement; and

^ Compliance witb applicable City ordinances, Iticluding affordable housing, PECA, PLA and
Living Wage.

Additional considerations;

& Terms and conditions including the duration, the amount of the annual sen/ice chargs and
administrative fee, may be negotiated by ths Mayor subject to the terms and conditions and other
guidance provided in the LTTE taw and City ordinances; and

Use of a RAB may be permitted for infrastructure or related redevelopment uses as permitted by
the Redevelopment Area Bond Financing Law NJ.S.A. 40A:12A-64 et seq. as incentive for
projects in tbis tier.

All staged adjustments required pursuant to N.J.S.A. 4&A:20-l2(b)(2) shall be based on the terra of the
PILOT and shall be phased in as follows:

Term of 10 Years:

Phase one; Years 1-6: Annual Service Charge (ASC)
Phase two: Year?: Greater of ASC or 20%
Phase three: Year 8; Greater of ASC or 40%
Phase fovff\ Year 9: Greater of ASC or 60%
Phase five: Year 10; Greater of ASC or 80%

Term of 20 Years:

Phase one: Years 1-6; ASC
Page Xl of 13
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Phase two; Years 7-9: Greater of AS C or 20%
Phase three: Years 10-12: Greater of ASC or 40%
Phasefour: Years 13-16: Greater of ASC or 60%
Phase five: Years 17-20: Greater ofASC or §0%

Term of 25 Years:
Phase one; Years 1-6: ASC
Phase two: Years 7-10: Greater of ASC or 20%
Phase three: Years 11-14: Greater of ASC or 40%
Phase four: YearslS-20: Greater of ASC or 60%
Phase five: Years 21-25: Greater of ASC or §0%

Term of 30 Years;
Phase one: Years 1-9^ ASC
Phasetwo: Years 10-13: Gieater of ASC or 20%
Phase three: Years 14-17: Greater of ASC or 40%

. Phase four: Years 18-21: Greater of ASC or 60%
Phase five; Years 22-30: Greater of ASC or 80%

A standing committee appointed by the Mayor shall review the Tier Map and policy as needed to
ensure that each area is receiving the appropriate level of incentives and to ensure that ihe Policy and
term extension structure are coxrectly attuned to the mark.et to foster the desired, amount of development.
This committee shall be called the JC Tax Exemption Review Conunittee and shall issue
recommendations to the Mayor.

Proper enforcement is critical to ensure the City is receiving all benefits from. PlLOTs it is due under
the law and pursuant to tile terms of the Financial Agreements. This includes enforcement of Project
Employment and Contracting Agreements, Project Labor Agreements and Living Wage Ordinance.
Enforcement will include annual audits by the City to ensure th? City is receiving the full amount of the
PILOT as well as its annual payment of excess profits^ Enforcement will further include monitoring
projects to ensure construction is completed within a reasonable period of time after a PILOT is
awarded. Projects which have not commenced construction witliin 2 years, for example, should be
reviewed to either amend tlie terms of the Financial Agreement, or in certain cases> terminate the
Financial Agreement.

Consistent with its financial agreement practice, the City will require projects to submit to the Mayor
and the Municipal Council an auditor's leport, an audit of the project cost, a disclosure statement listing
persons having an ownership interest in the project, and allow upon request examination and audit of its
or its affiliate^ books, contracts, records, documents and papers.

Enforcemeat ofPLAs and PECA agreements shall be overseen by the Abatement Compliance OfRce
as well as the Tax Collector's Office and in conjunction with the Corporation Counsel's office,
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All onsite affordable housing obligations resulting ftom a PILOT shall be restricted by deed or
agreement for at least the entire term of the Financial Agreement- Failure to comply with any aspect of
an onsite affordable housing obligation sliall result in either a payment to the AHTF ortermmation of
the Financial Agreement.

The Executive Order a&d this companion PILOT Policy are prospective. Accordingly, other than
the review, enforcement sections herein and .in the Executive Order, the within terms apply only to
future PILOTS and related Fmanclal Agreements. Amendments to existing Financial Agreem&tris must
be negotiated in accordance wi-th the terms of their agreements and state .law,

As a practical matter, to effectuate modifications or amendments to existing Financial
Agreements, an Entity must first submit a written request in the form of an application, accompanied by
the applicable fee, to the Mayor's office. If acceptable, the M^ayor will issue a recommendation to the
Mmuclpal Coun.cil, which will be submitted in conjunction with an ordinance recommend-ing the
modification or amendment. An application to modify or amsnd an existing Financial Agreement must
provide an explanation justifying modification or amendment.

The Mayor's recommendation shall accord with the within Policy and Executive Order.
Approval does not become final until adoption of an ordinance by^igJCoyaei^

September 3r\ 2015
-n^. FULOP

MAYOR
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August 4,2015
Numberec! h/lapi 614
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In compliance with Executive Orders # 2013-004 of the Mayor of the City of Jersey City, the
Applicant herewith submits the following information in support of its application for a Long Term
Tax Exemption under and pursuanttoNJ.S.A. 40A:20-1, et seq. and in accordance with Tiered Tax

Exemption Policy of the Mayor of Jersey City,

Applicant Wave Urban Renewal LLC

Project The Wave

Block 7302, Lot 3,09 (formerly part of Block 7302,
Lot 3.01)
700 Washington Boulevard, Jersey City, New Jersey

Applicant's General. Contractor

Applicant's Architect

To Be Determined

Applicant's Engineer

Applicant's Attorney

Loan Advisor and/or Consultants

Connell Foley LLP
Harborside Financial Center
2510 Plaza Five
Jersey City, NJ 07311
(201)521-1000
Attn: James C. McCann, Esq.

To Be Determined
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1.

The Project is located on Block 73 02, Lot 3.09 (formerly part of Block 7302, Lot 3.01 -1 0.33 acres)
and commonly known as 700 Washington Boulevard, Jersey City, New Jersey (hereinafter the
Property"), The metes and bounds description of the Property where the Project is located is

attached hereto as page 1 of Ex hi bit A. The Property consists of vacant land v/ith'a foundation that
has been constructed for the Project. Lot 3,09 is 1.296 acres.

The Applicant proposes that 100% of annual service charges generated by the Project be dedicated
by the City of Jersey City to the Jersey City Board of Education ("JCBOE") for its exclusive use and
control.

2. Abatement

The Applicant seeks a long term tax exemption pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et.seq. (the "Law")
for the Project. The Project is located in the Newport Redevelopment Plan area. The Project is
located within the zcne designated as the 1 Tier as set forth on the Tier Map and described in the

Jersey City Tiered Tax Exemption Policy. The Applicant requests waivers from the requirements set

forth in the Tiered Tax Exemption Policy because the Applicant proposes that 100% of the annual
service charges generated by the Projectbe dedicated to theJCBOE for its exclusive use and control.

The Applicant requests that the financial agreement be based upon the twelve percent (12%) of
annual gross revenue formula for a rental project for the twenty (20) year term of the exemption on

other terms set forth below and in accordance with the exhibits attached hereto (see proposed
fmanci al agreement, hereinafter referred to as "Financial Agreement"), attached hereto as Exhibit I.

Based upon the above formula it is estimated that the Project will render an annual service charge to

the City for dedication to JOB OE of approximately $1,893,896.00; an annual county service charge
to Hudson County of approximately $94,694.00; and, an annual administrative fee to the City of
approximately $37>877.00. An Annual Gross Revenue Computation for the Project is attached
hereto as part of Exhibit B.

3. General

The Project is a redevelopment project located in the Newport Redevelopment Plan area. The

Proj ect is a mixed-use residential building to be named "The Wave". The mix cd-use building will

be 12 stories, 5 storiesand24 stories in height and will contain 336 residential units, approximately
16,490 square feet of permitted retail and/or commercial space and associated site and amenity

improvements.

2
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The Applicant requests th at the term of exemption be forthe earlier of twenty three (23) years from
the effective date of an Ordinance approving thetax exemption or twenty (20) years from the date of
substantial completion of the Project.

The site consists of approximately 54,464 square feet or 1 .296 acres of land located on Block

73 02, Lot 3.09 (formerly part of Block 7302, Lot 3.01).

The improvements to be constructed will consist of the following:

The Proj ect will consist of a mixed-use building which will be 1 2 stories, 5 stories and 24 stories In
height and will contain 336 residential units, approximately 16,490 square feet of permitted retail
and/or commercial space and associated site and amenity improvements. Parking for 181 vehicles

parking for the Project will be provided on the adjacent Lot 3.04 (also formerly part of Lot 3.01).

The residential rental units will be distributed as follows: approximately forty three (43) studios,
which will average approximately six hundred sixty one (661) square feet; approximately one
hundred thi rty two (13 2) one bedrooms, which will average approximately eight hundred nine (809)
square feet; approximately one hundred twenty one (121) two bedrooms, which will average

approximately one thousand one hundred sixty two (1,162) square feet; approximately thirty two (32)
three bedrooms, which will average approximately one thousand four hundred ninety square feet

(1,490) square feet; and, approximately eight (S) four bedrooms, which will average approximately
two thousand four hundred fifty nine (2,459) square feet. Each residential rental unit will have

living, dining, and kitchen areas.

A copy of a site plan showing the Project to be constructed is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

7.

The Total Project Cost, as set forth in Exhibit C, is estimated to be $175,500,420, including soft
costs. The Total Project Cost has been calculated in accordance with the provisions ofNJ.S.A.
40A:20-3(h). Construction costs have been estimated based upon information compiled by the

Applicant.

The breakdown of the Total Project Cost and a Certification of the Estimated Construction Costs are

attached hereto as Exhibit C.

8. Financing Structure;

4688728.7



The Project will be financed through private capital, traditional construction financing, and a

permanent mortgage from an institutional lender.

9. Construction Schedule;

The Applicant will construct the Project upon receipt of the tax abatement for the Project.
Construction is" expected to -b-e-^ubstantially-c-omp-lete within—twenty-fou-r—(-24) months- of

commencement. This construction schedule is subject to force majeicre and the time required to

obtain necessary governmental approvals and permits.

10. Zonim

The Project received Preliminary and Final Major Site Plan Approval with a Deviation from die

Jersey City Planning Board by Resolution adopted on June 13,2017. The Project is located within
the boundaries of the Newport Redevelopment Plan, and apart from the approved deviations

complies with the zoning requirements therein and the Master Plan of the City of Jersey City. See
Resolution attached as Exhibit D.

11. Land

The total real estate tax assessment for Block 7302, Lot 3.01 (10.33 acres) for 2017 was

$16,137,100. On May 3 0, 2018 the Jersey City Planning Board granted a final suMivision approval
for Lot 3.01 establishing Block 7302, Lot 3.09 (1.296 acres). The subdivision was perfected and

recorded on May 25, 2018. A copy of the Resolution granting the subdivision together with the
suhiivisi on plan is attached hereto as part of Exhibit D. Thus, the total real estate tax assessment for

Block 7302, Lot3.09hasnotyetbeendeterminedby the Jersey City Tax Assessor.

12. Current Real Estate Taxes:

All real property taxes charged to Block 73 02, Lot 3.01 (1033 acres) through the date hereof have
been paid in full. The 2018 real estate taxes are $1,258,693.75. The total real estate taxes for Block

7302, Lot 3.09 (1.296 acres) have not yet been billed by the Jersey City Tax Collector.

13. Status of Municipal Taxes andOther Charges:

All municipal real estate taxes and charges against the Property upon which the Project is located

will be paidinfull. The Applicant does not own any other real property other than die Property that
is described herein.

14. Ownership Disclosure Statement:

The Applicant is an urban renewal limited liability company in the process of formation under the

4
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Long Term Tax Exemption Law. A copy of the Certificate of Formation is attached hereto as part of

Exhibit E. A Disclosure Statement is attached hereto as Exhibit F.

15. Protected

The Applicant estimates that construction of the Project will generate nine hundred seventy (970)
jobs over the construction period. Follov/ing the construction period, approximately eight (8)

permanent full time and two (2) part time jobs will be created. Tlie Applicant intends to enter into a

Project Employment Agreement with the City of Jersey City.

The Applicant will comply with the City of Jersey City minority Business Enterprise Ordinance Sect.
2-77 et. seq. of tiie Jersey City Municipal Code by executing a Project Employment Agreement with

the City of Jersey City. See proposed Project Employment and Contracting Agreement attached
hereto as Exhibit J.

16. Compliance with State and Local Law;

A Certification by the Applicant .that the Project meets the requirements of the laws of the State of
New Jersey and the Newport Redevelopment Plan is attached hereto as Exhibit G.

17. Commencement Certificate:

A Certification by the Applicant that the building to be constructed on the newly constructed
foundation for the project will not be constructed until the Applicant has entered into a Financial

Agreement with the City of Jersey City.

18. Certificate of Truthfulness and Diligent Inquiry:

A Certifi cati on of the Applicantthat all information contmned in tie application is tme and correct to

the best of its knowledge after having made diligent inquiry is attached hereto as Exhibit H.

19. Financial AgreemeBt:

A proposed Financial Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit I.

The Applicant is seeking an agreement from the City of Jersey City that all Annual Service Charges
collected by the City be remitted to the Jersey City Board of Education.

The Applicant is seeking a waiver from the requirements of Section 3-510(1) and Section 3-76 of
the Jersey City Municipal Code concerning required wage, benefit and leave standards for building
service workers - See Article Vofthe draft Financial Agreement.

The Applicant is seeking an agreement from the City that it shall not impose any new taxes (real

5
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estate or otherwise), charges, fees, impositions of any type or kind on the Property, the Project, the

Entity or the tenants or occupants of the Project - See Article XVIII of the draft Financial

Agreement.

The Applicant is seeking a Most Favored Nations clause - See Article VIII of the draft Financial

Agreement.

The Applicant is seeking the right to appeal the tax assessments onthe Land and Improvements on
the Property - See Article XIII of the draft Financial Agreement,

20. Affordable Housing Contribution:

Pursuant to the Long Term Tax Exemption Law and upon the Applicant's execution of a
financial agreement, the Applicant wi 11 agreeto make an affordable housing contributiontothe City

of Jersey City in the total amount of $528,735 ($1,500 x 336 units plus $1.50 x 16,490 square feet of
retail space).

The Applicant intends to make this contribution in accordance with City Ordinance 05-130, which
requires one third of the contribution upon the executionofthe financial agreement, one third of the

contribution upon the issuance of the first construction permit by the City of Jersey City but not later
than 6 months from the effective date of the financial agreement, and one third of the contribution
upon issuance of the first certificate of occupancy for the Project, but not later than 24 months from
the effective date of the financial agreement.

21. Fee:

The Application fee in the amount of $9,500 was paid tothe City of Jersey City simultaneously with
the submission of this Application.

22. List

A Description of Property;
B. Description of Residential Leases, Estimated Fiscal Plan, and Annual Gross Revenue

Computation;
C. Total Project Cost & Certification of Estimated Construction Costs;

D. Copy of Approval of Site Plan;
E. Certificate of Formation;

F. Disclosure Statement;
G. Compliance with State & Local Laws Certification;

H. Commencement Certification

I. Diligent Inquiry Certification;
J. Proposed Financial Agreement; .
K, Propos cd Proj ect Employment & Contracti ng Agreement.

6
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Address: Block 7302, Lot 3.09 (formerly part of Lot 3.01) commonly known as 700 Washington
Boulevard, Jersey City, 'New Jersey

See metes and bounds description attached.
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Ail that certain land and premises, situated, lying and being in the City of
Jersey City, County of Hudson and the State of New Jersey and being more
particularly described as follows;

BEGINNING at a point in the northwest corner of Lot 3.09, said point being
distant the following courses and distances from a point of intersection of the
dividing Eine between 18th Street to the west and Washington Boulevard to the east,
if extended in the northerly direction, and the southerly line of Lot 1 in Block 7302,
Bands now orformerly of New Jersey Department of Transportation, said beginning
point having coordinates in the New Jersey State Plane Coordinate System of 1927
Northing 692,523.88 feet and Easting 2,176,108.71 feet, thence;

A, Along the southeriy line of lands now or formerly of New Jersey
Department of Transportation, S 83° 50' 22" E, 1,192.01 feet to a point,
thence;

B. S 5° 40' 26" W, 128.68 feet to the point of BEGINNING, and running
thence;

1. S 5° 40' 26" W, 21177 feet to a point, thence;

2. S 2° 00' 05"W. 186.88 feetto;a point, thence;

3. N 83° 50' 22" W, 170.02 feet to a point, thence;

4. N 6° 09' 38" E, 308.8,5 feet to the point, thence;

5. N 66° 09' 38" E, 178.59 feet to the point of BEGINNING.

Containing 56,464 square feet or 1.296 acres.

AH as shown on a certain map entitled: "Major Subdivision, Lots 3.01 and 3.02 in
Block 7302, City'of Jersey City, Hudson County, New Jersey" prepared by 50States
Engineering and about to be filed in the Hudson County Clerk's Office.

50 S' !\TES ENGINEERING

J
AndnjaBatistic'
Professional Land Surveyor
N.J. Lie. No. 35822

^17-116
02/02/2018



I. Name of Tenant

2. Term of Lease

3. Number of Apartments

4. Rent per Apartment Studio
1 Bedroom
2 Bedroom

3 Bedroom
4 Bedroom

5. Total Rent

6. Premium paid directly by Tenant Annually
a. Fire & olher insurance
b. Real Estate Taxes of Assessments

on property in project
c. Operating and maintenance

expenses ordinarily paid by tenant

7. Renewal Option (Yes /No)
a. Number of Years

b. Renewal Rent

8. Special Features (step-up rents, etc.)

Various

No less than 12 months each

Studio
1 Bedroom
2 Bedroom
3 Bedroom

4 Bedroom

Total

Annual

$32,046
$38,040
$49,825
$62,583
$90,992

$15,158,690

N/A

N/A

N/A

43
132
121
32

_8

336

Monthly
$2,671
$3,170
$4,152
$5,215
$7,583

$1,263,2

One

Market increases

None
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Apartments Units Annual

Studio Units x
One Bedroom Units x

Two Bedroom Units x
Three Bedroom Units x
Four Bedroom Units x

Total Potential Residential Income
Retail Income

Other Income (Amenity Fees, etc.)
Parking Income

Total Gross Income

Vacancy (5%)
Effective Gross Income

Payment in lieu of real estate taxes -12% + 0.7%

Management Fee (3%)
Professional Fees

Repairs and Maintenance

Insurance

Utilities
Labor - Payroll, Taxes & Benefits

Adv ertisi ng/Marketi ng
General & Administrative Expenses

Reserves

Total Expenses $4,703,274

43
132
121
32
8

$1,377,982
$5,021,339
$6,028,787
$2,002,644
$ 727.938

$15,158,690
$ 852,142
$ 284,953
$ 317,338

$16,613,123
$ (/830,656)
$15,782,467

$2,004,373
$ 473,474
$ 136,668
$ 535,592
$ 392,160
$ 406,311
$ 559,884
$ 73,875
$ 36,937
$ 84.000

Debt Service (4.6% int on terra incl amortization) $8,863,354

NET OPERATING INCOME LESS DEBT SERVICE: $2,215,839
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i-3

(1) Total Annual Gross Rental Income

(2) Real Estate Taxes and/or Assessment on Property*

(3) Insurance Premiums^

(4) Operating, Maintenance or Repair Expenses'^

$15,782,467

so

il;NJSA 40A:20-3(a) provides that "1he financial agreement shall establish the metiiod of computing

gross revenue for the entity, and the method of determining insurance, operating and maintenance
expenses paid by a tenant which are ordinarily paid by a landlord, which shall be included in gross
revenue...

Total Annual Gross Rental

Apartments
Studio Units x
One Bedroom Units x
Two Bedroom Units x
Three Bedroom Units x

Four Bedroom Units x

Total Potential Residential Income
Retail Income

Other Income (Amenity Fees, etc.)
Parking Income

Total Gross Income

Vacancy (5%)
Effective Gross Income

Units
43
132
121
32
8

Annual

$1,377,982
$5,021,339
$6,028,787
$2,002,644
$ 721938

$15,158,690
$ 852,142
$ 284,953
$ 317,338

$16,613,123
$ C830.656)
$15,782,467

(5)
12.00% Years 1-12 $1,893,896.00

10
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Total Project Cost

A. Cost of land and improvements to Urban Renewal Entity

B. Architects, Engineers^ surveying and Attorney Fees (paid

or payable) in connection with the planning, construction

and financing of the Project

C. Projected construction cost per architect's estimate

D. Insurance, Interest, and Finance Costs during
Construction

E. Cost of Obtaining Initial Permanent Financing

R Marketing and other expenses payable in connection with
initial lease of units

G. Real Estate Taxes and Assessments during Construction

Peri cd

H. Developer s Overhead based on a percentage of (c)

above, to be computed in accordance with percentage given
inlawN.J.S.A.40A:20-3(h)

Total Project Cost

$30,240,000

$5,876,497

$114,471,134

$16,188,882

$2,501,000

$250,000

$249,350

$5,723,557

$175^500,420

11
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On this -^ dayo^DY;wb&r» 2018, the undersigned being the architect for the Project, does
hereby certify to the best of my knowledge and based upon estimates provided by

Urban Renewal LLC, Ehal hem C of ExhEbit C accurately reOects the

^
estimated construction costs of the ProjecL

'̂is '^
.•f'v -''t

'y., &"

%L;

^ I

^""••.•^a.. ^' ' ^[^-

/: HLW International Architccjm-c ^y^pyinecn^g* . ^^'
'w:c-^?^^y
^&:Ntt%^

•'a^:"^-I*ttf
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siAppl£cant??) represented by Council Foley, LLP, Harborside Financial Center, 2510 Plaza
Five, Jersey City, NJ 07311-4029 (James C. McCann, Esq. and Nancy A. Skidmore, Esq.

appearing), made application to the Planning Board of the City of Jersey City, County of Hudson
and State of New Jersey for Preliminary and Final Major Site Plan Approval with a deviation for
the project to wit: Calendar No. P 17-021, to develop a new mixed-use residential building
reaching 12 stories, 5 stories, and 24 stories in height and containing 338 residential units,
approximately 16,490 square feet of permitted retail and/or commercial space and associated site
and amenity improvements, all located on property coiamonly Imown as 700 Washington
Boulevard and identified on the Jersey City Tax Maps as Block 7302, Lot 3.09, which was
formerly part of Block 7302, Lot 3.01 (the "Property"), which is situated in the Residential
District of the Newport Redevelopment Plan area.

\.

WHEREAS, it appears that due notice of a hearing on the above said application before
the Planning Board of the City of Jersey City, on May 16, 2017, which was carried to Mlay 30,
2017, at 5:30 p.m., was duly published as prescribed in the Land Development Ordinance of the

City of Jersey City; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant submitted proof that it complied with the applicable
procedural requirements including the payment of fees and public notices; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant and witiiesses first having been sworn and all testimony
having been foimally heard for Uiis application; and
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WHEREAS, after consideration of the application and the testimpny presented at the
meeting as well as the comments and recommendations of the Planning Board staff, the Planning

Board has made the following fmdings of fact:

1. The Property is located wifhin the Residential District, of the Newport
Redevelopment Plan (the "Plan"). The Property was established by a subdivision granted by the
Planning Board in Case No. P17-022.

2. The Applicant, Newport Associates Development Company has filed an
application for preliminary and final major site plan approval with a deviation for the Property.
The Applicant is proposing to develop a new mixed-use residential building reaching 12 stories,
5 stories, and 24 stories in height and containing 338 residential units, approximately 16,490
square feet of retail and/or commercial space and associated site and amenity improvements (the
"Project").

3. Vehicular and bicycle parking for the Project will be provided on the adjacent Lot
3.04 (also fonnerly part of Lot 3.01) pursuant to an interim use approval which is the subject of a
separate application presented to the Planning Board as Case No. P10-07CU. In particular, an
interim use surface parking lot for 181 vehicles with parking for 186 bicycles for use of the
Project.

4. The Property was established pursuant to a preliminary and final major
subdivision approval granted to the Applicant by the Planning Board in Case No. P17-022.

5. The Applicant is seeking a deviation from Section 345-70 of the Jersey City Land
Development Ordinance to permit relief from the requirement that bicycle parking be located on-
site, where bicycle parking required for the Project is being provided on the adjacent Lot 3.04.

6. Providing bicycle parMng on the adjacent site allows the Project to have a greater
amount of space on-site for retail, commercial, and amenity spaces to service the residents of the

Project and pedestrians utilizing the waterfront walkway which is adjacent to the Property.
These benefits outweigh any nominal detriment of not providing on-site bicycling parking.

7. In. addition, although bike parking was not a requirement at the time of the

adoption of the Plan, remote (off-site) and mixed-use vehicular parking facilities are specifically
permitted in the Plan. Based upon the permissibility of off-site vehicular parking in fhe Plan,
ofF-site bike parking is consistent with the Plan objectives.

8. The purposes and objectives of the Plan also include the reconstruction and

revitalization of a portion of Jersey City's waterfront and an objective recommending that
residential development relate closely to the spectacular view of the Hudson River and
Manhattan Island beyond. As such, approving the Project with this deviation promotes these

2
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objectives and likewise promotes a desirable visual environment and the general health, safety,

and welfare of the community, which are purposes of the Municipal Land Use Law.

9. The 24 story tower will have floating cantilevered slabs on the roof and each floor

above the balconies, the underside of which, will be illuminated from fixtures that will be
mounted around the perimeter of "the building on each floor to subtly light the fagade of the
tower. The bulkhead at the top of the 12 story tower will also be subtly illuminated from fixtures
mounted around the perimeter of the bulkhead.

10. Except for the deviation for off-site bicycle parking, the Project complies in all
respects with all applicable use and bulk zoning requirements in fhe Plan and the Jersey City
Land Development Ordinance, and the Project promotes the objectives andpuiposes of the Plan,
the Jersey City Master Plan, and the Municipal Land Use Law.

RESOLVED, that the Planning Board of the City of
Jersey City, County of Hudson, State of New Jersey for the foregoing reasons as well as those
stated on the record by the Board members and Plsnning staff, which are incorporated herein by

reference, approves the within application for Preliminary and Final Major Site Plan Approval
with a deviation for the Project to wit: Calendar No. P17-021, for a new mixed-use residential
building reaching 12 stories, 5 stories, and 24 stories in height and containing 338 residential
units, approximately 16,490 square feet of permitted retail and/or commercial space and
associated site and amenity improvements, all located on property commonly known as 700
Washington Boulevard and identified on the Jersey City Tax Maps as Block 7302, Lot 3.09,
which was formerly part of Block 7302, Lot 3.01 (fhe "Property"), which is situated in the
Residential District of the Newport Redevelopment Plan area, subject to &e following conditions

of approval:

1. The interim use 181-space surface parking lot with parking for 186 bicycles on
fhe adjacent Lot 3.04 for the use of the Project is approved for a period of three (3) years,
commencing wifh the date of issuance of the first temporary certificate of occupancy for the
Project.

2. The Applicant shall work wifli Planning staff to finalize the details of the
proposed rooftop/bulkhead lighting on the 12-story tower and the proposed balcony and rooftop
lighting on the 24-story tower.
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3. The Target parking lot entrance shall be realigned as a part of this Project with the
construction of the 16th Street and Kiver Drive as required by the site plans approved as part of
the Preliminary & Final Major Site Plan Approval memorialized on November 30, 2010 as Case
No. P10-70.

4. The Applicant shall work with the Jersey City Engmeermg Department to address
the comments set forth in its May 8,2017 memorandum to the Planning Board.
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COMMISSIONER NO ABSTAIN ABSENT

Christopher Langston, Chairman
Harkesh Thakur, Commissioner
Joyce Watterman, Coimcilwoman
Eric Fleming, Commissioner
John Seborowski, Commissioner
Michael Sims, Commissioner
Allison Solowsky, Commissioner
Eduardo Torres, Commissioner

Dr. Vijay De§a^C5te4ssioner

TAXCrSTONTCteERMAN
JERSEXCITY PLANNING BOARD

V^6ts^^X^-
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:

7Z
MA-tT WARD, SteETAJbtY
JERSEY CH^HANNING BOARD

FLOSIO"AND KE^NY, LLP
DENNIS LILOIA, ESQ.

DATE OF HEARING: May 16, 2017 andMay30, 2017
DATE OF MEMORIALIZATION: June 13, 2017
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^Applicant") represented by ConnelS Foley^ LLP, Harborside Financial Center, 2510 Plaza

Five, Jersey City, NJ 07311-4029 (James C. McCann, Esq. and Nancy A. Skidmore, Esq.
appearing), made application to the Planning Board of the City of Jersey City, County of Hudson
and State of New Jersey for Preliminary and Final Major Subdivision Approval to wit: Calendar
No. P17-022, to subdivide two (2) existing lots commonly known as 700 Washington Boulevard
and 40 14th Street and identified on the Jersey City Tax Maps as Block 7302, Lots 3.01 & 3.02,
into seven (7) proposed lots described as Lots 3.04, 3.05, 3.06, 3.07, 3.08, 3.09 & 3.10 in Block
7302 (the "Property ), which is situated in the Residential District of the Newport
Redevelopment Plan area.

WHEREAS, it appears that due notice of a hearing on the above said application before
the Planning Board of the City of Jersey City, on May 16, 2017 at 5:30 p.m., was duly published
as prescribed in the Land Development Ordinance of the City of Jersey City; and

IEREAS, fhe Applicant submitted proof that it complied wifh the applicable
procedural requirements including the payment of fees and public notices; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant and witnesses first having been sworn and all testimony
having been formally heard for this application; and

WHEREAS, after consideration of the application and the testimony presented at the
meeting as well as the comments and recommendations of the Planning Board staff, the Planning

Board has made the following findings of fact:
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1. The Property is located within the Residential District of the Newport
Redevelopment Plan (the "Plan").

2. The Applicant, Newport Associates Development Company has filed an
application for preliminary and final major subdivision approval for the Property. The purpose
of the application is to subdivide two (2) existing lots into seven (7) new lots.

The two (2) existing lots are commonly known as 700 Washington Boulevard and
40 14& Street and identified on the Jersey City Tax Maps as Block 7302, Lots 3.01 & 3.02.

3. The proposed new lots are as follows, as more particularly shown on the
preliminary and final major subdivision plat presented to &e Board:

a. Block 7302, Proposed Lot 3.04 - 319,260 sq. ft. I 7.329 acres

b. Block 7302, Proposed Lot 3.05 -10,319 sq. ft. / 0.237 acres

c. Block 7302, Proposed Lot 3.06 - 3,905 sq. ft. / 0.0896 acres

d. Block 7302, Proposed Lot 3.07 - 45,480 sq. ft./ 1.044 acres

e. Block 7302, Proposed Lot 3.08 - 18,487 sq. ft./ 0.424 acres

f. Block 7302, Proposed Lot 3.09 - 56,464 sq. ft./1.296 acres

g. Block 7302, Proposed Lot 3.10 - 19,066 sq. ft. / .04377 acres.

3. Proposed Lot 3.04 will be utilized for (a) interim vehicular parking and bicycle
parking to accommodate the occupants and visitors of the proposed mixed-use residential

development on the adjacent lot (proposed Lot 3.09) and (b) a previously approved mixed-use
residential development memorialized by Resolution dated November 30, 2010 Case No. P 10-

070.

4. Proposed Lots 3.05, 3.07 & 3.08 will be utilized for roadway improvements and
Proposed Lot 3.10 will be utilized to make minor changes to previously approved and
constructed section of the waterfront walkway to accommodate a proposed mixed use residential

development on proposed Lot 3.09.

5. The new lots and proposed subdivision comply in all respects with the Plan, the Jersey

City Land Development Ordinance, fhe Jersey City Subdivision Ordinance, the Jersey City
Master Plan, and the Municipal Land Use Law.
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^*

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Planning Board of the City of
Jersey City, County of Hudson, State of New Jersey for the foregoing reasons as well as those
stated on the record by the Board members and Planning staff, which are incorporated herein by

reference, approves the within application for Preliminary and Final Major Subdivision Approval
to wit: Calendar No. P17-022, to subdivide two (2) existing lots commonly known as 700
Washington Boulevard and 40 l4th Street and identified on the Jersey City Tax Maps as Block
7302, Lots 3.01 & 3.02, into seven (7) proposed lots to be known as Lots 3.04, 3.05, 3.06,3.07,
3.08, 3.09 & 3.10 in Block 7302 which is sitiated in the Residential District of the Newport
Redevelopment Plan area.
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COMMISSIONER YES NO ABSTAIN ABSENT

Christopher Langston, Chairman
Dr. Orlando Gonzalez, Vice Chaimian
Joyce Wattennan, Councilwoman
Eric Fleming, Commissioner
John Seborowski, Commissioner
Michael Sims, Commissioner
AUison Solowsky, Commissioner
HarkeshThalcur, Commissioner

Dr. VijayJDesai^Commissioner

>S^g^A^©SW^KABRMA3ST
JERSEY CITY PLANNING BOA?
DA. a^^^ v/ G^vw^^-

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:

M^TT WARD, SECRETARY
JERSEY CITY PLANNING BOARD

DENNIS LILOIA, ESQ.

DATE OF HEARING: May 16, 2017
DATE OF MEMORIALIZATION:- June 13, 2017
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1. Name of Limited Liability Company: WAVE URBAN RENEWAL LLC

2. The purpose for which this Limited Liability Company ("Company") is organized is:

To operate under P.L, 1991, c, 431 (C.40A:20-1 et seq.) and to initiate and conduct projects

for the redevelopment of a redevelopment area pursuant to a redevelopment plan, or projects
necessary, useful, or convenient for the relocation of residents displaced or to be displaced by

the redevelopment of all or part of one or more redevelopment areas» or low and moderate
income housing projects, and, when authorized by financial agreement with the municipality,

to acquire, plan, develop, construct, alter, maintain or operate housing, senior citizen

housing, business, industrial, commercial, administrative, community, health, recreational,
educational or welfare projects, or any combination of two or more of these types of
improvement in a single project, under such conditions as to use, ownership, management

and control as regulated pursuant to P.L. 1991, c. 431 (C.40A:20-1 et seq,).

3. Date of formation: The date upon which this certificate of formation is filed in the

office of the Department of Treasury of New Jersey.

4. Address of Principal Office: c/o Newport Associates Development Company

111 Town Square Place, 3rd Floor
Jersey City, New Jersey 07310

5. Registered Agent Name & Address; Newport Manager Corp.

111 Town Square Place, Suite 300
Jersey City, New Jersey 0731 0

6. Dissolution date: Perpetual.

For so long as the Company is obligated under fmancial agreement with the City of Jersey

City made pursuant to P.L. 1991,0.431 (C.40A:20-l et seq.), the Company shall engage in

no business other than the ownership, operation, and management of the project described in

the financial agreement with the City of Jersey City.

The Company has been organized to serve a public purpose and its operations shall be
directed toward: (1) the redevelopment of redevelopment areas, the facilitation of the

relocation of residents displaced or to be displaced by redevelopment, or the conduct of low

and moderate income housing projects; and (2) the acquisition, management and operation of

4699839-1



a project, redevelopment relocation housing project, or low and moderate income housing
project under P.L. 1991, c, 431 (C.40A:20-1 et seq,). The Company shall be subject to

regulation by the City of Jersey City, and to a limitation or prohibition, as appropriate, on
profits or dividends for so longasitremainstheowner of a project subject to P.L. 1991, c.

431 (C.40A:20-1 etseq.).

The Company shallnot voluntarily transfer more than 10% of the ownership of the project or

any portion thereof, undertaken by it under P.L. 1991, c. 431 (C.40A:20-1 et seq.), until it has

first removed both itself and the project from all restrictions ofP.L. 1991, c. 431 (C.40A:20-
1 etseq.) in the manner required by P.L. 1991, c. 431 (C.40A:20-1 etseq.) and, if the project
includes housing units, has obtained the consent ofthe Commissioner of Community Affairs

to such transfer, with the exception of any transfer to another urban renewal entity, as
approved by the City of Jersey City, which other urban renewal entity shall assume all
contractual obligations of the transferor entity under the financial agreement with the City of

Jersey City,

The Company shall file annually with the governing body of the City of Jersey City a
disclosure of the persons having an ownership interest in the Project and the extent of the

ownership held by each.

Nothing herein shall prohibit any transfer of the ownership interest in the urban renewal

entity itself provided that transfer, if greater than ten percent (10%), is disclosed to the City
of Jersey City in the annual disclosure statement or in correspondence sent to the City of

Jersey City in advance of the annual disclosure statement referred to above.

The Company is subject to the provisions of Section 18 ofP.L. 1991, c, 43 1 (C,40A:20-18)
respecting the powers ofthe City of Jersey City to alleviate financial difficulties of the urban
renewal entity or to perform actions on behalf of the entity upon a determination of financial

emergency.

Any housing units constructed or acquired by the Company shall be managed subject to the
supervision of, and rules adopted by, the Commissioner of Community Affairs.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]
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The undersigned represent(s) that this filing complies with requirements detailed in NJ.S.A. 42;2C-
1 et. seq. The undersigned hereby represent(s) that it is authorized to sign this certificate on behalf of

the Company.

By. u^r^A^ ^^^
Dated: ,7^7 ,2018

By-.

Authorized Representative

1762462-01
4699839-1



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS
LOCAL PLANNING SERVICES

101 SOUTH BB-OAO STREET

Governor TRBNTON, N] 08625-0813
(609) 292-3000 o FAX (609) 633-6036

LT. GOVERNOR SHEILA?. OLIVER
Cofimnssioner

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

TO: State Treasurer
RE: WAVE URBAN RENEWAL LLC

File # 2392
An Urban Renewal Entity

This is to certify that the attached CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION OF AN URBAN
RENEWAL ENTITY has been examined and approved by the Department of Community
Affairs, pursuant to the power vested in it under the "Long Term Tax Exemption Law," P.L,

1991,c.43l.

Done this ay of "jlwe^^jiQ ^ at Trenton, New Jersey.

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

BY %^. ^
Sean Thompson, Du'ecttS:
Lo'cal Planning Services

is an HQual Upportunity employer "



NAME OF ENTITY: Wave Urban Renewal LLC

NAME OF PROJECT: The Wave
700 Washington Boulevard
Block 7302, Lot 3.09 (formerly part of 3.01)
Jersey City, New Jersey . .

PRINCIPAL OFFICE; c/o Newport Associates Development Company
111 Town Square Place, 3rd Floor

Jersey City, New Jersey 07310

NAME OF REGISTERED AGENT: Newport Manager Corp.

ADDRESS; 111 Town Square Place, 3rd Floor
Jersey City, New Jersey 07310

I CERTIFYTHATTHEFOLLOWING LIST REPRESENTS THENAMES OFALLMEMBER^ OWNING
A 10% OR GREATER INTEREST IN THE ABOVE ENTITY (IF ONE OR MORE OF THE BELOW
NAMED IS ITSBLF AN ENTITY, THE NAMES OF ANY ENTITY OWING A 10% OR GREATER
INTERBST THEREIN IS ALSO IDENTIFIED)

NAME ADDRESS PERCENT OWNED

(See Rider Attached Hereto)

I CERTIFY THAT THE STATEMENTS MADE BY ME ARE TRUE. IAMAWARETHATIFANYOF
THE FOREGOING STATEMENTS MADE BY ME ARE WILLFULLY FALSE, I AM SUBJECT TO
PUNISHMENT.

Dated: as of November -^"^ . 2018

WAVE URBAN RENEWAL LLC, a New Jersey limited liability company

^,
By: {.AJ^^S--^ ^. o^-^r-c^

Authorized Signatory
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Wave Associates LLC ~ 99% Interest in the Applicant:

Owning Partner Name

S"R Realty Associates

RL Capital Realty Associates, LLC

Ownership Interest

73.6604762% ,

23.91738%

S-R Capital Realty Associates, LLC is 99% owned by Stone Capital Realty, LLC

Stone Capital Realty, LLC is owned 3 3% by each of the RSL 2005 Family Tmst, the James T.
2010 GST Trust and Harrison T. Lefrak 2010 GST Trust.

c/o The Lefrak Tmst Company
Suite 810
1105 North Market Street
Wihnington, Delaware 19S01

Owning Partner Name

RICHARDS. LEFRAK

Ownership Interest

99%

Lefrak is located at: 40 West 57th Street
New York, NY 10019

16
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The Applicant being the developer of the Project hereby certifies that:

1. The Project meets the requirements of the laws of the State of New Jersey for consideration
for a tax exemption because it is located within the Newport Redevelopment Plan Area.

2. The Project complies with the requirements of the Newport Redevelopment Plan and the

Master Plan for Jersey City apart from the approved deviations, and the Project received Preliminary

and Final Major Site Plan Approval with a Deviation from the Jersey City Planning Board by
Resolution adopted on June 13, 2017.

The foregoing statements made by me as of this j_2/^__ day of November, 2018 are true and
accurate in all material respects after diligent inquiry has been made to confirm the truth and

accuracy of all information.

WAVE URBAN RENEWAL LLC, a New Jersey limited liability
company

' 6w: .4/S^/i^ A1y-^r;'^r Cc//^... ^i/A^^r
7" ' * / /''/ ' '

By: U^€^V ^ fV^/^
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The Applicant being the developer of the Project hereby certifies that:

1. Construction of the building upon the newly constructed foundation will not commence
prior to the final approval and execution of a financial agreement between the City and the

Applicant.

2. The foregoing statement made by me as of the ^f/^ day of November, 2018 is true and

accurate in all material respects and I understand that the City of Jersey City is relying upon this
Certification in considering the Application.

f}^\ ^\^ft^ /!^/Uy(< [(,•/.

^M^.

/

^
'•'U7i^\.
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I hereby certify £o the City of Jersey City thafcto my knowledge, the information contained in
this Application filed with the City of Jersey on behalf of Wave Urban Renewal LLC is true and
accurate in all material respects. I am aware that if any of the foregoing statements made herein are
willfully false, I am subject to punishment.

Dated: November^? .2018

WAVE URBAN RENEWAL LLC, a New Jersey limited liability
company

4-".

By: ^U^^A -^.o^f^^
Authorized Signatory

19
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Re: 700 Washington Blvd.
Block 7302, Lot.3.09
Newport Redevelopment Plan Area

[Agreement] is made as of the _ day of

, 2019 C'Effective Date"), by and between

LLCg an urban renewal entity formed and qualified to do business under the

provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law of 1992, as amended and supplemented,

N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et se^., having an office at 111 Town Square, 3rd Floor, New Jersey 07310

[Entity], and the CITY OF JERSEY CITY, a Municipal Corporation of the State of New

Jersey, having its principal office at 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302 [City].

WHEREAS, the Entity is the owner of real property located within Block 7302, Lot

3.09, more commonly known by the street address of 700 Washington Blvd, Jersey City, and

more particularly described by the metes and bounds description set forth as Exhibit 1 to this

Agreement; and

WHESEAS, this property is located within the Newport Redevelopment Plan area; and

WHEREAS, the Entity plans to construct a building that will be twelve (12) stories, five

(5) stones, and twenty-four (24) stories containing approximately three hundred thirty six (336)

residential rental units, approximately 16,490 square feet of commercial space with a surface

parking lot on an adjacent property containing one hundred eighty one (181) parking spaces;

WHEREAS, on November _, 2018, the Entity filed an Application with the City for a

long term tax exemption for the Project; and

WHEREAS, on May 30, 2017 the Project received preliminary and final site plan

approval from the Planning Board; and

WHEREAS, by tlie adoption of Ordinance _ on _2019, the Municipal

Council approved a long term tax exemption for the Project and authorized the execution of a
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Financial Agreement; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, and

for other good and valuable consideration, it is mutually covenanted and agreed as follows:

This Agreement shaU be governed by the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption

Law, as amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A;20-1 et se^., and Ordinance _ on

^ which authorized the execution of this Agreement. It being

expressly understood and agreed that the City expressly relies upon the facts, data, and

representations contained in the Application, attached hereto as Exhibit 3, in granting this tax

exemption.

Unless specifically provided otherwise or the context otherwise requires, when used in

this Agreement, the following terms shaU have the following meanings:

i. Allowable Net Profit- The amount airived at by applying the Allowable Profit

Rate to Total Project Cost pursuant to NJ.S.A.40A:20-3fc\

ii. Allowable Profit Rate - The greater of 12% or the percentage per annum arrived

at by adding 1.25% to fhe annual interest percentage rate payable on the Entity's initial

permanent mortgage financing. If the initial permanent mortgage is insured or guaranteed by a

governmental agency, the mortgage insurance premium or similar charge, if payable on a per

annum basis, shall be considered as interest for this purpose. If there is no permanent mortgage

financing, or if the fmancing is internal or undertaken by a related party, the Allowable Profit

Rate shall be the greater of 12% or the percentage per annum arrived at by adding 1.25% per

annum to the interest rate per annum which the municipality determines to be the prevailing rate

on mortgage financing on comparable improvements in Hudson County. The provisions of

N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3(b) are incorporated herein by reference.

iii. Annual Gross Revenue ~ Any and all revenue derived from or generated by the

Project of whatever kind or amount, whether received as rent from any tenants or income or fees

from third parties, including but not limited to fees or income paid or received for parking, or as_

user fees or for any other services. No deductions will be allowed for operating or maintenance
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costs, including, but not limited to gas, electric, water and sewer, other utilities, garbage removal

and insurance charges, whether paid for by the landlord, tenant or a third party.

iv. Annual Service Charge - The amount the Entity has agreed to pay the City each

year for municipal services supplied to the Project, which sum is in lieu of any taxes on the

Improvements, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20~12. It shall include a payment for all profit

exceeding Allowable Net Profit, i.e., annual excess profit.

v. Auditor's Report - A complete annual fmancial statement outlining the financial

status of the Project, which shall also include a certification of Total Project Cost and clear

computation of the annual Net Profit. The contents of the Auditor's Report shall have been

prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and shall contain at a

minimum the following: a balance sheet, a statement of income, a statement of retained earnings

or changes in stockholders' equity, a statement of cash flows, descriptions of accounting policies,

notes to financial statements and appropriate schedules and explanatory material results of

operations, cash flows and any other items required by Law. The Auditor's Report shall be

certilied as to its conformance with such principles by a certified public accountant who is

licensed to practice that profession in the State of New Jersey.

vi. Certificate of Occupancy - A document, whether temporary or permanent, issued

by the City authorizing occupancy of a building, in whole or in part, pursuant to N.J.S.A.

52:27D-133.

vii. Deb_L_Seryice - The amount required to make annual payments of principal and

interest or the equivalent thereof on any construction mortgage, permanent mortgage or other

financing including returns on institutional equity financing and market rate related party debt

for the project for a period equal to the term of this Agreement.

viii. Default - Shall be a breach of or the failure of the Entity to perform any obligation

imposed upon the Entity by the terms of this Agreement, or under the Law, beyond any

applicable grace or cure periods.

ix. Entity - The term Entity within this Agreement shall mean Wave Urban Renewal

LLC, which Entity is formed and qualified pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-5. It shall also include

any subsequent purchasers or successors in interest of the Project, provided they are formed and

operate under the Law.
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x. bnprovements or Project - Any building, structure or fixture permanently affixed

to the land and to be constructed and tax exempted under this Agreement.

xl. In Rem Tax Foreclosure or Tax Foreclosure - A summary proceeding by which

the City may enforce a lien for taxes due and owing by tax sale, under N.J.S.A. 54:5-1 to 54:5-

129etseq.

xii. Land Taxes - The amount of taxes assessed on the value of land, on which the

project is located and, if applicable, taxes on any pre-existing improvements. Land Taxes are not

exempt; however, Land Taxes are applied as a credit against the Annual Service Charge.

xiii. Land Tax Payments " Payments made on the quarterly due dates, including

approved grace periods if any, for Land Taxes as determined by the Tax Assessor and the Tax

Collector.

xiv. Law - Law shall refer to the Long Term Tax Exemption Law, as amended and

supplemented, N.J.SA. 40A:20-1, et seq. and Ordinance _ on _2018,

which authorized the execution of this Agreement and all other relevant Federal, State or City

statutes, ordinances, resolutions, rules and regulations.

xv. Minimum Annual Service darge - The Minimum Annual Service Charge shall

be the amount of the total taxes levied against all real property m the area covered by the Project

in the last fall tax year in which the area was subject to taxation, which amount the parties agree

is $_ _ .__
xvi. Net Profit - The Annual Gross Revenues of the Entity less all annual operating

and non-operating expenses of the Entityi all determined in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles, but:

(1) there shall be included in expenses: (a) all Annual Service charges paid pursuant to

NJ.SA, 40A:20-12; (b) all annual payments to the City of excess profits pursuant to N.J.S.A.

40A:20-15 or NJ.S.A, 40A:20-16; (c) an annual amount sufficient to amortize (utilizing the

straight line mefhod-equal annual amounts) the Total Project Cost and all capital costs

determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, of any other entity

whose revenue is included in the computation of excess profits over the term of this agreement;

(d) all reasonable annual operating expenses of the Entity and any other entity whose revenue is

included in the computation of excess profits including the cost of all management fees,
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brokerage commissions, insurance premiums, all taxes or service charges paid, legal, accounting,

or other professional service fees, utilities, building maintenance costs, building and office

supplies and payments into repair or maintenance reserve accounts; (e) all payments of rent

including but not limited to ground rent by the Entity; (f) all Debt Service; and

(2) there shall not be included in expenses either depreciation or obsolescence, interest on

debt, except interest which is part of Debt Service, income taxes or salaries, bonuses or other

compensation paid, directly or indirectly to directors, officers and stockholders of the entity, or

officers, partners or other persons holding a proprietary ownership interest in the entity.

xvii. Prpnouns - He or it shall mean the masculine, feminine or neuter gender, the

singular, as well as the plural, as context requires.

xviii. School Board - The Jersey City Board of Education.

xix. Substantial Completion - The determination by the City that the Project, in whole

or in part, is ready for the use intended, which ordinarily shall mean the first date on which the

Project receives, or is eligible to receive, any Certificate of Occupancy whether temporary or

permanent for any portion of the Project.

xx. Termination ° Any act or omission which by operation of the teims of this

Financial Agreement shall cause the Entity to relinquish its tax exemption.

xxi. Total Project Cost - The total cost of constructing fhe Project through the date a

Certificate(s) of Occupancy is issued for the entire Project, which categories of cost are set forth

in N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3(h). There shall be included from Total Project Cost the actual costs

incurred by the Entity and certified by an independent and qualified architect or engineer, which

are associated with site remediation and cleanup of environmentally hazardous materials or

contaminants in accordance with State or Federal law and any extraordinary costs incurred

including the cost of demolishing structures, relocation or removal of public utilities, cost of

relocating displaced residents or buildings and the clearing of title.

The City hereby grants its approval for a tax exemption for all the Improvements to be

constructed and maintained in accordance with the tenns and conditions of this Agreement and
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the provisions of the Law which Improvements shall be constructed on certain property known

on the Official Tax Assessor's Map of the City as: Block 7302, Lot 3,09, commonly known by

the street address 700 Washington Blvd, Jersey City, and described by metes and bounds in

Exhibit 1 attached hereto.

Approval is granted to the Entity whose Certificate of Fonnation is attached hereto as

Exhibit 4. Entity represents that its Certificate contains all the requisite provisions of the Law;

has been reviewed and approved by the Commissioner of the Department of Community Affairs;

and has been filed with, as appropriate, the Office of the State Treasurer or Office of the Hudson

County Clerk, all in accordance with N.J.S.A. 40A:20-5.

Entity represents that it will construct a building that is five (5) stones, twelve (12)

stories, and twenty four (24) stories, containing approximately three hundred thirty sbc (336)

residential rental units 16,490 with a parking lot on an adjacent property containing one hundred

eighty (1S1) parking spaces [Project]; all of which is specifically described in the Application

attached hereto as Exhibit 3.

The Entity agrees to diligently undertake to commence construction and complete the

Project in accordance with the Estimated Construction Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit 5.

The Entity represents that it is the owner of the Property upon which the Project is to be

constructed. Upon construction, the Entity represents that the Improvements will be used,

managed and controlled for the purposes set forth in this Agreement,

The Entity represents that the Improvements shall be financed in accordance with the

Financial Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 6. The Plan sets forth a good faith estimate of Total

Project Cost, the amortization rate on the Total Project Cost, the source of funds, the interest

rates to be paid on construction financing, the source and amount of paid-in capital, and the

terms of any mortgage amortization.
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The Entity represents that its good faith projections of the initial rents and other revenue

to the Project are set forth in Exhibit 7,

So long as there is compliance with fhe Law and this Agreement, it is understood and

agreed by the parties hereto that this Agreement shall remain in effect for the earlier of twenty

(20) years from the date of Substantial Completion of the Project or twenty three (23) years from

the adoption of Ordinance _ on ' , which approved the

tax exemption. The tax exemption shall only be effective during the period ofusefuhess of the

Project and shall continue in force only while the Project is owned by an entity formed and

operating under the Law.

In consideration of the tax exemption, the Entity shall make the following annual

payments to the City to be remitted to the School Board for services provided to the Project:

Annual Service Charge: an amount equal to the greater of: the Minimum Annual Service

Charge, as defined in Section 1.2 xvi or an Annual Service Charge equal to 12% of the Axuiual

Gross Revenue. The Annual Service Charge shall be billed initially based upon the Entity's

estimate of Annual Gross Revenue, attached hereto as Exhibit 6. Thereafter, the Annual Service

Charge shall be adjusted in accordance with this Agreement. Upon its receipt of the Annual

Service Charge payment from the Entity the City shall remit an amount equal to 5% of the

Annual Service Charge to. Hudson County as required by NJ.S.A. 40A:20-12(e). All other

monies collected as part of the Annual Service Charge shall be remitted to the School Board.

The Minimum Annual Service Charge pursuant to Section 1.2xv shall be due following

the execution of this Agreement The Annual Service Charge shall be due on the first day of the

month following the Substantial Completion of the Project. In the event the Entity fails to timely

pay the Minimum Annual Service Charge or the Annual Service Charge, the unpaid amount shall

bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax liens on land until

paid.
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The Annual Service Charge shall be adjusted, in Stages over the term of the tax

exemption in accordance with NJ.S.A. 40A:20-12(b) as follows:

i. Stage One: From the 1st day of the month following Substantial Completion until

the last day of the 7th year, the Annual Service Charge shall be the Annual Service Charge;

iL Stage Two: Beginning on the 1 day of the 8th year following Substantial

Completion until the last day of the 13th year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual

Service Charge or 20% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the

land and Improvements;

iii. Stage Three: Beginning on the 1st day of the l4th year following the Substantial

Completion until the last day of the ISth year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual

Service Charge or 40% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the

land and Improvements;

iv. Stage Four: Beginning on the 1st day of the 19th year following Substantial

Completion until the last day of ftie 19fh year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual

Service Charge or 60% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the

land and Improvements.

v. Final Stage: Beginning on the 1st day of the 20th year following Substantial

Completion through the date the tax exemption expires, an amount equal to the greater of the

Annual Service Charge or 80% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of

the land and Improvements.

The Entity is required to pay both the Annual Service Charge and the Land Tax

Payments. The Entity is obligated to make timely Land Tax Payments, including any tax on the

pre-existing improvements, in order to be entitled to a Land Tax credit against fhe Annual

Service Charge for the subsequent year. The Entity shall be entitled to credit for the amount

without interest, of the Land Tax Payments made in the last four preceding quarterly installments

against the Annual Service Charge. In any quarter that the Entity fails to make any Land Tax

Payments when due and owin^ such delinquency shall render the Entity ineligible for any Land

Tax Payment credit against the Annual Service Charge. No credit will be applied against the
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Annual Service Charge for a partial payment of Land Taxes. In addition; fee City shall have,

among this remedy and other remedies, the right to proceed against the property pursuant to the

In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, N.J.S.A; 54:5-1, et ses. and/or declare a Default and terminate this

Agreement.

Section 4,4 QuarterSy Installments / Interest

The Entity expressly agrees that the Annual Service Charge shall be made in quarterly

installments on those dates when real estate tax payments are due; subject, nevertheless, to

adjustment for over or underpayment within fhirty (30) days after the close of each calendar year.

In the event that fee Entity fails to pay fhe Annual Semce Charge or any other charge due under

this Agreement, the unpaid amount shall bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of

unpaid taxes or tax liens on the land until paid in full.

The Entity shall also pay an annual fee to the City ra addition to the Annual Service

Charge and Land Tax levy. The Administrative Fee shall be calculated as two (2%) percent of

each prior year's Annual Service Charge. This fee shall be payable and due on or before

December31ofeach year, and collected in the same manner as the Annual Service Charge.

A. Contribution. The Entity will pay the City the sum of $528,735 or [$1,500 per

unit or $504,000; $1.50 per square foot of retail space or $24,735 as a contribution. The sum

shall be due and payable as follows:

i. 1/3 on or before the effective adoption date of the Ordinance approving tfae tax

exemption;

ii. 1/3 on or before the issuance of the first of any construction pennit for the Project, but no

later than six months after the date of the Financial Agreement; and

iii. 1/3 on or before the date the first of any Certificate of Occupancy is issued for the

Project, but no later than twenty-four (24) montiis after the date of the Financial Agreement.

4695942-6



It is expressly agreed and understood that the timely payments of Land Taxes, Minimum

Annual Service Charge, Annual Service Charge, including any adjustments thereto, are Material

Conditions of this Agreement

In order to provide the City's residents and businesses with certain employment and other

economic related opportunities, the Entity is subject to the terms and conditions of the Project

Employment and Contracting Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit 8,

The City agrees that the Project is exempt from the requirements of Section 3-76 of the

Jersey City Municipal Code concerning required wage, benefit and leave standards for building

service workers. The- City agrees that the Project is exempt -from the requirements of Jersey City

Municipal Code Section 3-51G(1) requiring all janitors and unarmed security guards employed

at the Project, including by any and all tenants or subtenants of the developer, to be paid not less

than the standard hourly rate of pay and benefits for fheir respective classifications and to be

receive paid leave.

It is understood and agreed that it shall be the obligation of the Entity to obtain all

Certificates of Occupancy in a timely manner so as to complete construction in accordance with

the proposed construction schedule attached hereto as Exhibit 5. The failure to secure the

Certificates of Occupancy shall subject the Property to full taxation for the period between the

date of Substantial Completion and the date the Certificate of Occupancy is obtained.

If shall be the primary responsibility of the Entity to forthwith file with both the Tax
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Assessor and the Tax Collector a copy of each Certificate of Occupancy.

Failure of the Entity to file such issued Certifi.cate of Occupancy as required by the

preceding paragraph, shall not militate against any action or non-action, taken by the City,

including, if appropriate retroactive billing with interest for any charges determined to be due, in

the absence of such filing by the Entity.

The estimated cost basis disclosed by the Entity's application and proposed Financial

Agreement may, at the option of the City, be used as the basis for the construction cost in the

issuance of any construction permit for the Project.

The Entity agrees to maintain a system of accounting and internal controls established

and administered in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Section 7.2 Periodic Reports

A. Auditors Report Within ninety (90) days after the close of each fiscal or calendar

year, depending on the Entit/s accounting basis that the Agreement shall continue in effect, the

Entity shall submit to the Mayor and Municipal Council and the NJ Division of Local

Government Services in the Department of Community Affairs, its Auditor's Report for- the

preceding fiscal or calendar year. The Auditor's Report shall include, but not be limited to gross

revenue, and the terms and interest rate on any mortgage(s) associated with the purchase or

construction of the Proj ect and such details as may relate to the financial affairs of the Entity and

to its operation and performance hereunder, pursuant to the Law and this Agreement. The

Report shall clearly identify and calculate the Allowable Net Profit for the Entity during the

previous year, the excess of which shall be paid to the City each year an excess profit is

generated.

B. Total Project Cost Audit: Within ninety (90) days after Substantial Completion of the

Project, the Entity shall submit to the Mayor, Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City

Clerk, who shall advise those municipal officials required to be advised, an audit of Total Project

Cost, including but not limited to an audit of actual construction costs as certified by the Project
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architect.

C. Disclosure Statement: On the anniversary date of the execution of this Agreement,

and each and every year thereafter while this agreement is in effect, the Entity shall submit to

the Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City Clerk, who shall advise those municipal

officials required to be advised, a Disclosure Statement listing the persons having an ownership

interest in the Project, and the extent of the ownership interest of each and such additional

information as the City may request from time to time. All disclosures shall include ownership

interests of the individual persons owning any corpora.te interest m the Entity.

The Entity shall permit the inspection of its property, equipment, buildings and other

facilities of the Project and, if deemed appropriate or necessary, any other related Entity by

representatives duly authorized by the City or the NJ Division of Local Government Services in

the Department of Community Affairs. It shall also permit, upon request, examination and audit

of its books, contracts, records, documents and papers. Such examination or audit shall be made

during the reasonable hours of the business day, in the presence of an officer or agent designated

by the Entity for any year during which the tax exemption financial agreement "was in full force

and effect.

All costs incurred by the City to conduct a review of the Entity's audits, including

reasonable attorneys' fees if appropriate, shall be billed to the Entity and paid to the City as part

of the Entity's Annual Service Charge. Delinquent payments shall accrue interest at the same

rate as for a delinquent service charge.

During the period of tax exemption as provided herein, the Entity shall be subject to a

limitation of its, profits pursuant to the provisions ofNJ.S.A. 40A:20-15.

The Entity shall have the right to establish a reserve against vacancies, unpaid rentals,

and reasonable contingencies in an amount equal to five (5%) percent of the Gross Revenue of

the Entity for the last full fiscal year preceding the year and may retain such part of the Excess

Net Profits as is necessary to eliminate a deficiency in that reserve, as provided in NJ.S.A.,
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40A:20-15. The reserve is to be non-cumulative, it being intended that no ftirfher credits thereto

shall be permitted after the reserve shall have attained the allowable level of five (5%) percent of

the preceding year's Gross Revenue.

In the event the Net Profits of the Entity, in any year, exceeds the Allowable Net Profits

for such year, then the Bntity, within one hundred and twenty (120) days after the end of the

year, shall pay such excess Net Profits to the City as an additional annual service charge;

provided, however, that the Entity may maintain a reserve as determined pursuant to

aforementioned paragraph 8.1. The calculation of the Entity^s Excess Net Profits shall include

those project costs directly attributable to site remediatlon and cleanup expenses and any other

costs excluded in the definition of Total Project Cost in Section 1.2 (xx) of this Agreement. If

the Service Charge is calculated as a percentage of Total Project Costs, such costs must be

included in the Total Proj ect Costs for purposes of calculating the Annual Service Charge.

The date of termination, expiration or sale shall be considered to be the close of the "fiscal

year of the Entity, Within ninety (90) days after such date, the Entity shall pay to the City the

amount of the reserve, if any, maintained by it pursuant to this section and the balance of the

Excess Net Profit, if any.

To the extent a New Jersey court, in a final and irrevocable judicial order, determines or

in the event that the City at any time agrees in writing with a third party that the appropriate

method of calculating Excess Net Profits is to use a cunmlative; rather than an annual, method

(i.e.' a calculation that determines Excess Net Profits for the sum of the calendar years from the

effective date of a financial agreement through the end of the calendar year for which the

calculation is being made, calculated on an aggregate basis).

Any sale or transfer of the Project, shall be void unless approved in advance by
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Ordinance of the Municipal Council. It is understood and agreed that the City, on written

application by the Entity, will not unreasonably withhold its consent to a sale of the Project and

the transfer of this Agreement provided 1) the new Entity'does not own any other Project subject

to long term tax exemption at the time of transfer; 2) the new Entity is formed and eligible to

operate under the Law; 3) the Entity is not then in default of this Agreement or the Law; 4) the

Entity's obligations under this Agreement are fully assumed by the new Entity; and 5) the Entity

pays in fall the maximum transfer fee, currently 2% of the Annual Service Charge, as permitted

bvN.J.S.A.40A:20-10fdY

Nothing herein shall prohibit any transfer of the ownership interest in the Entity itself

provided that the transfer, if greater than 10%, is disclosed to the City in the annual disclosure

statement or in correspondence sent to the City in advance of the filing of the annual disclosure

statement.

During the term of this Agreement, the Project shall be maintained and operated in

accordance with the provisions of the Law. The operation of Project under this Agreement shall

not only be terminable as provided by NJ.S,A. 40A:20-1, et seg., as amended and supplemented,

but also by a Default under this Agreement. The Entity's failure to comply with the Law shall

constitute a Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have the

right to terminate the tax exemption.

Default shall be failure of the Entity to conform with the terms of this Agreement or

failure of the Entity to perform any obligation imposed by the Law, beyond any applicable

notice, cure or grace period.

Should the Entity be in Default, the City shall send written notice to the Entity of the

Default [Default Notice], The Default Notice shall set forth with particularity the basis of the
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alleged Default. The Entity shall have thirty (30) days, from receipt of the Default Notice, to

cure any Default which shall be the sole and exclusive remedy available to the Entity. However,

if, in the reasonable opinion of the City, the Default cannot be cured within thirty (30) 3ays using

reasonable diligence, the City will extend the time to cure.

Subsequent to such thirty (30) days, or any approved extension, the City shall have the

right to terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 11.1.

Should the Entity be in default due to a failure to pay any charges defined as Material

Conditions in Section 4.6, the Entity shall not be subject to the default procedural remedies as

provided herein but shall allow the City to proceed immediately to terminate the Agreement as

provided in Article XI herein.

The City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to proceed against the property

pursuant to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, N.J.S.A. 54:5-1, et sec[. In order to secure the full

and timely payment of the Annual Service Charge, the City on its own behalf, or on behalf of the

Trustee, reserves the right to prosecute an In Rem Tax Foreclosure action against the Project

Area in accordance with Applicable Law, as more fully set forth in this Financial Agreement.

In addition, the City may declare a Default and terminate this Agreement. Any default

arising out of the Entity's failure to pay Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge, or the

Anjiual Service Charge shall not be subject to the default procedural remedies as provided

herein, but shall allow the City to proceed immediately to terminate the Agreement as provided

herein. All of the remedies provided in this Agreement to the City, and all rights and remedies

granted to it by law and equity shall be cumulative and concurrent. No termination of any

provision of this Agreement shall deprive the City of any of its remedies or actions against the

Entity because of its faihire to pay Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge, or Annual

Service Charge. This right shall apply to arrearages that are due and owing at the time or which,

under the terms hereof, would in the future become due as if there had been no termination.

Further, the bringing of any action for Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge, or the

Annual Service Charge or for breach of covenant or the resort to any other remedy herein

provided for the recovery of Land Taxes shaU not be construed as a waiver of the rights to
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terminate the tax exemption or proceed with a tax sale or Tax Foreclosure action or any other

specified remedy.

In the event of a Default on the part of the Entity to pay any charges set forth in Article

IV, th& City among its other remedies, reserves the right to proceed against the Entity's land and

property, in the manner provided by the In Rem Foreclosure Act, and any act supplementary or

amendatory thereof. Whenever the word taxes appear, or are applied, directly or impliedly to

mean taxes or municipal liens on land, such statutory provisions shall be read, as far as is

pertinent to this Agreement, as if the charges were taxes or municipal liens on land.

In the event fhe Entity fails to cure or remedy the Default within the time period provided

in Section 10.2, the City may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to

the Entity [Notice of Termination].

The Entity may notify the City that it will relinquish its status as a tax exempt Project, in

any year after the Effective Date of this. Agreement, as of the January 1 of the year next

ensuing. The Notice of Voluntary Temiinafion must be received by the City no later than

October 1 of the tax year preceding the calendar year in which the termination is to occur. As

of the date so set, the tax exemption, the Annual Service Charges and the profit and dividend

restrictions shall terminate.

Within ninety (90) days after the date of termination, whether by affirmative action of the

Entity or by virtue of the provisions of the Law or pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, the

Entity shall provide a final accounting and pay to the City the reserve, if any, pursuant to the

provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A-.20-13 and 15 as well as any remaining excess Net Profits. For

purposes of rendering a final accounting the termination of the Agreement shall be deemed to be

the end of the fiscal year for the Entity.
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Upon Termination or expiration of this Agreement, the tax exemption for the Project

shall expire and the Land and the Improvements thereon shall thereafter be assessed and

conventionally taxed according to the general law applicable to other nonexempt taxable

property in the City.

In the event of a breach of the within Agreement by either of the parties hereto or a

dispute arising between the parties in reference to the terms and provisions as set forth herein,

either party may apply to the Superior Court of New Jersey by an appropriate proceeding, to

settle and resolve the dispute in such fashion as will tend to accomplish the purposes of the Law.

In the event the Superior Court shall not entertain jurisdiction, then the parties shall submit the

dispute to the American Arbitration Association in New Jersey to be determined in accordance

with its rules and regulations in such a fashion to accomplish the purpose of the Long Term Tax

Exemption Law.

In connection with the amount of the Staged Adjustments that is, taxes otherwise due,

pursuant to Section 4.2 hereof and NJ.S.A. 40A:20-12, the Entity shall be permitted to file a tax

appeal with the Hudson County Board of Taxation or the Tax Court of the Superior Court of

New Jersey in the event a dispute arises over the value of the Land and Improvements on the

Property.

Nothing contained in this Financial Agreement or otherwise shall constitute a waiver or

relinquishment by the City of any rights and remedies, including, without limitation, tile right to

terminate the Agreement and tax exemption for violation of any of the conditions provided

herein. Nothing herein shall be deemed to limit the City's right to audit or recover any amount

which the City has under law, in equity, or under auy provision of this Agreement.
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It is understood and agreed that in the event the City shall be named as party defendant in

any action by a third party alleging any breach, default or a violation of any of the provisions of

this Agreement and/or the provisions of FiJJLA^ 40A:20-1 et seq., the Entity shall indemnify

and hold the City harmless against any and all cost and expense (including reasonable attorneys'

fees and costs), arising out of the City's defense of this Agreement. The Entity also agrees to

defend itself in any lawsuit at its own expense.

Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either party to the other shall be sent by

certified or registered mail, return receipt requested.

When sent by the City to the Entity the notice shall be addressed to:

Wave Urban Renewal LLC
40 West 57th Street, 23rd Floor

New York, NY 10019
Att: Arnold Lehman, Esq.

and
Council Foley, LLP
Harborside Financial Center
2510 Plaza Drive
Jersey City, NJ 07311
Ati James C. McCann, Esq.

unless prior to giving of notice the Entity shall have notified the City in writing otherwise.

In addition, provided the City is sent a formal written notice in accordance with this

Agreement, of the name and address of Entity's Mortgagee, the City agrees to provide such

Morfcgagee with a copy of any notice required to be sent to the Entity.

4695942-6
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City of Jersey City, Office of the City Clerk
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Jersey City, New Jersey 07302
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Attn: Robert Byme

with copies sent to the Corporation Counsel, the Business Administrator, and the Tax Collector

unless prior to the giving of notice, the City shall have notified the Entity otherwise. The notice

to the City shall identify the'Project to which it relates, (i.e., the Urban Renewal Entity-and the

Property's Block and Lot number).

If any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement or the Application, except a

Material Condition, shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of

this Agreement or the application of such term, covenant or condition to persons or

circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be

affected thereby, and each term, covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be valid and be

enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.

If a Material Condition shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable and

provided the Entity is not in Default of this Agreement, the parties shall cooperate with each

other to take the actions reasonably required to restore the Agreement in a manner contemplated

by the parties and the Law. This shall include, but not be limited to the authorization and re-

execution of this Agreement in a form reasonably drafted to effectuate the original intent of the

parties and the Law. However, the City shall not be required to restore the Agreement if it would

modify a Material Condition, the amount of the periodic adjusknents or any other term of this

Agreement which would result in any economic reduction or loss to the City.

This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State

of New Jersey, and without regard to or aid of any presumption or other rule requiring

construction against the party drawing or causing this Agreement to be drawn since counsel for

both the Entity and the City have combined in their review and approval of same.
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The parties agree that in the event of a conflict between the Application and the language

contained in the Agreement, the Agreement shall govern and prevail. In the event of conflict

between the Agreement and the Law, the Law shall govern and prevail.

There have been no oral representations made by either of the parties, hereto which are

not contained in this Agreement. This Agreement, the Ordinance authorizing the Agreement,

and the Application constitute the entire Agreement between the parties and there shall be no

modifications thereto other than by a written instrument approved and executed by both parties

and delivered to each party.

This Agreement and all conditions in the Ordinance of the Municipal Council approving

this Agreement are incorporated in this Agreement and made a part hereof.

In fheir dealings with each other, utmost good faith is required from the Entity and the

City.

It is expressly agreed and understood that the fees detailed herein represent all potential

fees chargeable to the Entity. During the term of this Agreement the City shall not impose any

new or increase in taxes (real estate or otherwise), charges, fees, impositions of any type or kind

on the Property, the Project, the Entity or the tenants or occupants of the Project, and any

executive order, directive or policy, municipal ordinance or legislation, or municipal agency

directive which imposes any new or increase in taxes (real estate or otherwise), charges, fees, or

impositions of any type or kind on real property, multi-family mixed use projects, urban renewal

entities, owners, or the tenants or occupants (residential, retail or commercial) of multi-family

mixed use property generally shall be deemed ex post facto, of no force and effect, and not

applicable to the Project, Property, the Entity, or the tenants or occupants of the Project.
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The following Exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set forth at

length herein:
1. Metes and Bounds description of the Project;

2. Ordinance of the City authorizing the execution of this Agreement;

3. The Application with Exhibits;

4. Certificate of the Entity;

5. Estimated Construction Schedule;

6. The Financial Plan for the undertaking of the Project;

7. Good Faith Estimate of Initial Rents;

8. Form of Architect's Certifi.cation of Actual Construction Costs.

?, the parties have caused these presents to be executed as of
the day and year first above written.
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It is currently projected that construction of the building on the existing foundation will
commence upon execution of the Financial Agreement. Once commenced, it is projected that
construction will take approximately twenty four (24) months to complete with occupancy
projected for December, 2020. This construction schedule is subject to force majeure and the
time required to obtain the necessary governmental approvals and permits.
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The estimated annual gtoss revenue and annual services charges that will be rendered by the

Project is contained in Exhibit B~3 of the Tax Abatement Application which is attached to the
Financial Agreement as Exhibit 3.

A projection of the Total Project Cost is contained in Exhibit C of the Tax Abatement
Application which is attached to the Financial Agreement as Exhibit 3.

An Estimated Fiscal Plan for the Project is contained in Exhibits B-2 of the Tax Abatement
Application which is attached to the Financial Agreement as Exhibit 3.

Construction of the Project will be financed through private capital and traditional construction
financing. The construction loan will be repaid at completion with a permanent mortgage from a
traditional lender-

A Good Faith Estimate of Initial Rental Schedule and Lease Terms of the Project is contained in
Exhibit B-l of the Tax Abatement Application which is attached to the Financial Agreement as
Exhibit 3.
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A Good Faith Estimate of Initial Rental Schedule and Lease Terms of the Project is contained in
Exhibits B-l of the Tax Abatement Application which is attached to the Financial Agreement as
Exhibit 3.
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I, . __> A.I.A. do certify to the following:

That to the extent that our firm has been involved in the design and construction of the Land and

Improvements, as more fully described in that certain Financial Agreement dated _,
as between Wave Urban Renewal LLC and the City of Jersey City, and

based on those records and contracts that have been supplied to us by Wave Urban Renewal

LLC, we certify that the total construction cost for the above referenced project is
$

Certified by:_
AJA.

Date:

State of:

County of:

Sworn and subscribed to before me

on this _____ day of_, 20_

Notary Public
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N<^ revised as ,orMiirch,3;4i.2-Oi ?'

THs ^rojeQt ^jnpiGy&ieat &, Contpactihg Agt^?eX ^ ma^e on &0- . . 4ay' of
k between; tiie. Cm Of 3'E]®EY •W^ [W\ W

^€(^€(/{ i^L-d , [Recij^eHtJ^havmg its pna'ctp^l'of^ce o.t 1 J^ameJ Cour^,P'aram.Us,. New
Jersey 0765Z

TJhfi foUo.wing "words and.fenxis, -when ysed in itiis agiE-eeiuenf shall have the- fajlowag
meanings unless tite confer clearly -mdicates •Qthef-wise.

1, "Git.y" •me.Eins fli'e. Bus'mess AAniiii&frator of fhe City of Jer^y ^ity, or Ms .designee,
insludmg any psr.so^i or entity which, 'enters into- an agriges^nt wi& &e City t()'
implement. 131 wltole or in part, -fhis' agreement

2. - "•Cio,n1iacW ms^os: ady p:^ty .^£;rfonnixig' or ojffenti:^ to p'eEform a. prJnhe. conta6t 0x1
behalf :o-f:fh'e Re'clpient.

3. C-ons&uGtioJi Conteaot meaas any agtieement for^ the. erection, repair, .alteratiQn or

demoiitibh'ofanyWldmg; stm&ture, bridge^ tO.atdway or oihsr improvement on a ;Pr&Ject
Site* .,,

4, "Bconomis- XncenHve"' meaas.atax abatement-or tax exemption for a property orproject

wIutili^uires-.a^prQ-yaT ofA&Mxmi&ipa.l Co.uricil.,

.5,, "Employment" i&chito; ^Qsiti:ons c^e^ted. ^ a re.sul.t Qfinlemai pr'&tQQtionS, temiination^,
or-expansions •v?si tbe Re^ipierLt's ^QXk fores which ar&to; he filled by new emplQyees,
However positions filled througli proiaofoa from within the Recipient's &xisting ^vork
foice ar? not coveredpositiotis iHider this agregmSflt

6.. Jersey City ^mploypienf and Tx^nisg Cbrporatio'xi or ^JCBPT?> 1116^3 .the nojH-ptbfi.t
qnasl- public Enti^ ^tli whom. tlie City- to •sm ..qp'erati^g agreeipent to undertake' .ceriaiix
emplo'^flaen.t semces,

7, "L'ofe'al Business ffieans:!abona,fide bustess lo'Gafced. in Jersey City.

8. "Minority" mean? a. person who is- defmed'as- gutih under fede:ral or state law.

9. flMmo£lt5r os Wotii^i -Owned Local Bu^itiesa -means a: hona ^dp' business' located iri
J^rs^y Cxt^ wlycb i's fiSy-one ,(5:1%) p^rceat ior Tnore ov/ned and conti'olled by either a
Minority or wopnaH...

10. "Non-Tradltional Jobs" means jobs which are held by less than twenty ;(20%) percent
women, as reported by the. New Jersey Departfiieat of Labc^ and Workforce

ft-
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De^slopmenty Division of Labor Market; an-d DeniographiQ Research for- J^say' Ci^
^hiGhx^'rts'hall'h&^nfllG with the. Ci"ty Cferk.

it "Of See of T^£ Abateiffientasid.CompUte9?''loGatedat 15 Bast Lindgn Avenue, Sm.te

200.. The. QMce. of Tax Abatement and Compliance^ under &e Deparfeient o.f
Adl'niaistratlori^ i&m charg& bfmojiitoj&g projects .recervin^. tax' abatemehfs ari'd
^omtpring ^f^Qfft Employtelt :<% CQnfractifig, Agreeifiienfs.,

1^. "Pemiauent- Jobs" m?an n^wly'creatisd. iQiig- tenn salaried posifions,. whether pemianen^:.

'teaiporary^ paiA ime, or seasonal.

13. "^oj'ect or SroJeQt Site'11 m.eaxis flie 'spfeiGifi& wofb tocaLtio'si. o£ iocatibi?^-. sp.gcified in' 'the

14. Th-? "ProJpc.^Bmpl&ymGnt & ContraGimg CbordiiiaW ot "CdbrdimtQ?" is th& employee.
in the X^e.piartm&nt of AdmmistE'^oh presetitiy, tiie .Bxeptithfe B^&cltoi of te Jersey City
Etiiplpymejit & TraiEdng' ftogr^&L, IH.G.,. -who is. to. tteg^ of coordiiia'fcuig Pr.oject
Emplcroent <^ Cbntra^^g projeGts. Oonfract-ors ain-d developers, engaged, m piojects-
covered, by Project Employment & Contracting Agresmenfs will direct in^mri&s fo the
Coordinator.. The Coordinator loa-y refer a devielagdr to &e JCEPT ar its 6n&-stop c.ai'eer
centef .so iQng ^s-.-th.& .City and J^EPT agresment is' m full forc-e -and effect

15. The ^Project BmplQynijeait &. Contecting- Momtor'4 or '^Vfomtor" is lihe .eiaployes.. m lhe>
D&partmeat of Ajclimnistration. -who is in clietrge of momtoiang &h si'te,, collectmg tKe
tepoits afici dQoumerLtg^lo^ andl oth.ei-daLy-to-da^ Project EmplQyraent & Coitifcr^ctmg:
adinm'istta'&on'-as sdp:ulated by ?.'agr@e'tri^rit.

!©.. The "^Project Employmenf & Contracfing 0£Sceif? or ^0£EtcerM is an e33aploye& of the
Re,cipi&nt.%h© is designated by the Recipientt.o.mabe suc6th6 Recipient is in.-cb&pliance:
-With thfe toiipie&t^s Frp^ct Baiployrtietit & Contra&fhig .agi'eemeat,

17. "P:edpi,en.i'! m-eans, 'any uny.'yJLdualy paTtnership, assoeaafien, organization, ooiporation or

ofher entityy whether pu'blie •OT private, -or for profit or non-pta&'t;^ or agent fhersof, \vhic1i
recd-ve.s ao. E.Gohoixd'G McerttiVe .and .sliaU. include aiiy Co.ntr^ctOT, SUtetiatractor. or agent

f8. ^The.Uegl.stty-'

to City or its ^design'e&, .of Jersey City .residents seeMng. em,i
Businesses,, includmg Minority or WQmah.O^ed Local Bysmes^e.s, ,se.eldng :&ontraets,,

1'9, "Bub.G&^a&t"- means a'bmding.legaUelafoiisMp'mvolvmgpetfo^an^
is part of % prime cQntr^t.-

20. "Sub'c.ontractor" means a thM pgi'ty that is 'en-ga^i^ by ttie pnme Coritta^tor to perfoxm
unde? ^.stibQ^ntcaptaUorpartofthe Work Biclude'd.ln an origma3[ con'tfacit;

F"-
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21., ^Sul?.stan.ti4 Co.riipIetiO^'means 1:h& de.teronitiattoft.by the -Gtty fhat t&& P?je£.t^ in W^o^
Or in part, is-resdy lor'tbe Use ifitended,; wMch ordinarily shall mean the' date on -which His
Project •teceiyes, O-K iil ellgibl&to receive any Ceriiilcate ofQc&upanc^ foi any p-o;ftion Oi
the KoJ?ct

The' City Wishes to assyre .•Gon.tinuing'- etaploycieiit op^orinnftie'g f6F CSty 'r^sident^,
paiti&'ul.ari.^ xesid'entg who ^ra MinojTMes^ and Tjugi&esg opppxtuXtttre'S fbj: LQG^ Bus^'esseis't.
^sp&cialty Uin.ority -and 'Women O^ed Lopal Hugines^es,. vdtti. einip;lQ^ei:s Lopafed. m .Qt
reloc^!3g;to &e'-C'My wh'o 'are-&e Recipients •ofEcQ.mgmiG Incentiv&s. Tlie City h^s detemiihed
to accomplish that goal by requMug the Recipient of an Economic Ineentive to act ;ui Oood
^•^ii^ -HS de'Sne^ beremA 9ii^ disclia£ge tts'. obligatiQns uader tliis A^ceeffiie^t To && 'ex;t^t
m'sEnciatetl 1sf S;fer£@ ^d' Fedeia[l .1-aw .SCKJ. •sa lojag'. as. fc Bri^" (Hscha^g^ its-. Oo.od F^ti-
o'bligatio&B under this agreement,: the Cfe adk:Eio'wl?!.dgeg- that the Recipient and its- oqr^ractors
are free to: hiee whomever they &hpose.

Becatise. thi-s project is nol s.ubject to ?s. terms' of a. Pr;oj.sot Late. Agt<,e?iaent duruig:
sonsX-Uetior^ 'this agreetu-ent sb^ll. s?pj?lj "to ^1' Co.Dstn.ictton 'Jo'bs, Busine-ss Con^a^ts a&^l non-
&03^tn?;d.GiEi P^raanent Ip'b's', Recipi'eats WQ •aj-s.o required, 'to no^Sy' any coromeroial: tenants- of-

The Recipient shall d.tssignate. SL pri^^jipal o'fficer of ifs Sxvsi to be Tesponsible for-
admlmsteang the .agc^ement detailed herein and. to ^ort to and ooiifer witii..'thie- •Ci.ty M .older to

.discharge it? Obbd. 'Mth 'o'bligati'oi^1 as defined ui lihis agteeEieat. TIiis. ofiicer should be
'd<3sigoate4 as the B'oJeot.Binplo^qRient &.. Contraating 0?er*

The Recipient shall -sejid a letter designating, its "Project Bmploymeni & Contractitig
Compliance OffTicef' to tiie Project Em^lo^nent & Confeactin^ Coor<£nat6t prior to aixy
pyec&'i^sttdction'meie'tmgs,, Ao exampl& offtu.s l^yeT ic^i be found m AppfejlSbs; 1.. Tbis Officei'
•shcrUld.al.sy '^© preSe;iit fot all pre^Qi]istraGtioii,fiiisefmgs.

T^e Recipient, should send. a letter regardiug tiie ^Prpjefit Employiaent & Confa^csting
C©mpliane& Officex"' 'to the .employee^ of the R-ecipieM's coznpany. An. ^xsiaple, of tbi5 lefte'r,
can be fduhd' in Ap^fcn^'S..

Tins'dgreement shall ^e- m -.effect fcffi a peiiod co-tenMiius' with tlie eff&cti^e/peitod oftiie
tax exejnpfiQn [ttie EGonomiC Incendve], Thus, it •will G&Eiriisnce on the 'date the City Ctfmcil
a.dopted. O^rcianfis^^^^, appl:OV'JC[ig,&e tax exesiption a^.& t^ftninate' 5 .yea^s fi'o? the .<Ne of
Sn'bStarili^l Coinpletion of the Pxoj'ect

ff
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Ifi H\t; 'g-verL-t •ttie IL^Ip^nf is ab}^ tQl d^ops&'ate 'tb&t Its: ^6£^ forc^ -already meets tiie
gaals; ^ef fo'rffa. bdo^ ol* 15 able 1:0 .Tae&t such, •gpa^ d^.rmg th's tienn. &f M^ ^gre.enient, the
Recipibn^ jshall qslj b.e required to ^uteit' •&e-pefriodic, cfertifted manmng and cerfciSed -payr^U
reporte-deseribed below to c.oafirm^Hgoingcompli'anGe..All other, RecipieNts must'c&iftpl^willl
thef.QU.ov/'iiig 'Good Faith, ^b&ls.

E^ploy5fae'nt'(GQnsirn'£tlon and Peywi.nest; -Jolis): TJbe recipient QMI make a G'ood
Faith ef&rfto achieve- -fee goal ^of a work forGe-representmg fif^-one (5,1 %} p.erGent City
residents;, fifb^-one (ST%) pereent. of whom are •residenfs who :aie Miiiiarities .aild, in 'Mon-
T^adifio'aal J:?s;. ^.p.oM.nine. (6.9^) pesr'cent Qf^3ioni;a£e.re5iti^A;ls ?%ho are 'Wo^rieny it'-

'b6ii^:yn^sto'!oi :that o&e efitploy.ee may mtisdy morstl^n on^ caj.egOiiy;

2< Business: Contractings. The. Recipient shalljaaake a G.ood SF^h. effbrt to aete&Ye flie goal
.o^ a.'wardlng tw-enty (..20%) perceft^ of tli6 d'Ql^ amouat Qf its cori:teaGt^ to Local
.Businesses, -Qity-ene (3,1 %) p^r-oent of ^Hc^ sWl ^.MEnfirity or Wo&^n Ovme4 tOGal
Bn&inesses, If fifly-OAe {5.1%5 'p.etc;.ent of Minon^' Qik ^Qipsu 0^??.e.d: X.boal J^u§iir@sses-
cannot be.obtaine^'that percentage of contracts must still "be ap^plted to local vendors.

1. Construe'dpix .JdBs';.. Ooo'd ^ai^i. shall', m'ean compliance witli a|l of the foGowing
©onditions:

^

A. Ifutial MaiSiiitfi.^en'ol't:

i) Prior to. 'the coimmencement of 'feeit work on the Project, each Cbnfcaotor

ii) Th6 JniliailSfe]Q]^gRe^rt'sli(3ul<?-CQtiUm%,estito^te-of^tefOtd^ ia eacb.
construction trad& pl-, cr^fi gnd the num.ber :of hours to te worke.d by City
residents;, ixicluclyig a \isi .of liie- number of minority Yesidents. and women
residents fhat -will -wod: m. each' 'trade •Qr craft, moludin:g the 'work ftburs to be.

performed .bj suofii employees o.f iany •an.d all CcintT^ct-ois axd Subcontra^OT&
AttEtph.ed WQ^O Ss A^pmteB is thg Kecipient'g laitxalMaxtain^&poft

ui) The taMal Maxmlng Rj^oxfc.'shall fee .filed 'wi& the Project Bmploymeni and
.Cox^adgn^ Monitor wlio must'.accepjt saifi Reporf prioi to llifc Reeipieat %EiterMg^
into any consteacMon contfacst An example, oftUs acceptance.,lettet is- given m
Ap^encti^ C.

B. Developer^ Contracting OTsXgatlons

i). Once the develdper sulofiaits f^ei .pXQjeot s'- ulitiai oi^rit[iug repQ.^, W^hfe myst
forrod a le-tfer with requests for qpiotalian. Rr 'bid to MayQt ^e'ven M. Mop'-s
O.fiic® of Diversity gnd Inclusion for tpcd and rmnority vendors for1 any

fff:
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eon$tm<sti0n or building oper&tmg gDo4^ s^r^ces? '•sS^. $nb-CQntfa6tifii
op^QifuRifiies'. A&.^smpl^ of &i^ letter is groi m Ap^elidbt U.

ii); The deTelo^ei; shsLl! rfi^kfe a gQ&d f^i effert' •tQ oontact ttiose ^businesses and
mdi^duals. who ^b'^bid&TMs :sffortX^'be tou^^t^ by\lete
fee- Seat to Ms^o^ Etev^r 'M!, F'utop's QfS.Ce •6f Diversity ..and In-cjttision 'a.t
PX?Ct • SMWTMBNT & CQNTRACTINO MQ^JTOR md.^ the
'Dbj3aif?nt 'of As?"as?i.on. ,AE Sample .of Qdg letter •ean.. "be fouad m

Appends DX

(^. Cotriractbr's/^ubeonteaetbr^s C6mv^ssG& St&tement

Prior to c'&mmw^si^, of'^W v%ri< On.the ^ibjjsc'f, e^cU Ciontr^cfor'.dT Sub.c.ontactor
mi^t' agree is: wnifmg to comply ^\^ iKis 4@:eemen£ aAd th^' ^plQyment -goals elsL'boiated
Herein. An'exanipl6.;o£:tIu's.'Cdm.pliance'.Sfatement'.ca^ b& found in Append%.E;

D. •Hmp.n Statement-.oft]'sni'£ Its B:estEf?Orfa

i) Prior 'to GommeaGem^nt of fhfiir WQT'I? on the ^rojeQt, the conttaotor/sybcontfaetoy'
vW submit a .sfafement .expressing i^s- a^h.erenc@' fo fb.e Project E.mploydeut .&;
Con^aoting' A'greme^ to -each tlnion wifh.1 wtuch he/sli© has a. Gpllectivle'
Bargamflsg.a^rea&en.t cQvsring woTl£6£s to be-'.emplo^ed on'&e'projieot,

u) Tiie G.bmpKanc& Statement ?h£ili tncl1Li4^ % ^nio&. .sta.'tenxent for the ^srtiGUlEtt
union't0 stgha y$iich-fclate;iiie -union •will use- itsb'es*. effotts to co-mpjy ^itfc ^e
enrployxnsnt goals, ..^.Qtited. ui tble .PEoject' Emplpyment & Contracting
agreement '1'his. .cftm.plja&c'e statement i's- detA.d in Appen&s F. A copy -of tie

.sijened •co.mplianoe statement: m.n.5t- b,6 sent to' to Prolect Ex&ploymeiri; &

Momtor in PROJECT BMPLOTV^T & CQ'NT^CT^G
MONITOX TiStder the Dqp^Ttsienf of. Administration Wore ^cs]£ starts m ordiey

' for adpveJEoper to ba j^i yoniplieince..

iii) The recipient -will re^Tiire the ContraLJStOr or Bxi.bcontcaGtor tQ proinptly'no.trfy fL-e
City •.6f ^fl-y iefu^al or 'MuT&of a uriion. to- 3-ign. %e .-statement If a particulHr"miibn

re&Ses to sigp. ^ st&teinent, tSe K.eci^ient"w,ili doeumenf ite •eJl'brt-S. fo'^.btainBTftch
staiemeint :anrf.the reas'on^ giV^ii by ^e'tMon 'fca? .fiiot 'sigD'ing. suc'h. statement, ,an"d

submit such' doctim:etdattQa"tG ^e.I'r'^fecfEmpto^ent &. O^ntrac^ng MQmtor m
PROJECT EMPLQYMENT & GON.TRAaHN^ MONlTOIt under the
nepajrtixiei'rt of Administration.

E^ Sub-Contraotors

Th^ dGV^lpper shall Tequh'e tha^; eacli'pri'tne 'coat:^tor 1:?e'segpjtipsib.le for the-cdtapliaAO^
of Iii^/liet .sub.(?:o&tr:aotors v^Hi the aforementioned Pioject ExnpioymeAlt &, Conti^c&ig:
requirements durmg the perfottn^ac^ o'ftiie contract TO.eneverthe contractor'sub-CQQtracts a
portion of fhe 'work, on the ptoj^t, :fhe .GdritfcactQr sliaU bind the Subcontractor to the o'bligatiotis.
corLtaiaedm fhesfi supplemental ocyaditionsto fhe Ml ^xte&t.as ifWshe Weiethe contractor,
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F., l?a AtonrSilftess

The GO.&trskCfof is' respQtisible- fox. Sssy'rinl ^lat resident •aEL:(^ .minority a^prg.ofices.acco^'E
for at kast fi^y (50^ percsntof ^ie total hou^s workgd by umou aRgyenticQS- oa file job m ^aph
toi& Hsted in 'wbic'& apprentices ^e semployed', accoTding' to tiie apprenliise-to-jo^me-y-'WQrker
rsltib' CoritSLin^d in..t^e- c&Uetetive 'bai;gaining, agre'euient, besfwe^n r£b^ 'VaMoys uriiOtis, •:^iid :sl^tl KoH
iosh 'ofBs/te ^^b&.Dntr^ctois t^ tiais tequir^i&ent J^e Recipie&t Wll, f^yite tlie conttatitOr .01
subcontractor -to pwmplfy W^ty, fee €^j of auy i'efos.&l. of ,a 'unjEb.n 'to, ut^ize. '^esi^ent smd'
minority apprentices-..

G.. Moti?1' M-anii&% ]R.Je.^?£'

i) The Recipient; will: cause -fh&Contra^r to eonnplete and. sybrmi Montbily Projeet
Narmmg Reports to' the PtojeGt Employment &> Gontacting Monitoi> in PROJECT
EMPLGWENt & CONTRACTING toNtTOR mdejF the. Depai-tmeHt of
AtoinNr^Xon. by "£^ 's'eyem& day of the 23tonfh foUo-^&g the i&ontlz teing'
'wHc^tbg-WQrUs.perfornieii, for^he dnr£^nofth;e contrELGt.

ii) Ths reportwll ^cnrately reflect fhe-totel hours
'afd fenmb'er ofhoUTS v/oiked. Isy City residents^ihGluding a list Qf the n-umte
•of miqant^ fesicfenf :sad "women t&sldent workers- in o^ 'tr^dfe :o£r cra^ ^id •WiU
list .sep'aratdy the -work ho^rs ^rfprraied: 'by s.uch employe.es oflib-e Goi^fraripi and.
each of it's Subc'ontc-^tors during the previo'us raonfh.. %e. M;-onfhly Manning..

Xep'orfcahall 'be .&th& f&mi attachefi heteto .as- App&ndix Q-

iii). The S.eisipigut is responsible for.iuamtafnmg .or causmg-fee.ObQtactorto sn.4nfalnr
secoKls.suppQr-tmgtiLe reported 'woifetoa;-? of its ContL'actors'oy Subcontractors.

B. Mosiliilv 'Omitted Payrtill ReiiQrfc

i) The '.Recipient will cause the -Contractor to fumishi the Project. Binployment ^
Contracting^ Monitor vy'ith 'copies of its- weekly G-ertified Payroll repor-ts.t The
reports will .specify the res^dence^gender aad sibDio/raciaI on'gin.of.ea.ch worker,,
Wor^ tons' aa^. rate of pay .and tesfits' provided. The -Certifi.ed Paytbll repDrt:
^bsfl be in'Si.e.fcitxn atfacib.ed.te.et6; as'. Appendix- H.

ii). Payroll reports nuist- be. subs)ted ©n a wnthly 'bsisis Avifh.te Moriihly Mamung
3^p6rt or the .Re.cipient is ho longer m ^mpli^n6&.

1. Sau^ Smplovm&n'£ .Ootiortumtv K&pOits

Prior -to eommenGement of work, on the Projeetj fee Recipient 'will :reguest .CQpies of fhe
most recent Local Union Report. (JSEO-3). and A-ppren^cesbip fafesnation Keport (EEO-2)^
Whicla. ar^ reqmr^d, to be fUe.d 'wi% 'th&' US C.onmission of E^u^l EmplQ^ent. Oppottunity
Cioituxdssl.oa by Ihs Gollecti^e bsrggining unit, t^e^ .reports will, be forwaKl^i ^o 'the- Project

A-.
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Employment & Go&torfang Monitor •withm, one month. ofif:he.sigmng; .of the Projeet EmplQyment
&'

J. Other Reports

In -addition .to.- flie above .tep;orts, •flie Recipient shall fiimish suoh. •repor.ts .or .oth&r:

docuiQients'- to tie: Git^ && tbe •^ity may requisst fi'ora time to time' in. •order to -csi'ry .out the.

purposes 6f&is;agte^meat.

K. Records Access.

i'erit 'will itisUF'e 'that fhe. d^ xill. ^ave reasonable- access •to all recOrds.'.^rid JBles-
rea'son'ably nee^Ssary to edn&3fti the ^G'cur^y pftUe'iirfopnation pro'-vided %tli6'^.pbrte.

L.. Work Sffe Access For Monitor

^3 The. City will p^ysiclaUy 'rQQmto? the 'work. .sites s'^bj^cf to ttiis 'agreoni??t&r V?ri']£y'
-tlie.accW^y of'flie-zftonthly feports. EaGh work $ite wiU te p'bysically moiiitored
.approximately ;,pnce every f^o weelcs,. and .xa'ore Ji?quen£ly if'it is deemed.

rieiasbnably necessary by •£h.e City-. The City's fuidmgs. shall be recorded in .a "Site
Visit. "Kepo.rE, .An example.- of a bi-'WeeIcly ^ite; visit rep'ort, G3Lti be: .found, in

Appendix,I,

ii) The. E:ecipient. shall -requrre. the Contra-ctoi 'and Sub-GEinteaotox to cooperate wt-fli
to City's site, E&oMtom^ ac&Vlttes an,4 ijtforxrJL the City,as to the dates th.e^ are.
•wOrkmg at &ei Prcg^yiE; sit^. This Molu^dg. s:pe;c,?ally lfasfe.ac;£u3:g: the ou-site:
eECHrsirUc't&Ji Jftanage^- a'bout :the ra.omt.oriri.g' proCess:» 'and imfQiramg hirii.ilaei: -that

the mpyxto v/ift 'con-ta-Gt han/hex •to- set up: so.. miW meetmg. is flie case of
proje;cfs- •mth;myMiple locati'ons, the. Recipient •s'hall infoTm the- City of the dates
t^ey 'ai:e wo^kitig at e'a^li site lociMiQn(s) wh&r@ tb.ey are worldng^ m oide^ to
fat^lft.ate -tlxe mojiitori^g.

-L Pemasxent S^s'i GooS. Fai.th sliaU rctean ••co.mpli?e. "witl^ all of the foIlbVkqng
,cofidili5:n'g;

A. te?-himg- Job. A'wareness: At fegst. eight {8} nionths- priQr t.o fe hiring, of' a ReGipi@Bt?s
peaton?'wbrl£foreis, fee: P^rojeGt Et^lQyment & Contecfihgf officer f^r &e R.eciplent
<will. mieet,, "with. •the •Caordm'atot, .inbluding. {he.. •dlrectox of .TCETP t0. discuss .b&w'fhe:'

Regipie^ pl^ns.te Ite its^rflaanentworkfo.rce', r£hi foll0v,?i.ftg Issues should be covetA.

in te meeting:

i) whet&er subcostr^etbss v/lil be used .ati the liirmg process.
ii) the spetjifi'c, ^p:e;s .of jobs •Elmt ased to he filled.
iu) the qvia(ifiieatibp$ .needed fctr these par^-oylgr jobA
ix) possible trasio-g progiams offeited by the- permanent employer,

R",
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v3 the Ke&ipiescfs goals and how itplans "to, meet these goals..
Vi^ any 'other, issues wMcK is.fe'ed 'ta be pressed.

Sub'conWWr ^otifie'atroii: If'tbfe ,^ecrpleat .decides to suUont££iGt:aiiypQi^QS.of gU of
its-permanent worMbrce,&en ^e Rssipient mus£Te.cei've a signer aclsao^ledgme&i fi-om.
~? 'sUbcdn-tracting pariy that it -will abide Hy th6 Pmjeet Empioyment & Contrajctmg
Agc^assnt b;sf6r^ gs^A s\i:bcbntract03i' be|?tis sf-isfeg p'enn:an^nt 'emplo.yfieg, Th,e-
teipi^ntxaust. forward a pQpy .of ^ signed ae&iowiecfgtiientto the SrojeeS ^mpfoyment'
^ Conttacfiag Monitor. An- sample of this signed acicnowlecigmeiit ;cafl, be' found' iu

C, Sub&o&ttactofc R>e-Htrm^ Job Awarefie^s M^efiiig; .Each subciO^tfa.Gtor hired to staff
pennw^t job positia&s' ;wngt appornt 'a.. Projeot Employment .& -G.siatr^cdag ^)£5c6r to
'.meet' "with- th& liea4 of l2ie- -Registt^ to dis&uss •fee sam^- issues presented above- in VI

LA.,(i>(vi) .and notify fee City.

D, SubcSnti'actOi's: of gtibcoritractoi-s':' S^con^^to.?? o.f.subsiQtiLtcactors.are' ^bje'Ct'tj5 &&

sam^ teq^ieme'nts; fs^ te N^al sti'bcoji^astors.

E. Db.cumentatiori of'Hi^ng Plan: Onee the Bre-Biring Job A-wareness Meetin'g has takien
place, ih^ J?;6ciplefit tosf put. together •a do.Gumsn£ vrith .goats and,-to'fals. f'pr •;£utm;^>
^mati^t'ejtaplo^i&e'nt 'j|iee4^. this f>l^a .ghcryl^ sWnsitbQ all feat. wa5 discy^&d. m tite

Pre-H-mng;.A,wa3:qness Meeting, list estimates fcss; manpower needs^ :sef re.sidenfcial and.
minority employment gosLls coEoinensitrate with the Project Employment &. .Confcacting;
A^^nsht!., ..and sMoW .How Ifee .Redpl&if pl^s to n^t th.es e -goals. .Aii, -eg^aipZe. of this
pl^s.ig;'fo:Und;iti'Append 4-

K Pre-HMnf? .NotiScatio&s, A^- least- ten :(1C() wortog ^a^s prior to adverdsing for aay'
eni^loy^es^ 'fhe 'Recipient or t^e Reciyn.ent7? silbcorLfractbr. shall provide the' PROJECT
EMPLOYMENT & CQNT^tACTING MONITOR and the JCEPT vn-& a witfen notiGE;,
wliich slisll ^fete.the Job title, .Jo]?, desodptiofi &nd.£Qimmom qualifications, fate -of p^
hours of worl£ and tiie hiring d£ite fcff Eacb pQsl^ion to be fiUed, in qualitative and^
objJeGfive terms "wMcliwUl enable th.e refe'rral, of ciualified applicants to the Recipient

0^ Adver.t'isetn6ht: At &e; te^tiest.of the •Ci^. l6E bee-su$e l^e CH^ do^s nQt.toe1 qualified
applicants to ref^ to '•&© ,^;e.cipiSnt, the Redpffeiit 'wlH' place aflL adye^seinentfor ^ jpb,&
iti:a ?^spa.]3er^?,^ ^s? r^gHlax'ly published In J^rss.y'.City8. Thle. Recrprent-must ftLcriish'
fce .PM?CT EM?LOYMBNT & CONTRACTINa MOMTOR. wltti a copy of to
adv.&Ett^emis&t

IL 1?.re-BuEins.InteE¥H2W^ The'Ketiipi&nt.sh'all interview any •^uali^ed app1.'icants'refen'e4 to -H
pursuant to the agre.emient; In tlie .event •adverlisemsnt -is Tequiwd,, fb.e Reeipient agrees •to1
interview any qpalified persons responding to fhe advertisement.

I. MbutMv Emplo^i&efit S:epopfcs; The ReGiptent v^ill s'u'bnu:! wrrtterjL employmfeplt teporis 1:0
tbL'e'PtoJectEmploytQi&AI;.^ C.onfra&fhg,?nifo¥in'fh,ef6ii]a to ^ provided, by the Cit^.
The report 'will Ibe submitted on ,the T day of'every montli. It wxll de'scriBe each jo.b and

r";
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state--whether the j.ob was Slled., or lield 'by •a.-Qity; residen^.inm.qxit.y r'e'$ident,or woman

Tesitlerit and date of hire. The report will explain In writin.g the; reasons why any q-aali&ed
refert.&d. ap^Ucant (or in. tfcd ewfeiifc ^dy^'ti-gemeEit is. requiredi &n^ qmiifi^ed p&rspn
responelutg to' th^ al.y^ili^m'ent) -vs?^ Uo'tHred an4.^ie te.a'sSB 'iitiereifore. The fQnn 'Qfr&t§
repott shall bs in..substenyatiy th:e forifi fctl'und % Appe&dix $,' '•su'bj'espt -£o. su^li revsipn as
the City tems appropriate a^d reasonable. Mbntbly reports, may be &xtended to s'emi-
^imall^xepQ^/bi]i:Qet^eimdMworlEfO(C-ce..i&-hir-ed.

J.. Rec'ord A'cfiess^'The ^eGilpieAt s'N'U pi-OV^ 'tli& Qt^ wl&.r^soft^te, afac^ss. to. a^l £1^'^
.apdrecQrds 'mcl'uding payroll and pex.sonnel iiafonnation x.easonably- necesSBffy to .confimi
the accuiacy-ofthe M)t.mation set'foith in &© •semi-amruai reports;

K-. &>iJU3£^6^A^c^ss; Tte ^pipiW sball pj'Q^i.de Ae; City" ^thTOsQ'uabte a(?cess to thSs
.siteto-physically 'inoitiitor the vi?orlcsit& to -v&n'^ die atcut^G^ ofihe iflfottnia'El^Ti set. forth
in the any reports.

L. Other KjspOrts. D'ocuments: lit •edition to fhe a'bove. repQrfc^. the. ReiGipient shall forriisll'
such repb.fls .0,1 ofaer -docum&nts that the^dty ,ma? teWst fr.oxa, time to: ilm^ in -order ta
unplemeM't;h&. purposes oftNs •agceem&nt.

M. . In^orp.oralion. of A.areem^n^ Tha Reeipi-dat s'hall. inGiD'rporate th^ ptQvisions- of this'

Agt^emeirt 'in all ^ontcact^ agre'eiuexLts 'and pMrchase ••orders for labo$ wi.ril a&y Be:i;yicei,
in^mtenaiiG^. sectmt^ or '^apagem^jX ageuf or C-oxitracto.F •.engaged by th.& ;R.edpfent
wh0s& personn^F'wiU b.e -assignee tp the Recipient proj^et

^

A. Good Baifh. ^NU mean c.o?t]pfiatiee wifii 9.11 ofthe-foUpw.ng.W.^iXins;.

•i). S'oliortation of'Busmesses;.

a) One montli befc^e. the. solicilt£(tion for any goo.d's a? sei'yices^ -the. R&pip'ient.i&ust
forward 9. letter ;wi& a descriptiQa of tlife goods Qr se£^c:es to &e Project.
Employment and Contracting 'C'ooidlnato^

b^ T^-. Reciptot. .sNU prbvide '&©,. C^ m& a wrltteA Purcl-iasirLg S.%pQit. eveiy
^OHlth, Th& forfh of this 3ppit. •shall ^G iti S^lsstantially1 Ihfe f6t];a found, in
Append^ 6,

o) Pre-BATm'R TSifotiflcafion; At least ten (.1.0). worldn-g days prior to adveii'tising for
ssy ei'upl&ye,^ the.. R£crpletit -ot the. .Recipi'e.iLt^. sutontfa'ctbr shall p'rovide'tbe
mrocT E?LOTMim' & CG?RACTINQ MQNITQR ^ ^ KXPT
^?yitlh. a -wntteji n'otjice, -which shall sta.te thfe job tr^e, job d^sGiiption s^. mifi&mfii
qualifications, mte of pay^ hozirs. of work and tiiie hiring -date for each position to.
be filled^ in. qUalitatw& and objective' terms whlGh 'will. enable 1ihe Tefertal of
f^ualifiedf applicants toliieRecipieat

^-..
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4) Adverds&ment .At- •fee: request of te. Cit^y or because the City does not iiave
qualified ^ppjicarits to .Tefer .to the: R.eoipien.tt the RsGip'ierit '?dll ^Mce afi
:adv?rd:gerEiept;for'tliel.iol3$ in a inew^p^er wixicli- is fegrilatly p^l:>l?s'he^i^ Jersey
Gity. Tfe teipieat, mm 1x&^ Che PROJEOT E!MPLOT?NT ^

-e)' Pfe.-Bte^ Intetvievfc '-The, Re^ieHt, s1tl:ell. interyieW auy qT-i^Ufied. agplibants;
tefeneci to it pnris'uant to the- ag^'e&ment In tho bvent'a^Vei'tis'enient .is -tequfefed,. f&.fe.
Recrpi'ent ^gi'e^S to' interview any -qualiJ&e'A pei.sons respondxng.. to: tiie.

adyertasement;

'f) Monthly JBriipIbvment to?s.: TEte Recrpieat 'will submit '^ritrfceu eiriployfazerit
rs'por.ts' ^ 'tJlie' 'PiOjecti Bmplo^n'&Sit- &. ^CoKfcfac.tmg' Mopitfir in th? 1^? :i^. be
provided' by ^Q <^itf. Tta& lepQrt will '^ su^miiEatsd. QH f3ie 1'^ day of-'eyiejiy mon&,
It wiU describe each job and ^tate -whette th& jo'b •was filled or held by a City.
resident miiioxity resident or W.oflaasL,.r6s'i.dent and date. .Qf ^ire. th^.-repbrt' ^31.

fe^pteWL ^ •wdtmg-^i? teasbns 'wHy •%2y • ^Uait&ed'rfeferT.e'd ^plicai]:t;(of ^n, -Qie, ev&Lt
•adyer^seinent-'is rS^mred,. ^y quailed p'erson r.esppnding-to ^. adve.xtisement).

^as -not hired :and •t3ie reason liierefb.rs, r!hQ. fogn of this- Tepptt- ^hall Be- lu

substanMLy tiie fenn found is ^penfc: S,. subj-e&t to sueh teyision as- the City'
deexns. ap^iojEttiia.le atid .reasania'ble, Mori^hl^ -l-epQrts ttiay be extended, to, .semx-

aimu^lyteiportsoffce'AeimfiglwOytofo'iaei.sHred,

g) Record AcGIess< The R.edpient shall proyide the City -w^h reasonable access to •all:
'file's aad reec? mbltidixig •payfoll •aad persoun.6i mfomiatiatl, reasonaMy'
ne^'essa^'to cot&m ? ^cc'i^^cy of the i&formatlion •§et 'foi-tli in' the senti-&iu3rtal
repo:tts;

li) Work. Place Access: The .Rwipient .sliall. pro\^de •tiie CiAy vnfh reasonable acGess
-to -flxe site to ^hysx6.ally raoHitor fhe ''vror'k site t6 venfy fhis 'abcur^cy of 'the
hfoftna.tfoxL s.etforih m the any repo-rt?,

i) QfherXepo^s, Doc'umen'fsr lEa a^dili'pn to- file. abo.ve lep-oEts, ti&- Recip.ien.t sli^Vl

MMslt such,irep6rts w other doeuments fhat te City .'may request ftom time to
tuue.in order'tb miplementthe pu¥po.ses o'f^lii^agEfe'emei&IE.

}) •- tncorpo^toi of A^ement Th& JR-e'dpipnt sh'all incQiporate th&'provisiSiiS 'pffhis,
Agreement -m. all GQHfag.cts, ^greem^at^ •asi: purch'ase 'orders for- late ^h gny

sej^lce, maintenance^ security oj'iiianagemeiit agent or Contracfor-engaged by the
1^c;rpientWos.e pe^onn4 ^iU fce'.assig'ne'd to'the .Re'ci;pi6rit,prQ]:6Gt.

The Re&ipiest pledges' not -iG- tisje loeal and ,lQoai ffluiQ?lty vendors solely ^s cbndmls for
vendors -feat -are. not. local and xamonty ovpaecL Any discov.ery 'by Projeot Bmplo'yment
aad Contractmg Momtor of a Recipient, usmg the masthead of a: Iqcal or .Tnihoxity
owned ^ysiness 'a^ a 'way to. get credit for loc^l or miaQtity emplbyineot. 'wlien it should
not, Will 'iminbdiaMy subj&ct, the ReGip.iteELt tb te penaIHss U'sfe3[ .in SecMpn VIH (d):
belov^.

10



'Good Faith shall mean icompliance -with all of'the following (iondHibjli^

A. 'H1^ R.ecrpient s'hall s^nd .all tenants, of CQmmercN spa.Ge,^ iiicludmg rstaii space, witlim
te 1?r.q3.ecf Si't€; -a T6n9.nt B&ptoytsent. Sgryi^s Guid^ in the fofm. AttacKed as.A'&pendi^
7.

B. Tile.- Reoi^ient sNU require'tenants of Gommercialy mduding any retail space :fco complete
an .annual. 'c^estNmair&.cQ&cenn^ Hie composifion of t&fe. •wbA foirc;^ 6'f :each te&aii;t. Tile
cofiiplete4 .qu'esfemate be; s.utaitte.d fo.^ie jPrbj^ct.EmpIoyffisnt & •.Cofttiuc^ng Moxiite
The quesiioimaire shall Be -m flT.e fpri&L :af^che.(l as Appendix 8.

C. TN Kecijdsnt' wiU. gend the: results of i;fe solicitation -to ^e Projeot Employment &
GoBteaotmgMQ^or no latet thaii D'ecemte 1of each yeEir.

1. A.dvispi^ .NoU-ee: Th& Cl^ will issue, a wriften Advisory Notice to the 'Recipient if -there
i's 'Uou-Gptn^li^nce- ^rdl i, GoSd ^mtb. r'eguii^ifa^t.-as .4^1n€d ^ t^s ^greeteierit The
Ad%ispi?7 ^oiip'6 shglT €;^lai& in, ^ffi^iejlt ^tail the b^si? of-(he allQged violatiQn. Tile
Reoipatent sh&H have- s&^@n (71 dgys to correct-th.e violation.

.2. VicHatbn Notice: 'If fh€ alleged -ylo'lation .s'et forfe. in. the Advisofy NotiG'e has riot b'ee'h
e'orrectsd t^ fcte ssEisfaG'tion. o^ the (3.ty the Ci-ty sl^tl i§sye a Vii5latio.n."^o1$ce to the;
Redpienty % Violation Notic& sblalt s.xplain.-in •snMcient detail,fLe; -basis, 'of'the SLlle'gedy
coritfflLfung- violarion. The Recipient will. have &ree (3) ^WQrking days to oon-eGt Sxe
vi6latl6n,

3.. Correcting;'£bLe ViplatioHK Either Q'r bo^h. th&Advis'Ot^NbiEice oTthe. VxO,latiO]a-?tiC5 io4y
be considered GDTrbcted iffhLe PL^cipieat.-satisfies the requixeffiepits ofllusagireem^nt and-
.soad^estheCitymv?ritmg,^ubjectto'con&ma1iionbylheGity..

4, Bx'terisiftii'Gf Tlm^, to •Coti.'ie&liGy, E'itetlig AclyigQry'NotiLce, Qt'-tWViQlatibri Motic:@:n^y
be. held in' ab's^anGS' and 'the time fbt cpxi'eptlon extended if. tlEie ^.ecsipient eaters. mto
satisfactory written agL'eeoten't'^ifh. fh@ City ;for c-orrectiv^ aetim wMcb. is desired ;tQ
acMev& compliance-.- If' Recipient Ms' to abide 'b^ 1&e tenns of,,such -agreemmt "the

Violation, wfll be ponsidered riot GQrr^GtecL

If -the City detenameS; that the Reoip^nt is; in ^iol^On a^ter the GXptoIo;n of th<3 ^:e
periods-^ the Smplent- agrees thai- "th'e City' shall 'be enMfted to the Ixquid-.ated daSia^es

provided: belo-w.

P-.
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t. Wliile, reserving any other remedies the City may have at law or equity for a xa^eri^l.
ferieach; ot^ie a^oVerleisnsand, c6nditn3t)s,, ttxe pgttie^.dgt'efi'^iat damages fot^iOl^QHS of
i? iagcieemejit by tte E-ecyjMt ^Xinot. 'be G.at;Gulate:d- iwit1i:iiti,..&n^ reiaLsoi^Hs degree Of
ma'&em'afli^al Gertasi^ Therefore,, •die- p&rti'^S agree tiat upoii lixe .oco.u£ren'c6. of a

material teacli of any otihe- a,bov^ ternnts andl con^xtions., and. ^fter notice and esgpu-atios.
of ^ -owe ^'eriod^ fhe Git^ -wiU be emitted, to liqurdated damages £t:bm fae Redpien.t iti

3U<J[wmg amounts?

A. PaU-me -to file Mtial ^tannmg ^porfc jEponstruction Jbbs) or Pre-Hiring. Xotification
(Permanent Jobs) or P^e-Conteacting'Notification (Busmess Gos.traGts^ arL. amoun't equal
to five p'prcent (5%^ increase' ia the esti&i^fed aiiEiyal sewltie charge, as. 's@t forih m. Hie.
?i£^QGi'4 A.grWient'fb? -e^cli qnarter 0?' 'psi-t .thereof &^t'tife'^Qci^xit.!^lton^Qmpli£tfit.

B, Failwe to conduct ^re-lyrmg fiiferviews ox subroit- 'Compliance Sfafemeiif (Submit
deSGrip^s; .of goods -or services, CBusiness Contractiag)^ asi aniount equal -to ••tliree ^>°/6)
percent of the estimated annual service; charge as. set' forth:- ui t&e 3Pman;GM A^reemeat for
ea^h. q-uartei oi-part thereofthat the R^ipiem •^ -non. coinpliMit

2. Paii'ur&- to allow Tecord QJ: wo^ lplaGe access OT subnii^ sixy •o'faer: .required repor.ts (a!l
categories): an -a&idunt equal to dte (3^') -p^i-c.ent increase •sei's^Ge cW^e as set forth in
:fcbie Fifiancial •Agr.eemehf for 'each qu^arfer or part feceof 'that the B.eci^iient is- tio'n
DOn'Lpli-aKt,.

3..

fb-e- Firig&cial Agt'eemeat fo?r .eaeli ^tiarfec or part fhereof,. the Rwipxent is npn

Any ^trcQ requiTed her^under IQ 'be -sent by 'either party tQ fh.^ •oth^ 'shaU be sent by
•cer^tfied m^ retuwr reGelpt requested, addressed a$. foUov/s:

1' < 'Wlion, sent 'by '&e Cxt^: to the Recipient if siiali t>s addjbes^ed to^

^^Aw^^WW ^^^C6^^n^/^\
lDam5Tc3M<^ ' ^ ^S^-S^T^- Sfr^
^^^<New 3er^W5-2 ^/^ f^^T
^ a W ^l/- ; 'M^ S,U^

Cpmie]] Pple57s I^F M ^ Z^7l^ .. / _. / ->/—^

^a^fe^^^mMJ^^ yi^^ilJ^ ,^-€€^ <S^!t^
Cpmie]] Ppl.e^ L3LF ^/^__ ^

-S^9"!si§sfflve-

Jersey 'City.^ew Jersey 0731 I
Jam^s C< McCanri, Est^.

l.i...

./" Yl



•'and

2. "When, sent :by the Recipient to &e Ci^, ibshaU be addressed toz

QMce o:TJW A"l?atei&e&t CptnpM^nce
I.^'.Hasf LIndeu A'ven'ue;,: Snite 200

Jersey' Cit^, 'Hew Jersey 0730S
Atfc Qfte'Directox

aad

§95 BestgeH ^? - 2"d MQOX
Jetsey Gity,Ne^.Jersey- 0730.6
?t Executive DireGtor

-wrlii separate copies to fee Mayor ^nd.t^e Bti'siuess Administratoz-;

These fa'?ms fc examples only aad.-sliaU 'b.e- in substantially file forEa oii; fil-e in--fli&
Divisioti .ofE'cOBOltUG Opp&rfianity, 'siibj-ect .to .modificE(ti6&s &oEa time to tiXae by tb.e 0ty '£is
u&'QGSsoyy br appropriate.

'1.' ' Leti:er-desrgna^ngR:e&ipien-fc*s-PEOjectEmployio:enfc-& Contractmg Officer

2. L&^erfr.tiM^edpietittb.Employjees of Redpienfs Company
3. Acl£ff0^sd.g:faent'/6fjPBCAicioiaplianc.e,o{>^iibcoixtFaGtoi'
4, ,Exninple;o;£HNmgPlau
5. E'mnpte'-QfMonfhly Employment Report
6.. Exa33ipl^ of MosMy Purchasing R-e^ort
7. T-O^WEmpioxment Services 0uid$
.8. Go^ffmer6ial.R,E;1;aU,A^ti^Qtt^osn^i?e

T^its ^greement.slialltaacs effect, onl^e.-dafe'thatfiie Economic Is.c.enti.ve. is approved- 1oy

theMtitddpal GoU&oiL

To the. extent teqi^ed by St&te soasi Metal Law atid so long as the Entity dis.cteges its
Good W^i Q'bligati.o^s u£L<te£ titiis' agi:'ee;[nerit, the City' agtegs' and, afclmo'wle^ges &at tS?
B-ecipient and ils '!iso?a:&1:oi& are frse to lure whOXWer they choose.. ^ih^s ^gr&ement couflicts

/' 13



with any collective bargaining agreement, the City agrees to defer to such agreements so lopg as
the Recipient provides the City with a copy of the offending provision in the collective
bargaining agreement,

In the event there are any conflicts between this Agreement and any Project Labor
Agreement, then as it pertains to construction jobs covered by the PLA, the Project Labor
Agreement shall govern. Wherever possible^ this Agreement shall be interpreted consistently
with the Project Labor Agreement,

CITY OF.

City Cierk

14



City Clerk File No. Ord. 19-095

Agenda No._3-5 _1st Reading
Agenda No._ 2nd Reading & Final Passage

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the foliowing ordinance:

CIP^ ORDINANCE 19-095

TITLE:

AMEND THE ZONING REGULATIONS FOR ZONE 4, "B(it???

WHEREAS, the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City, adopted the Journal Square 2060 Redevelopment Plan
at its meeting of July 14, 2010, Ordinance #10-103; and

WHEREAS, a copy of the amended text is attached hereto and made a part hereof, and is available for public
inspection at the Offices of the City Clerk, City Hall, 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, NJ;and

WHEREAS, the following amendment to the Journai Square 2060 Redevelopment Plan has been reviewed by the
Jersey City Planning Board at its meeting on June 18, 2019;and

WHEREAS) the Planning Board voted to recommend adoption of this amendment by the Munidpa! Council; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAiNED by the Municipal Councii of the City of Jersey City that the attached
recommended amendments to the Journal Square 2060 Redevelopment Plan be, and hereby are, adopted.

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED THAT:
A. A!l ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed,
B, This ordinance shall be a part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and set forth fully herein. The City Clerk shall have this

ordinance codified and incorporated in the official copies of the Jersey City Code,
C. This ordinance shall take effect at Die tima and in the manner as provided by law,
D. The City Cisrk and the Corporation Council be and they are hereby authorized and directed to change any chapter numbers, article

numbers and section numbers in the event that the codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a conflict between those
numbers and the existing code, in order to avoid confusion and possible repealers of existing provisions.

E. The City Planning Division Is hereby directed to give notice at least ten days prior to the hearing on the adoption of this Ordinance to
the Hudson County Planning board and to ail other persons entitled thereto pursuantto H.J.S. 40:55D-15 and NJ,S. 40:550-63 (if
required). Upon the adoption of this Ordinance after public hearing thereon, the City Clerk is hereby directed to publish notice of the
passage thereof and to file a copy of the Ordinance as finally adopted with the Hudson County Planning Board as required by
N.J.S. 40:550-16, The clerk shal! also forthwith transmit a copy of this Ordinance afterfinal passage to the Municipal Tax Assessor
as required by HJ.S. 40:49-2.1.

<3-

Tartya Marioi)e, PP, AiCP, Director of Planning

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVE?^

APPROVED:_
Corporation Counsel Business Admlristrator

Certification Required n

Not Required 0



This summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any resolutlon/ordinance that is submitted for Council

consideration. Incomplete or vague fact slieets will be returned with the resolution/orciinance,

Full Title of OrcUnance/Resolution

ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY C1T\ ADOPTING
AMENDMENTS TO THE JOURNAL SQUARE 2060 REDEVELOPMENT PLAN TO AMEND
ZONING REGULATIONS TO ZONE 4 AND "B" BONUS CORNER LOT REGULATIONS FOR
THE PROPERTV AT 96-110 TONNELLE AVENUE.

Imfiator

Department/Division

Name/TitLe

Phone/email

HEDC
Tanya R. Marione, AICP, PP

Erica Baptiste
201-547-5010

Director

Senior Planner

tanyam@jcnj .org/ebaptiste@jcnj .org

Note: Initiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to council meeting @ 4:00 p.m.)

Purpose

This ordinance amends the current zoning regulations for the property at 96-110 Tonnelle (Block 9405, Lots 11
and 12) within the Journal Square 2060 Redevelopment Plan. The proposed amendment to the Journal Square
2060 Redevelopment Plan will change the Corner Lot Bonus from a tlB" to an "A" Comer Bonus and will be

subject to certain regulations: 1) 20°/o of all units above the eighth floor be moderate affordable housing units
for 30 years; and, 2) improvements and restoration ofBrett Triangle Park.

I certify that all the facts presented herein are accurate.

^.
SigE?fltureOf Division Director

tA^A^

^^Signature ofDepai

Da^e ^

[a^L^f
Date



This ordinance amends the current zoning regulations for the property at 96-110 Tonnelle (Block
9405, Lots 11 and 12) within the Journal Square 2060 Redevelopment Plan. The proposed
amendment to the Journal Square 2060 Redevelopment Plan will change the Corner Lot Bonus at
this site from a "B" to an "A" Corner Bonus and will be subject to certain regulations: 1) 20% of

all units above the eighth floor be moderate affordable housing units for 30 years; and, 2)

improvements and restoration ofBrett Triangle Park.



Hishlishted, bold, italicized ^ordins indicates new lansnase proposed, and stRke^out-weF&g

indicates language to be romovedr

D) ZONE 4: NEIGHBORHOOD MDCED USE

(c) Corner Lot Bonus: Corner lots at selected locations are permitted a height bonus to encourage

larger buildings at street corners as indicated in Map 3: Corner Lot Bonus Map. To qualify for

the bonus height, corner lots must have the minimum lot size indicated in Table 6 for each bonus

as well as the minimum sidewalk width indicated in Map 5: Sidewalk Width Map, or a minimum

of 12 feet; whichever is greater. Comer Bonus projects are not required to match adjacent front

yard setbacks in section 6 below, but instead must provide a front yard setback from the existing

curb-lme at the time of adoption sufficient to meet the minimum sidewalk width as per the Map

5; Sidewalk Width Map, or a minimum of 12 feet, whichever is greater. Projects must also

comply with the minimum floor-to-ceiUng height requirements and required building stepbacks.

Buildings of 8 stories and greater must provide ground floor commercial uses in all ground floor

areas not utilized for parking, storage or building utilities; and must measure a minimum depth of

30 feet from all street lines. Ground floor residential is only permitted at the rear of a building

where a minimum of 5000 square feet of retail is provided. The Comer Lot Bonus is applicable

to a maximum lot area of 20,000 square feet. All floor levels above the height of adjacent

buildings shall be set back from the property line 5 feet or more to provide windows.

1. Any development of the Property (Block 9405, Lots 11 and 12) above the maximum

permitted stories under the ffBff Bonus Corner provisions of eight (8) stones shall require that

20% of the residential units above the eighth floor (on the ninth floor and up) shall be

required to be deed restricted as moderate affordable housing units (up to 80% of area median

income - AMI") for a period of 30 years. The applicant/devehper shall enter into a

developer fs agreement with the City of Jersey City to memorialize same as part of any

development approval for the Property (Block 9405, Lots 11 and 12).

2. The development shall also include improvements and restorations to the Brett Triangle

Park ("Park") that is located in the immediate vicinity of the Property (Block 9405, Lots 11

and 12). The improvements/restoration of the Park shall be made in conjunction with the

development Tfie improvements/restoration of the Park are required to be approved as part

of the site plan approval for the Property (Block 9405, Lots 11 and 12) and will be a condition

of approval. The Park miprovements/restoration will be required to be completed prior to the

issuance of a final certificate of occupancy.

lofl



JOURNAL SQUARE 2060
MAP 3: CORNER LOT BONUS MAP
MARCH 27, 2019
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JOURNAL SQUARE 2060
MAP 3: CORNER LOT BONUS MAP
MARCH 27, 2019
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City Clerk Fi!e No.

Agenda No..

Agenda No.

Ord. 19-096

3.6 1st Reading

_2nd Reading & Final Passage

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

TITLE:

CITY ORDINANCE 19-096

AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 332 (VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC) ARTICLE IX (PARKING FOR THE DISABLED) OF THE JERSEY
CITY CODE DESIGNATING, AMENDING AND/OR REPEALING A RESERVED
PARKING SPACE AT VARIOUS LOCATIONS THROUGHOUT THE CITY

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OP THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN:

1. Chapter 332 (Vehicles and Traffic) Article III (Parking, Standing and Stopping) and Article IX (Parking for
the Disabled) of the Jersey City Code is hereby supplemented as follows:

Section 332-29 Disabled Parking Manual

Section 332-69 Restricted parking zones m front of or near residences of disabled drivers.

PARKING FOR THE DISABLED
Restricted parking spaces, (measuring approximately 22 feet in length) in front of residential
building for use by persons who have been. issued special vehicle identification cards by the
Division of Motor Vehicles and handicapped pai-kmg permits issued by the Traffic Divisi.on.

Rose Davjs [Joseph] Davis
Eva_ Brown

R.Qgelio_Toro

MUagros [Carmelo]
Bernadina Ocasio

Verdena Wrieht

224 Dwiglit St
201 Fau-viewAv

7Jtoe_St
226 Hancock Av

44_LembeckAv [opposite 251 Gar field Av~\
TlYaLeAy

2. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed.

3. This ordinance shall be a part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and incorporated in the official
copies of the Jersey City Code.
4. This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in die manner as prescribed by law,

5, The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel may change any chapter numbei'Si article numbers and section
numbers if codification of this ordinance reveals a conflict between those numbers and the existing code, m

order to avoid confusion and possible accidental repealers of existing provisions.

NOTE: All new material to be Inserted is underscored; material to be repealed is in [brackets].

AV;pcl
(06.27.19)

APPROVED; _ /</^_/--/_i' 1
Director of Traffic & Transportation

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED:,

APPROVED:_

^L AAw^f/^
nlclpai Engineer

Corporalion Counsel Business Administrator

Certification Required D

Not Required D



ORDINANCE FACT SHEET - NON-CONTRACTUAL
This summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any ordinance that is submitted for Council consideration.

Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the resolution.

AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 332 (VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC) ARTICLE IX
(PARKING FOR THE DISABLED) OF THE JERSEY CITY CODE DESIGNATING, AMENDING
AND/OR REPEALING A RESERVED PARKING SPACE AT VARIOUS LOCATIONS
THROUGHOUT THE CITY

laitiafor
DepartmenVDivision

Name/Title

Phone/email

Administrari&n

Andrew Vischio,P,E. on behalf of
Councilwoman Wattennan, Chah'woman for

the Municipal Council Committee for
Disabled Parking

201.547,4419

Engineering, Traffic and Transpoi-tation

Director of Traffic & Transportation

AVischio@jcnj ,org

Note: Jnitiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to council meeting @ 4:00 p.m,)

Ordinance Purpose

Desigiiate/Delete or Amend a reserved parking space at various locations throughout the City. All applicants

liave submitted applications for a reserved parking space and have been reviewed and recommended for

approval by the Committee. Each reserved parking space will have a two-year mandatory renewal, July 1,2021,

This ordinance proposes 5 new reserved parking spaces, one of which is being relocated closer to the disabled
individual^ residence. Three are new parking spaces and there is one parking space where the signs are existing,

however, the individual for whom the space is designated for has changed.

I certify that all the facts presented herein are accurate.

.A

Director oJE/E'ra^ffic & Transportation
^1_

Date

Signature of Department Director Date



City Clerk File No.

Agenda No._

Agenda No.

Ord.19-097

3.7 ,1,st Reading

,2nd Reading & Final Passage

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

CITY ORDINANCE 19-097

:. AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTmG CHAPTER 332 (VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC) ARTICLE
"' m CPARIONG, STANDING OR STOPPING) CREATING SECTION 332-28.1G (ELECTRIC

VEHICLE CHARGING AREAS) DESIGNATING PARKING FOR ELECTRIC OR PLUG-IN
HYBRID VEHICLES ON MARIN BOULEVARD

WHEREAS) The City of Jersey City (City) has strived to provide leadership and guidance on emerging topics
importaut to the Constituents of the City; and

WHEREAS, the City anticipates a growing frend in the use of electric vehicles and the need for supporting
electric vehicle infrastructure (EVI); and

WHEREAS, the City has determined a need to create an Electric Vehicle Charging Area unique to parking for
electric or plug-in hybrid vehicles.

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN:

1. Chapter 332 (Vehicles and Traffic) Article III (Parking, Standing and Stopping) of the Jersey City Code is hereby
supplemented as follows:

Parking, Standing and Stopping

Electric Vehicle Charging Area
No person shall park a vehicle upon any of the streets or parts thereof listed below except
an electric or hybrid plug-in vehicle.

Limits

Beginning 70 feet east ofMarin Blvd
(Total of 8 parking spaces)
Beginning 215 feet east ofMarin Blvd
(Total of 12 parking spaces

25 feet south of Mouteomerv St 40 feetjiouth
(Total of 2 parking spaces)

Article HI

Section 328-28.l.C.

Nameof Street

First St

Side

North

MarinBlvd. West

2. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed.

3. This ordinance shall be a part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and mcorporated in the official copies of the
Jersey City Code.
4, The City Clerk and th& Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized and director to change any chapter
numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event that the codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a
conflict between those numbers and the existing code, in order to avoid confusion Mid possible accidental repealers of

existing provisions.

NOTE: All material to be inserted is new and underscored.

AV:pcl
(6.27.19)

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM

APPROVED:
Director of Traffic & Transportation

APPROVED^

APPROVED:
IHuBicipal Engineer

Corporation Counsel Business Admtnistrator

Certification Required D

Not Required D



Qm)INANCE_FA_CT_SHEET^NON-CONTRACTlJAL
TUs summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any ordinance that is submitted for Council consideration.

Incomplete or vague fact sheets "will be returned with the resolution.

Full Title of Ordinance

AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 332 (VEHICLES AN3> TRAFFIC) ARTICLE UI (PARKING,
STANDING OR STOPPING) CREATING SECTION 332-28.1C (ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING AREAS)
DESIGNATING PARKING FOR ELECT3RIC OR PLUG-IN HYBRID VEHICLES ON MAMN BOULEVASK

Initiator
Department/Division

Name/Title

Phone/email

Administration

Andrew Visdiio, P,E. at the request of Brian
Platt, Business Administrator

20I.547.44I9

Engineering, Traffic and Transportation

Director of Traffic & Transportation

AVischio@jcnj.org
Note; Initiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Weduesday prior to council meeting @ 4:00 p.m.)

Ordinance Purpose

Due to the growing trend in the use of electric vehicles and the need for supporting electric vehicle
infi-astructure, it is in the City's best interest to create an Electric Vehicle Charging Area on the west side of

Marin Boulevard, south of Montgomery Street, Tins area will accommodate two (2) electric vehicles.

I certify that all the facts presented herein are accurate.

Director ofTraf^c & Transportation

Signature of Department Director

^Mm±
Date

Date

1/rM
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Ord.19-098

3.8 1 st Reading

2nd Reading & Final Passage

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

CITY ORDINANCE 19-098

TITLE:
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 157 (ENTERTAINMENT LICENSES) TO (1)
CLARIFY THE DEFINITION OF ENTERTAINMENT, (2} LIMIT THE NUMBER OF
ENTERTAINMENT LICENSES WITHIN THE HISTORIC DOWNTOWN SPECIAL
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, AND (3) SUPPLEMENT THE APPLICATION NOTICE
REQUIREMENTS

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY HEREBY ORDAINS:

WHEREAS, the Newark Avenue Pedestrian Mail exists within the Historic Downtown
Special Improvement District; and

WHEREAS, since creating the Newark Avenue Pedestrian Mali, a large number of

businesses established along the Mall and planned for the Mail have applied for
Entertainment Licenses to play live music or to play recorded music for group

entertainment; and

WHEREAS, since creating the Newark Avenue Pedestrian Mali, a large number of

businesses established along the Mail and others which plan to open along the Mail have
applied for Entertainment Licenses to play live music or to play recorded music for group
entertainment; and

WHEREAS, this large concentration of businesses with Entertainment Licenses along the

Newark Avenue Pedestrian Mail has the potential to alter the original intent of the mail as a
place for pedestrians to gather and turn it into a primarily night-club driven entertainment

district; and

WHEREAS, police call date shows an overall increase in calls on the Pedestrian Mali from
2013 to 2018. The biggest increases were interpersonal conflicts up 194%, loud music up

450% and street fights up 177%. Calls reporting intoxicated persons also increased during
this time.

WHEREAS, N.I.S.A. 40:56-77, entitled "[Pedestrian Mails] Use control & regulation" states

that any pedestrian mail created pursuant to Title 40, Chapter 56, Article 5, or any properly
of a special improvement district may be used, under the direction of the governing body,

for any purpose or activity which will enhance the movement, safety, convenience or

enjoyment of pedestrians; and

WHEREAS, NJ.S.A. 40:56-77Cb)C2) further states that upon adoption of a pedestrian mail
or special improvement district ordinance, the governing body may, from time to time,

provide for the control and regulation of the uses to be permitted on the mail or special

improvement district property by occupants of abutting properly and the location of such
uses;and
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WHEREAS, N.T.S.A. 40:56-77(b^C2) provides the City with great flexibility in controlling the
uses of land abutting pedestrian mails and within special improvement districts and with
this authority, the Council could limit the number of entertainment licenses permitted
within the Historic Downtown Special Improvement District so as to prevent it from

becoming a primarily nlght-dub driven entertainment district; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the City that the Municipal Council exercise the
powers afforded it by NJ^A;40:56-77Cb) [2) to limit the number of entertainment licenses
permitted within the Historic Downtown Special Improvement District so as to prevent it
from becoming a primarily night-dub driven entertainment district.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City
that Chapter 157 [Entertainment Licenses] be amended to read:

CHAPTER1S7
ENTERTAINMENT LICENSES

§ 1S7-1. - Purpose and official comments,

A. Purpose; official comments.

[1] The City of Jersey City has repeatedly experienced serious civil disturbances
and other occurrences detrimental to the public's safety, health and welfare

associated with entertainment and dance venues [these problems include but are

not limited to riots, disorderly groups, public consumption of alcohol, and public
urination], .Consequently, this Chapter is enacted to license and regulate these

activities except those directly sponsored and self-regulated by the City itself,

(2) Social clubs are expressly regulated by this Chapter because recent experience

has shown that attempts have been made to circumvent the general regulatory

process. (For example, for-profit nightclubs have reorganized as private

membership clubs to circumvent the Alcoholic Beverage Law.]

(3^) This Chapter also prohibits obscene entertainment and obscene dancing and
contains a definition of obscenity and pornography that reflects contemporary

commm-iity standards as enforceable by relevant Judicial decisions. It also

explicitly incorporates by reference the prohibitions on pornography and
obscenity found in Chapter 251 of the Municipal Code. In enacting this prohibition,
the City Council relied on extensive evidence of long-standing community's

standards. Testimony was taken from ordinary citizens as well as members of the

clergy, teachers, business people and professionals. The Council issued legislative

findings that the people of Jersey City are offended by obscenity and pornography:

(a) Jersey City seeks to maintain an atmosphere as conducive as possible to
families in a densely populated urban setting.

Cb) Obscenity and pornography have had no place in the public life of Jersey
City. Historically, no so-called adult bookstores or adult theaters have

operated here. In addition, no erotic dancing venues have ever been allowed

to operate here in the City, notwithstanding their presence in adjacent

communities. Therefore, these legislative findings support the existence of

community standards that allow for the constitutional dreams cription of

such activity, and the City will continue to enforce these social norms

through legal sanctions.

[4) The Director of the Division of Commerce is given primary jurisdiction over
this Chapter. However, given the public safety concerns, the Director of Public

Safety also shares in its administration: § 157-9 authorizes the Director of Public
Safety, upon a notice and hearing, to suspend licenses on an emergent basis.

B. This Chapter is to be liberally construed in order to effectuate its purpose.
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§157-2.-Definitions.

The following terms shall have the meanings indicated when used in this Chapter:

AGGRIEVED PARTY - Any person, persons, or entity, whether corporate or private,
aggrieved by the sound of entertainment emanating from. a Licensed Establishment.

DECIBEL LEVEL - A unit for measuring the volume of a sound, equal to twenty times

the logarithm to the base ten of the ratio of the pressure of the sound measured to
the reference pressure, which is twenty micropascals [twenty micronewtons per

square meter).

DECIBEL MEASUREMENT - A measurement taken as follows:

Indoors - In accordance with the standards set_fort:hm_Chapter_222, Article I,

from any point of the room, in the premises of an aggrieved party, most

affected by the sound, but not from areas which receive only casual use, e.g.,

hallways, bathroom and closets. All exterior doors and windows in the

premises shall be closed and all sound sources within the premises, e.g.,

television, radio and stereo, shall be shut off at the time of measurement,

Outdoors - In accordance with the standards set forth in Chapter 222. Article

LJrom any point within the property boundaries of an aggrieved party
(excluding City rights-of way; e.g., streets and sidewalks], or the

measurement may be taken from any point outside of the Licensed

Establishment at the discretion of the City.

DIRECTOR - The Director of Commerce in the Department of Housing, Economic

Development and Commerce.

ENTERTAINMENT - Any live act, including vocalists, actors, dancers, floor showsj

and mstrumentalists and an^ recorded music played by a D.J.^jykeboXi_stereo_or

speaker/sound system, or _any similar device, for the uurposes^ of group

entertainment,

ENTERTAINMENT LICENSE - A license issued pursuant to this Chapter regulating
entertainment.

ESTABLISHMENT - A premises for which an entertainment license has been issued.

OBSCENITY AND PORNOGRAPHY - Obscenity and pornography exist when under
contemporary standards in the community the entertainment taken as a whole,

appeals to prurient interests; and the entertainment describes in a patently
offensive way sexual conduct; and when the entertainment taken as a whole, lacks

. serious literaiy, artistic, political or scientific value. [NOTE: Miller v. California, 413

U.S. 15. 93 S. Ct. 2607, 37 L. Ed. 2d 419 [1973), rehearmg denied, 414 U.S. 881, 94 S.

Ct 26, 38 L. Ed. 2d 128 (1973).] This definition incorporates by reference definitions
contained in Chapter 251 of the Municipal Code.

OUTDOOR ENTERTAINMENT - Any entertainment taking place beyond the outside
perimeter walls of the licensed premises, including entertainment taking place on a

rooftop of a licensed premises or any entertainment which is Intended to be audible

or which is actually audible beyond such perimeter walls.

PERSON - Any natural person[s), or a partnership, corporation or legal entity.

VENUE - Any nightclub or restaurant as defined in Chapter 345 of this Code,
including but not limited to a social or private club.

§ 137-3. - License required; types of licenses; restrictions.

A. A license as described in this Chapter is required for any live entertainment taking

place in any venue, as defined in § 157-2, in the City of Jersey City except that no such
license will be required for events taking place in or on any Cily-Owned building or
property or for any event which is sponsored or co-sponsored by the City. All existing
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Entertainment License holders must renew in accordance with the regulations herein

within 60 days of the enactment of this ordinance. All existing Entertainment License

holders, unless qualified for a Nightclub Entertainment License as regulated herein,
will be permitted to renew pursuant to the Restaurant Entertainment License, An

Entertainment License is granted to a specific person to offer entertainment in a

specified place. There shall be two Entertainment License categories: Nightclub and

Restaurant.

(1) Nightclub Entertainment License. Subject to thejimitations set_forth in_§

157~3{3^. This this license is available only in zoning districts where a
nightclub is permitted pursuant to Jersey City Code Chapter 345 or a duly
adopted Redevelopment Plan.

A Nightclub Entertainment License shall further be categorized as follows:

Class 1 - For establishments with a capacity greater than one hundred [100)
people;

Class 2 - For establishments with a capacity of one hundred (100) people or
fewer;

All Nightclub Entertainment Licenses shall be subject to the following:

[a) Notwithstanding noise regulation in Chapter 222 of the Jersey City Code
to the contrary, any entertainment under this Nightclub Entertainment

License shall be restricted to a decibel level of 65 dB from Noon to 10 P.M.,and

shall be restricted to 50 dB from 10 P.M. to close of entertainment in

accordance with § l57-4C[l], seven days per week:

(b) Outdoor entertainment shall be prohibited in all establishments, except
where specifically requested in the license application for a certain part of the
establishment and approved by the Director and specifically indicated on the
actual license. Outdoor entertainment shall not be the norm and shall only be

granted where the Director is convinced that it would not unreasonably

interfere with the quality of life of the surrounding community, In determining
whether or not to grant outdoor entertainment, the Director shall consider,

but not be limited to, the following criteria: the nature of the establishment;
the location of the establishment including its proximity to residential
properties; the input of residents of the surrounding area; and the history [if
any^) of the esta'bllshmenfc Furthermore, the Director shall not permit outdoor
entertainment beyond the hours described in § 157-4C(4^].

(c) The Director may, in consultation with the Department of Public Safety,
establish any reasonable conditions deemed necessary for the health, safety,

and welfare of the public prior to granting any license. Any such conditions
established shall be listed on the license,

[2) Restaurant Entertainment License. Subjecttcrthe limitations set forth in § 157-
3 [3^ This this license is available only in zoning districts where a Category 1
Restaurant is permitted pursuant to Jersey City Code Chapter 345 or a duly
adopted Redevelopment Plan, except that in the Restaurant Row Overlay Zone

(R02), a category 2 Restaurant shall also be eligible for this license, subject to
the Jimitations set forth in § 157~3[3), and except that no Entertainment
License shall be permitted within the lower J.F.K. Boulevard NC Zoning
District.

Class 1 - For Establishments with a capacity greater than one hundred (100]
people;

Class 2 - For establishments with a capacity of one hundred (100) people or
fewer:

All Restaurant Entertainment Licenses shall be subject to the following:

[a] Notwithstanding noise regulation in Chapter 222 of the Jersey City Code
to the contrary/ any entertainment under this Restaurant Entertainment

License shall be restricted to a decibel level of 55 dB from Noon to 10 P.M,,and
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shall be restricted to 45 dB from 10 P.M. to close of entertainment in

accordance with § 157-4CC1), seven days per week.

[b) Outdoor entertainment shall be prohibited in all establishments, except
where specifically requested in the license application for a certain part of the
establishment and approved by the Director and specifically indicated on the
actual license. Outdoor entertainment shall not be the norm and shall only be

granted where the Director is convinced that it would not unreasonably

interfere with the quality of life of the surrounding community. In determining

whether or not to grant outdoor entertainment, the Director shall consider,

but not be limited to, the following criteria: the nature of the establishment;
the location of the establishment including its proximity to residential
properties; the input of residents of the surrounding area; and the history [if
any) of the establishment Furthermore, the Director shall not permit outdoor
entertainment beyond the hours described in § 157-4CC4],

[c) The Director may, in consultation with the Department of Public
Safety, establish any reasonable conditions deemed necessary for the health,

safety, and welfare of the public prior to granting any license. Any such

conditions established shall be listed on the license.

[d] A Restaurant Entertainment Licensee shall not locate or place

entertainment within 10 feet of any entrance door or open window existing

within the establishment,

^ Historic Downtown Special improvement District. Other than those

Entertainment Licenses alread^ranted prior to_September 1, 2019. no new

Entertainment Li censes_ shall be granted to any property within a 2SO"foot

radius_of_Ehe- front door of any Droperty with_m the Historic Downtown

Special Improvement District which already possesses an Entertainment

License.

§ 157-4. - Fees; inactive license; surrender; expiration; hours of operations.

A. Except as provided in § 157-3, no person shall keep, maintain, or operate any

entertainment or dance venue without obtaining a license from the Director. A

license shall be issued only if both the venue and the applicant comply with
relevant standards.

The fee schedule shall be as follows:

Nightclub Entertamment License Class 1: $1.200 per year or part thereof;

Nightclub Entertainment License Class 2: $1.000 per year or part thereof;

Restaurant Entertainment License Class 1: $800 per year or part thereof;

Restaurant Entertainment License Class 2; $600 per year or part thereof.

B. If a licensee fails to conduct entertainment at the licensed premises in a period of

three months, the Director may revoke the license after a hearing has been held on ten

(10) days' notice.

C. The hours of operation for a licensee under this chapter shall be as follows:

(1) Permitted hours for entertainment:

Nightclubs:
Noon to 2:00 a.m., Sunday—

Thursday

Noon to 3:00 a.m., Friday—

Saturday

Noon to 4:00 a.m,. New Year's Eve
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Restaurants:
Noon to 1:00 a.m., Sunday"

Thursday

Noon to 2:00 a.m., Friday—

Saturday

Noon to 3:00 a.m.. New Year's Eve

[2} With reference to establishments holding Nightclub Entertainment Licenses,
no person whatsoever, except the licensee and the licensee's employees and agents,

may be on the licensed premises after closing time until 12:00 p.m. of that day,

Monday through Sunday.

[3] With reference to establishments holding Nightclub Entertainment Licenses,
entertainment must be terminated not later than fifteen (15) minutes prior to the

establishment's closing time to assure that patrons are out by the actual closing

time.

(4) Notwithstanding any later hour permitted in accordance with Section 157-
4[c]Cl)i in venues where Outdoor Entertainment is permitted, it shall cease

promptly at 10:00 p.m. on Sunday through Wednesday and 10:30 p.m. on

Thursday through Saturday, or such earlier "close of entertainment" hour as

mandated by§157-3A[l)[b); § 157-3ACl)[c); § lS7-3A(2)Cb); and § 157-3A[2)Cc).

§ 1S7-5. - Applications; qualifications; procedure for review.

A. Applicants shall be of good moral character and shall file an application under oath
with Director on forms approved by the Director. All applications shall be reviewed by
the Division of Commerce and the Department of Public Safety. The premises shall be
inspected by the Department of Public Safety, the Division of Health and the Division of
Buildings for compliance with relevant laws and regulations,

B. The application shall be made under oath and shall contain the class of license

sought, names, residences and citizenship status of all persons financially interested in

the business, and the nature and extent of this interest; and, if a corporation, the

names, residences and citizenship of the officers, directors and stockholders, and shall

disclose whether the applicant has been convicted of any criminal or quasi-criminal
offense, and if so, the date and place of such conviction and the nature of the offense,

C. The application shall also include a sworn statement signed by the applicants

agreeing to comply with the relevant laws, rules and regulations of the United States,

the State of New Jersey and the City of Jersey City.

D. The application shall have attached a copy of the plans and specifications of the
premises sought to be licensed.

E. All relevant land use approvals, including approved site plans, together with a valid

certificate of occupancy, are conditions precedent for the approval of any

application.

§ 1S7-6, - Publication of application notice.

A. The applicant shall publish once each week for a period of two weeks in a

newspaper of general circulation notice of any new application or application for

renewal or transfer of a license. Such notice shall be at the applicant's expense and

shall be in a form approved by the Director. In addition, the Director shall ^ost a notice
of any new application or apjolication for renewal or_tmnsfer of_a Iicense_on the City s

websiteior a period of two_(2) weeks. This notice shall include the telephone number

and email address of the official from the Division of Commerce who is responsible for

collecting any^pbiections tothe^issuance,renewaLor transfer of a license.

B. Any objections to the issuance of the proposed license or transfer may be filed with

the Director within 20 days from the last date of publication of this notice m. a
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newspaper of general circulation and on the City's website, and all objections must

include the name and address of the person who files the objection and the grounds for

the objection.

C. If one or more objections are filed, the Director shall hold a hearing no later than 30
days after the last date of publication before approving the license or transfer. All

objectors shall receive notice of the time, date and place of the hearing, and it shall be

published in the local newspaper and placed upon the City web site. The non-receipt of

such notice shall not void the Director's action. Any member ofthe_p-ubUc present at

the hearing may urovide testimony reeardms an auplication regardless of whether or

noLthat member of the public objected to the application prior to the hearing.

§ 157-7. - License renewal or transfer; change of ownership.

A. No license shall be renewed without the approval of the Director and payment of the
appropriate fee. Applications for annual renewal shall comply with all of the relevant

provisions of this chapter, including the filing of all forms in § 1S7-5 and any additional
forms required by the Director.

B. The Entertainment License is non-transferable. Upon transfer of a licensed

establishment, any existing Entertainment License is automatically voided, and any

new Owner/Operator desiring to have entertainment at the venue shall apply for an

Entertainment License as required by this Chapter.

C. If the owner of a sole proprietorship, the partners of a partnership or the officers,

directors or stockholders of a corporation are changed, their successors shall file an

affidavit stating their names, residences, citizenship and the nature and extent of their

financial interest in the business. Failure to inform the Director of changes of

ownership shall be grounds for suspension or revocation of the license. The Director

shall review the validity of an existing license upon change in ownership.

D. The Director may deny an application for a renewal of a license where the licensed
premises has been operating in a manner detrimental to the health, safety, and welfare

of the people of the City of Jersey City.

§ 157-8. - Operating requirements.

A. The licensed premises shall be fully accessible to authorized members of the
Department of Public Safety and the various departments of the city having regulatory
jurisdiction over the premises,

B. No licensee may offer obscene or pornographic entertainment (as defined in this

chapter and in Chapter 251 of the Jersey City Municipal Code).

C. All licenses under this chapter shall be posted securely in a conspicuous place at the

main entrance to the licensed premises.

D. Any licensee under this chapter must also comply with any other relevant permit

requirement such as those required by the Department of Public Safety and Division of
Health.

E. If a licensee charges patrons for parking, the fifteen-percent parking tax required

under §§ 304-1 through 304-3 must be paid to the City.

F. The licensee shall designate a person(s) as supervisor(s] of events and shall register

his or her name with the Director. A supervisor shall be present during the dance or

entertainment to assure that it is conducted in an orderly manner.

§1S7-9,-Suspension or revocation; Director of Public Safety or the Director of the

Division of Commerce authorized.

A. Pursuant to a ten-day notice in writing to the licensee and after a hearing, the

Director may suspend or revoke any license if:

[1) The owner, partner, or agent has been convicted of a crime under federal or

state law;

(2) Has violated any of the provisions of this chapter;
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(3') Has been found responsible for any acts constituting a breach of the peace or

a public nuisance;

[4) Where the Director finds the operation of the licensed premises detrimental
to the health, safety and welfare of the people of the city.

B. The Director of Commerce or the Director of Public Safety may suspend any license

on an emergent basis for a period not exceeding thirty [30) days after a hearing
pursuant to two days' notice to the licensee for any of the grounds listed in Subsection

A if the Director finds in addition that protection of the public health, safety or welfare
requires an immediate suspension.

§ 1S7-10. • Interpretative guide.

A. Severability. If any provision, or portion of a provision, of this chapter, or its

application to any person or circumstances, shall be held invalid by a court of
competent Jurisdiction, the remainder of this chapter, or the application of the
provision to other persons or circumstances, shall not be affected.

B. Preemption. Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Code, the conditions and

restrictions placed on entertainment and dance in this Chapter supersede any other

provisions found in other chapters of the Jersey City Municipal Code.

§ 137-10.1." Variance.

With the exception of variances from the requirements of Chapter 345 [Zoning) and hours
of operation and decibel levels, an applicant or licensee may request a variance from the

strict compliance with a specific requirement of this article by requesting same in writing

to the Business Administrator, The application should contain all pertinent details, together

with documentation, which the applicant or licensee wishes considered. The approval or

denial of the application for variance shall be at the discretion of the Business

Administrator and shall not be approved absent a showing that strict compliance with the
specific requirement would create a practical hardship for the applicant and that the
proposed alternative will in no way jeopardize the health, safety, and welfare of the public.

The City Council shall be notified of any variance granted by the Business Administrator
hereunder.

§ 157-11. - Mary McLeod Bethune Life Center.

NO CHANGE.

I, All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed,

II. The City Clerk shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in the official
copies of the Jersey City Code. ,

III. This Ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner as provided by law.

IV. The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel may change any chapter numbers,

article numbers and section numbers if codification of the ordinance reveals a

conflict between those numbers and the existing code, in order to avoid confusion

and possible accidental repealers of existing provisions.

NOTE: All new material is underlined; words struck through are omitted. For the

purposes of advertising only, new matter is in boldface and matter to be repealed is

in italics.

JJH7/8/19

APPROVED A3 TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED^

APPROVED:_
Corporation CounaeT - - BuaIn&ssAdmIntsfratQr

Certification Required D

Not Required D



This summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any Ordinance that is submitted for Council consideration.

Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the Ordinance.

Full Title of Ordinance

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 157 (ENTERTAINMENT LICENSES) TO (1) CLARIFY
THE DEFINITION OF ENTERTAINMENT, (2) LIMIT THE NUMBER OF ENTERTAINMENT
LICENSES WITHIN THE fflSTORIC DOWNTOWN SPECIAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT,
AND (3) SUPPLEMENT THE APPLICATION NOTICE REQUIREMENTS

Initiafor

Departmenf/Division

Name/Title
Phone/email

_The Municipal Founci]_
James Solomon

201-547-5315

Office of the Ward ECouncilperson
Councilman, Ward E

jsolomon(§^cnj.orE
Note: Initiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to council meeting @ 4:00 p.m,)

Ordinance Purpose

This Ordinance will clarify the definition of "Entertainment" as set forth in § 157-2, it will limit the number of
entertainment licenses allowed within the Historic Downtown. SID and it will supplement the notice

requirements for public hearings regarding the issuance of new entertainment licenses as well as the transfer

and renewal of existing entertainment licenses.

I certify that all the facts presented herein are accurate.

July 8^2019

James Solomon Date

Councilman, Ward E
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Ord. 19-099

3.9 1st Reading

2nd Reading & Final Passage

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the foliowing ordinance:

CITY ORDINANCE 19-099

TITLE-.
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 242, [PEACE AND GOOD ORDER) ARTICLE VHE
(PROHIBITING SPECIFIED ACTIONS CONSTITUTING A BREACH OF THE PEACE) TO
PROHIBIT THE OPERATION OF PLAINLY AUDIBLE, NON-VEHICULAR MUSIC OR SOUND
PRODUCTION DEVICES IN ANY PUBLIC PLACE

COUNCIL offered and moved adopting of the following Ordinance:

Chapter 242 of the Jersey City Municipal Code [Peace and Good Order) shall be amended as
follows:

CHAPTER 242
PEACE AND GOOD ORDER

ARTICLE I
Trespass on Roofs

NO CHANGE.

ARTICLE II Graffiti

NO CHANGE.

ARTICLE III Urination in Public

NO CHANGE.

ARTICLE IV Obstruction of Entry

NO CHANGE.

ARTICLE V Motor Vehicles

NO CHANGE.

ARTICLE VI Roller Skates, In-Line Skates, Skateboards and Bicycles

NO CHANGE.

ARTICLE VII

Controlled Dangerous Substances

NO CHANGE.

ARTICLE VIII

PROHIBITING SPECIFIED ACTIONS CONSTITUTING A BREACH OF THE PEACE

§242.11. - Disturbing the Peace

The following acts shall be unlawful:
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A, No person shall engage in loud, boisterous, threatening, abusive, insulting, indecent

language or behavior tending to breach the public peace and good order at a time or
place where a reasonable person has a reasonable expectation to quiet enjoymentT

nor shall any person Ojseratenon-vehicylar music or sound prodyctlon devices where

sound from_such devices may_be heard on any public street, sidewalk, park or place,
in such a manner as to be Plainly Audible as defined in.Chapter 222-2.

B. Appropriate factors for determining reasonableness with respect to quiet enjoyment

include, but are not limited to, the followmg:

1. The proximity of the conduct to noise sensitive areas, which is any real

property normally used for sleeping [either residentially or
commercially) or normally used as a school, church, hospital or public

library;

2. The time of day or night the conduct occurs;

3. Whether the conduct is recurrent intermittent, or constant.

I. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed.

II. The City Clerk shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in the official
copies of the Jersey City Code.

III. This Ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner as provided by law.

IV. The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel may change any chapter numbers, article

numbers and section numbers if codification of the ordinance reveals a conflict

between those numbers and the existing code, in. order to avoid confusion and

possible accidental repealers of existing provisions.

NOTE: All new material is underlined: words struek-througfe are omitted. For the purposes

of advertising only, new matter is in boldface and matter to be repealed is in italics.

07/09/19

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED:.

APPROVED:_
"Corporaltoncounsei Business Adminislrator

Certification Required D

Not Required D



ORDINANCE FACT SHEET
This summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any Ordinance that Is submitted for Council consideration.

Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the Ordinance,

Full Title of Ordinance

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 242, (PEACE AND GOOD ORDER) ARTICLE VIII
(PROHIBFTING SPECIFIED ACTIONS CONSTITUTING A BREACH OF THE PEACE) TO
PROfflBFT THE OPERATION OF PLAWLY AUDIBLE, NON-VEmCULAR MUSIC OR SOUND
PRODUCTION DEVICES IN ANY PUBLIC PLACE

Initiator

Pep artment/Division

Name/Title
Phone/emaU

The Municipal Council
James Solomon

201-547-5315

Office of the Ward E Councilperson
Councilman, Ward E

jsolomon@jcnj,org
Note: IniUator must be available by plione during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to councU meetmg @ 4:00 p,m.)

Ordinauce Purpose

This Ordinance will amend the City's Nuisance Code to prohibit the operation of Plainly Audible, non-vehicular
music or sound production devices in any public place,

I certify that all the facts presented herein are accurate.

July 8,2019

James Solomon Date

Councilman, Ward E



City Clerk File No.

Agenda No.

Agenda No..

Ord. 19-079

3. 1st Reading

_2nd Reading & Final Passage

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

TITLE:

CITY ORDINANCE 19-079

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CONVEYANCE OF BLOCK 16901, LOT
17, BLOCK 22601, LOT 36 AND BLOCK 11401, LOT 13, MORE
COMMONLY KNOWN BY THE STREET ADDRESSES OF 51 CRESCENT
AVENUE, 342 MARTIN LUTHER KING DRIVE AND 174 NEWARK AVENUE,
RESPECTIVELY, TO JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN:

WHEREAS, the City of Jersey City [City] is the owner of certain property located within
Block 16901, Lot 17, Block 22601, Lot 36 and Block 11401, Lot 13, more commonly known
by the street addresses of 51 Crescent Avenue, 342 Martin Luther King Drive and 174
Newark Avenue, respectively [Properties]; and

WHEREAS, it has been determined that the Properties are not needed for any municipal
public purpose or use; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to convey the Properties to the Jersey City Redevelopment
Agency [JCRA] for the purpose of promoting redevelopment and accomplishing the
objectives of any applicable Redevelopment Plan; and

WHEREAS, in addition, under the Local Lands and Buildings Law, N.LS.A. 40A:12-20,
conveyance of land between governmental entities is permitted when the eventual public
purpose is to promote redevelopment; and

WHEREAS, the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency has agreed to pay the City
approximately $1.00 {one dollar^) for the Properties, based on currently proposed plans;
and

WHEREAS, the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency shall remit the net proceeds of the sale of
the Properties to the City as consideration for the initial sale of sucb. Properties for nominal

consideration; and

WHEREAS, in addition, the conveyances will also effectuate the redevelopment of the
Properties in accordance with the terms of the various Redevelopment Plans and their

return to the real estate tax rolls of the City of Jersey City; and

WHEREAS, the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency is authorized to acquire the Property
from the City of Jersey City, pursuant to MJ^A. 40A:12A-8 and 22 and N.T.S.A. 40A:12-20;
and

WHEREAS, the City of Jersey City is authorized to transfer Property to the Jersey City
Redevelopment Agency with or without consideration pursuant to NJ.S.A. 40A:12A-39(a)

and NJ.S.A. 40A:12-13 [b^ [1].



19-079
Continuation of City Ordinance , _ ^_ _ _ -__ ^, page

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CONVEYANCE OF BLOCK 16901, LOT
17, BLOCK 22601, LOT 36 AND BLOCK 11401, LOT 13, MORE
COMMONLY KNOWN BY THE STREET ADDRESSES OF Sl CRESCENT
AVENUE, 342 MARTIN LUTHER KING DRIVE AND 174 NEWARK AVENUE,
RESPECTIVELY, TO JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City
that:

1. The conveyance to the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency of certain lands and

buildings designated on Jersey City's Official Tax Assessment Map as Block 16901,
Lot 17, Block 22601, Lot 36 and Block 11401, Lot 13, more commonly known by the
street addresses of 51 Crescent Avenue, 342 Martin Luther King Drive and 174
Newark Avenue, respectively, for the purpose of promoting redevelopment, based

upon currently proposed plans for approximately $1.00 (one dollar], is hereby
approved.

2. The Mayor or Business Administrator is directed to execute a Deed and any other

documents that are deemed legally necessary or appropriate by the Corporation

Counsel to effectuate the transfer of the Properties to the Jersey City Redevelopment
Agency in accordance with the above terms.

A. All Ordinances and parts of Ordinances inconsistent herewith, are hereby repealed.

B. This Ordinance shall be a part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and fully set
forth therein. The City Clerk shall have this ordinance codified and Incorporated in
the official copies of the Jersey City Code.

C, This Ordinance shall take effect at the time and in. the manner as provided by law.

D. The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized and
directed to change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers in

the event that the codification of this Ordinance reveals that there is a conflict
between those numbers and the existing code, in order to avoid, confusion and

possible accidental repealers of existing provisions.

NOTE: All material is new; therefore, underlining has been omitted.

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED:,

APPROVED:_
Corporation Counaai Business Administrator

Certification Required Q

Not Required Q



ORDINANCE FACT SHEET - NON-CONTRACTUAL
This summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any resolution that is submitted for Council consideration.
Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the resolution.

Full Title of Ordinance

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CONVEYANCE OF BLOCK 16901, LOT 17, BLOCK
22601. LOT 36 AND BLOCK 11401, LOT 13, MORE COMMONLY KNOWN BY THE
STREET ADDRESSES OF Sl CRESCENT AVENUE, 342 MARTIN LUTHER KING DRIVE
AND 174 NEWARK AVENUE, RESPECTIVELY, TO JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT
AGENCY

Initiator

Department/Di vision

Name/Title
Phone/email

Administration

Brian D, S'latt

(20i)547-5147

Administration

Business Administrator

UI'LiU if |i ii| I'IL

Mate: Initiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to council meeting @ 4:00 p.m.)

Ordinance Purpose

The City of Jersey City [City) desires to convey the Properties to the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency
[JCRA] for the purpose of promoting redevelopment and accomplishing the objectives of any applicable
Redevelopment Plan.

The JCRA shall remit the net proceeds of the sate of the Properties to the City as consideration for the initial
sale of such Properties for nominal consideration

I certify that all the facts presented herein are accurate.

Signature of Department Director Date


